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MILESTONE
BHiE#®

02/2018 .
+ Guiyang Environmental Waste-to-Energy Power Project .——//.
commenced commercial operation with an installed capacity ®e
of 24MW. °

SERERAUNBEIRR 24K
BABRES -

04/2018

« The construction of Shandong Dezhou é
Natural Gas Thermal Power Joint R .@
Production Project was approved. e’ N
IWREM R AR E AT B ERES =
R o

et -
e’ [
@ o ® - A

05/2018

+ Hongze Sanhe Natural Gas
Distributed Energy Project was
approved.

AR = RAR S M BEIRIE B
BBk -

4 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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07/2018

.

The offer period of the memorandum
of understanding entered into between
SPIC and the Company closed.
BRBIRERDFARENREE SRR

12/2018

Hebei Handan Yongnian

11/2018

08/2018

MILESTONE
BRER

Mr. He Hongxin has been appointed
as the Vice Chairman of the Board and
continued to serve as the Chief Executive

Officer.
FEEHITE °

Jilin Panshi Environmental Power Project
was approved.

EMEARFREERBESZE

Environmental Power Project was

app

roved.

A HBER K SR IR (R B EIR B BB ILE o

REFALEERE

BRI AEEE

Zhejiang Yunhe Photovoltaic Power
Project commenced commercial
operation with an installed capacity of
7. 76MW.
%E%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁf%%ﬁ&k%%
E

09/2018

Shandong Tai’erzhuang
Environmental Power Project was
approved.

WRERHRFREERERESRE
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EERMBERE

Revenue

WA

(RMB’000)
(ANREFT)

4,808,703

4,820,975

Earnings per share (Basic)
BRER(EA)

(RMB)
(ARH)

0.1562

Profit before tax

BRBE AT A

(RMB000)
(ARETFT)

238,612

560,706

Controlled installed capacity

EREREE
(MW)
GER)

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS

BEBTEZBRA

3,935.19

3,903.43

Profit attributable to
owners of the Company

ROTER ABGRF

(RMB’000)
(AREFIT)

185,323

401,702

Power generation

88

(MWh)
(JRELEF)

10,135,282.52

9,940,496.33

2018 2017

Bl Natural gas power
m Waste-to-energy power
HIREE
Ml Wind power
s
F\jwlffggvgtta\c power
Hydrbpovver
8.9%
RN -
m Others
Hit

As of 31 December

BZE12A31H

2018 2017

20185 20175
RMB’000 Percentage RMB’000 Percentage
ARBT T Gtk AREBTT (=124
Natural gas power RAREE 2,486,713 51.7% 2,742,734 56.9%
Waste-to-energy power Wi E 446,494 9.3% 320,953 6.7%
Wind power R HEE 1,035,801 21.5% 870,029 18.0%
Photovoltaic power JIRBEE 338,605 7.1% 317,579 6.6%
Hydropower KNEE 294,090 6.1% 430,737 8.9%
Others Hith 207,000 4.3% 138,943 2.9%
4,808,703 100% 4,820,975 100%

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

TEENERERERAR AR



DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS
HE 7 E

WELL-ESTABLISHED PLATFORMS WITH
VARIOUS RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS

HEEZErBLRAR ZEEFE

Total installed capacity”
I|Vb\§# '_\v E #

3, 935.19 "

“as at 31 December 2018
"HZE 2018412 A31 H

[#) NATURAL GAS POWER
RRAREE

1 Phase | of Guangdong Dongguan Project Dongguan China Power New Energy Heat 360.00 100.00 360.00
BRE—HEE and Power Company Limited*
REFEHELRAZERAT
2 Phase Il of Guangdong Dongguan Project Dongguan China Power No. 2 Heat and 940.00 100.00 940.00
BRRZ_HIER Power Company Limited*
REPEE_RBERAA
Sub-total of natural gas power projects KAREEEA P&t 1,300.00 1,300.00

ANNUALREPORT2018 7
4§ 2018
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DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS

HE 7 8

WASTE-TO-ENERGY POWER

WIREE

No. Project Name

e HEERE

3 Yunnan Kunming Project
EHREHEE

4 Phase | of Hainan Haikou Project
BEE0—HI5H

5 Phase Il of Hainan Haikou Project

BRSO _HIER

6 Anhui Wuhu Project
ZHEBEE

7 Guizhou Guiyang Project
BINEBEE

Sub-total of waste-to-energy power projects

Operating Entity

P8 L

Kunming China Power Environmental Power
Company Limited*
ERPERRENERAF

China Power International New Energy
Hainan Company Limited*
PEEEHEREEERAR

Haikou China Power Environmental

Protection Company Limited*
BORERRERAF

Wu Hu China Power Environmental Power
Company Limited*

BT ERGREEERAR

Guizhou China Prower Environmental Power
Company Limited*
BN ERRERERAR

WIREEIRE EE

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
KEAE
GER)
30.00

24.00

24.00

24.00

24.00

126.00

Interest
(%)
i
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

89.67

100.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(MW)
EmEgS=
GKE)
30.00

24.00

24.00

21.52

24.00

123.52

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

TRENERERERER AT



WIND POWER
EIE%E

DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS

HE 7 fhE

Attributable

Installed Installed
Capacity Interest Capacity
No. Project Name Operating Entity (MW) (%) (MW)
KERE Em  EREEAE
fmiE  HE &M P AL GkR) (%) GkR)
8 Phase | of Gansu Jiuguan Project Gansu China Power Jiuquan Wind Power 100.50 100.00 100.50
HEBER—HEE Company Limited*
HRPEERANEEERDQA
9 Phase Il of Gansu Jiuguan Project Gansu China Power Jiuquan No. 2 Wind 49.50 100.00 49.50
HBBR —HEA Power Company Limited*
HREPEERE_RANEETERAA
10 Phase Il of Gansu Jiuquan Project Gansu China Power Jiuquan No. 3 Wind 201.00 100.00 201.00
HEBER=HEE Power Company Limited*
HRTEERE=RANEEERAA
11 Phase IV of Gansu Jiuguan Project Gansu China Power Qiaowan Wind 100.50 100.00 100.50
HBROEAER Power Company Limited*
HRTPEFERANBEERARF
12 Phase V of Gansu Jiuguan Project Gansu China Power Qiaowan Wind 20.00 100.00 20.00
HEBERAHER Power Company Limited*
HRTERERNEEERAR
13 Gansu Anbei Project Gansu China Power Jiuquan No. 3 Wind 601.00 100.00 601.00
HeE%dtB e Power Company Limited*
HRREERE=AHEERRRA
14 Heilongjiang Hongqi Project Hailin China Power Honggqi Wind Power 49.50 100.00 49.50
ERETAIEIEE Company Limited*
MR EAER N EEERAQA
15 Heilongjiang Hailang Project Hailin China Power Hailang Wind Power 49.75 100.00 49.75
EIETHRIAB Company Limited*
BN EERENEEFRAR
16 Jiangsu Dafeng Project China Power Dafeng Wind Power Company 200.25 100.00 200.25
AFALIER Limited*
PEARERNBEEERAA
17 Inner Mongolia Chayou Zhongqi Project China Inner Mongolia Wind Power Company 49.50 100.00 49.50
AR HEAFHEER Limited*
HREASH@EHEERRRA
18 Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Project Hubei China Power Chunyangshan Wind 80.00 100.00 80.00
AL AL ILTE B Power Company Limited*
Mt ELG LR E AR QR
19 German Bénen Project Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co. KG 8.00 100.00 8.00
=EBonenIE B Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co. KG
20 Shanghai Sea Wind Project Shanghai Donghai Wind Power Company 102.00 13.18 13.44
HEegRIEE Limited*
LERERNEEERAF
21 Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Project Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Wind Power 48.00 20.00 9.60
FBRANIER Company Limited*
EEFERIERNEEARAR
Sub-total of wind power projects’ EAHBEEIEE /PNEH 1,509.50 1,509.50
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

FR 2018



DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS
HE 7 fhE

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

Project Name

HE B

Phase | of Gansu Wuwei Project

HERR—HEE

Phase Il of Gansu Wuwei Project

HERR—HEE

Phase | of Gansu Baiyin Project

HEAR—HEE

Phase Il of Gansu Baiyin Project

HEOR—HEE

Phase Il of Gansu Baiyin Project

HBAR=MRA

Gansu Guazhou Project

HBINIER

Hainan Changjiang Project
BEETIEE

Yunnan Yuanjiang Project
EmTIRR

Fujian Zhangpu Project
BEEHEE

Sichuan Panzhihua Project

|| ke B

Jiangxi Ji'an Project
IAEREE

Guangdong Dongguan Huimei Project

ERREZXEE

Zhejiang Yunhe Project
AIEMIRR

Jiangxi Ji'an Aoli Project

THEERYWERA

Phase | of Fujian Zhao’an Project
BERE —HEA

Sub-total of photovoltaic power projects

Operating Entity

i Bz

Gansu China Power Wuwei Photovoltaic
Power Company Limited*

HEPERRAREEERA

Gansu China Power Wuwei Photovoltaic
Power Company Limited*

HRPERBARBEERD

Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic
Power Company Limited*

HEPERRAREEERA

Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic
Power Company Limited*

HRPEARARBEERD

Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic
Power Company Limited*

HEPERRAREEERA

Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 3 Wind
Power Company Limited*

HRPEERFE=RANEEERA

China Power International New Energy
Hainan Company Limited Changjiang
Branch*

PEERMEREEERAREIN AR

Yuanjiang China Power Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

TOTHERREEERA

Zhangpu China Power Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*
ERTFERREEFRA

Panzhihua China Power Photovoltaic
Company Limited*

BRIEREARRER AR

Jiangxi China Power Yineng Distributed
Energy Company Limited*

TR EREDHERERAR
Dongguan Integrated Energy Company
Limited*

REGEERRAERRD

China Power Yunhe Photovoltaic Company
Limited*

BEEMREEFERR
Jiangxi China Power Yineng Distributed

Energy Company Limited*
IR EEEDHMAERBRA

Zhao’an China Power Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*
MEPERREERRA

KRRFEEEE /NGT

10 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

TEE B R

RERBRAF

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
R E
GER)

20.00

30.00

20.00

30.00

15.00

8.00

20.00

20.00

80.00

34.32

14.07

0.80

13.00

2.50

20.00

327.69

Interest
(%)
Rz
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

70.00

70.00

60.00

100.00

100.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(MW)
RanERAE
GEE)

20.00

30.00

20.00

30.00

15.00

8.00

20.00

20.00

80.00

34.32

0.56

2.50

20.00

318.03



HYPROPOWER
KNEE

DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS
HE 7 fhE

Attributable

Installed Installed
Capacity Interest Capacity
No. Project Name Operating Entity (MW) (%) (MW)
KERE Em  EREEAE
wmIE AR B ENL GkR) (%) GkR)
37 Fujian Shaxikou Project CPI (Fujian) Power Development Limited* 300.00 100.00 300.00
RESEOIAR TERBBEHREFRAAF]
38 Fujian Niutoushan Project Fujian Shouning Niutoushan Hydropower 115.00 52.00 59.80
BEFHELIER Company Limited*
BESEFHIIKEERRA
39 Fujian Zhangping Huakou Project Zhangping Huakou Hydropower 36.60 100.00 36.60
BREFENIER Company Limited*
BEEMEAKERRRA
40 Chongging Meixihe Project Chongqing Meixihe River Hydropower 129.00 100.00 129.00
EEETIER Development Company Limited*
BEEARSKEREERAR
41 Yunnan Yingjiang Hongfu Industrial Project Yingjiang Hongfu Industrial Company 64.00 100.00 64.00
EHRTREEEER Limited*
BRIBEEEARAF
42 Yunnan Yingjiang Huimin Project Yingjiang Huimin Hydropower Development 6.40 100.00 6.40
EEEIERER Company Limited*
BIGERKERBEERAA
Sub-total of hydropower projects KAEBEEBIEE N 651.00 595.80
= FP a6
&) EitEEeR
Attributable
Installed Installed
Capacity Interest Capacity
No. Project Name Operating Entity (MW) (%) (MW)
KERE #iE  ERRERE
w9 RERB P E N CKR) (%) GKR)
43 Jiangsu Hongze Biomass Project China Power (Hongze) Biomass Thermal 15.00 100.00 16.00
IERLEEYEIER Power Company Limited*
PEOE)EMEREFRAR
44 Jiangsu Hongze Thermal Power Project China Power (Hongze) Thermal Power 6.00 60.00 3.60
AELEREIRR Company Limited*
REE)RERRAA
Sub-total of other clean energy projects HABZRERIAR N5t 21.00 18.60
Aggregate Amount of Controlled Projects AEEBEEEREE A
in Operation of the Group’ 3,935.19 3,865.45
Note 1: The sub-total of wind power projects and the aggregate amount of M1 BAOBEEE DT RODESERIAL A

TEELEERER Kk LEFRAIARE -

controlled projects in operation did not include Shanghai Sea Wind
Project and Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Project.

ANNUALREPORT 2018 11
FR 2018
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

2018 was a year of challenges for China Power Clean Energy.
We always abide by the mission of a listed company and
earnestly fulfil our promises to create value for shareholders
and create clean energy for the society. In the past year,
the Group was committed to its principal business, actively
responded to China’s energy system reform, new strategies
of Group’s development and other changes. We prevailed
over unfavourable factors such as the reduction in water
flow volume for hydropower generation, increase supply
in power generation in the market, drop in natural gas
tariff and inflating fuel prices. We strived to strengthen our
operational management and maintain stable operating
results.

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2018

2018 saw China Power Clean Energy maintain its stable
development. During the year, China Power Clean Energy
recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB185,323,000, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 53.9%. Such decrease was primarily
attributable to multiple adverse factors such as the drop
in natural gas tariff, increase in fuel costs and significant
reduction in water flow volume for hydropower generation.
Profit from the natural gas power and hydropower
generation segment decreased by 75.2% and 186.2%
year-on-year, respectively. The Company achieved a
better performance in actively striving for a larger share
of power generation in the market and lowering the wind
and photovoltaic power curtailment rate, which has, to a
certain extent, slowed down the adverse effects of tariff
policies and climate conditions on our performance. In 2018,
the Company accounted for 42% of the power generation
in the market, representing a year-on-year increase of 10
percentage points. The accumulated curtailment rates
of wind and photovoltaic power were 20.4% and 1.1%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.6 percentage
points and 3 percentage points, respectively. Profits from
the wind power segment amounted to approximately
RMB289,464,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
71.7%, respectively, which contributed to our profit. During
the year, the Company generated 10,135,282.52 MWh of
electricity in total.

EHWEFURER :

2018 F RARENBRERODHES
WE K —F - ZMHL T%Trim"jﬁ’l
B VVERBITAKRREIEEE - At
FREBRERNARL - EBE—F

AEERTEE  BIREHBEKRERE

I H B 2 %I%XJE%&E%H ERe
1 - mw%xmw\\ %Eii
pIIR BETH  REHER ERET
Z‘IJI%%L. BILZEETE - &R E
z«hL/JEg

2018F X FE

20184 » AR E HBRERFRETF

BERE -FR - AEENERERE
%%ZS’AET%EEAJE{EiﬁT&%IJ%’U/\Eﬁ%
185,323,000 7T ° HttTB¢53 9% -
ZRACHRIT RKARELEEE Tuﬂ
BB AR A RKERKANERLDES
BETARAEFE  |F - KEREFH
A5 R T F575.2% &% 186.2% : A Al
EREGFRTHEES Wl?ﬂfﬁﬁﬂﬁ
HIRERFEEE TERAMMK -
BEERETEEBEEK 'ﬁﬂﬂﬂ#ﬁ%
BTN E - 20185 - AalhMLEE
1H42% @ RILLIES10EE D8 0 25
B2 BAEHFNE20.4%%1.1% [
LETFE11.6 R3MEE D2 - RERE G
F#) AR #289,464,0007T @ [F b 18 hn
71.7% * BETFBEZEBER - FR
KRARIEEEH5T10,135,282.52K
=)
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

During the year, the Group continued to increase the
proportion of its waste-to-energy power generation and
natural gas power generation projects, with the industrial
layout optimised on an ongoing basis. In 2018, the Group
had a controlled installed capacity of 3,935.19MW and an
additional installed capacity of 31.76MW. Operation also
commenced as planned for Guiyang Environmental Waste-
to-Energy Power Project (with an installed capacity of
24.0MW) and Zhejiang Yunhe Photovoltaic Power Project
(with an installed capacity of 7.76 MW). In 2018, the Group
also obtained approval for Shandong Dezhou 240.0MW
Natural Gas Thermal Power Joint Production Project,
Hongze Sanhe 77.0MW Natural Gas Distributed Energy
Project, Shandong Tai’erzhuang Environmental 10.0MW
Power Project, Jilin Panshi 18.0MW Environmental Power
Project and Hebei Handan Yongnian 24.0MW Environmental
Power Project, which had a total approved capacity of
369.0MW. The Group obtained franchise rights for Hubei
Huanggang 24.0MW, Hubei Huangmei 18.0MW, Hainan
Wenchang 12.0MW, Heilongjiang Keshan County 9.0MW
Environmental Power Projects, and development rights
for Phase Il of Hubei Chunyangshan 40.0MW Wind Power
Project and Anhui Huaining Lashu 50.0MW Wind Power
Project. Jiangsu Xiangshui 50.0MW Wind Power Project has
been included in the 2018 Wind Power Development and
Construction Plan by Jiangsu Development and Reform
Commission. At the same time, the Group has made steady
progress in project engineering quality and obtained the
“2018 China Power Quality Project Award” (20184 [EH
B NEE TEH) for the Wu Hu China Power Environmental
Power Project.

In 2018, with the strong support of all shareholders and the
joint efforts of all staff, China Power Clean Energy managed
to control the decline and maintain stable operating results,
and completed its works as expected in this difficult year,
under the impacts of many unfavourable factors. | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders on
behalf of the Board and all the officers and staff!

PROSPECT FOR OPERATIONS IN 2019

China will continue pushing for high-quality development
in 2019. On one hand, China has made new achievements
in building an energy sector that is clean, low-carbon,
safe and efficient, and taken new strides in promoting
the high-quality development of the energy industry.
Cost of new energy power generation is declining; wind
power and photovoltaic power are undergoing a transition
from the subsidy era to the parity era, which brings both

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

FR - NEBEBEL NS FIRIREE -
FARBEEBE LA EEXEMBRE
BB - 2018F  AEEIEBREERE
#3,935.19KF  FIZRKA=E31.76
KE - EGBIRIRIREEEE (RHAE
24.0KE) ~ MIEMNRIBE (EERS
£7.76KE) INEETEIRE © 20184 -
AN E B EZ LR EMN 240.0IK LR AT 2R
BHMEIER  HE=077.0kRRAAR
AMANEEREE - ILERARBHIRR10.0
KEBEEEE - EMER18.0KERR
BEIFEE UL HBEN K F 24. 0K FLIRIR
BEIEE 2 - BT ERZERES69.0
JKE o BV MAE | 24.00K R « b=
18.00KF - BEXE12.0KE - BiE
T U820.0KFIRIREE B IH B BrFEe
HE o BUSRAbaE G 1L — Bi40.0k R E
BB ZEEBEEES50.0kERAEHREE
FIEEHE - TR E/K50.0k LA EE B 5
MNIBEENE2018FEEREMAER
FR-FAR - AEBEFEEIREEN
BIRBLRA - PP ERREEIER
LE[2018FERRENEL TR -

20184 + EFT BRI RN H -
BIMERB AT PRAENBRER
AHBLZTHEE - BHEREHF DMK
Bt & N BRE  FREERE
TR TEBMSIEIE T  HER
REZREZERITET  MBRERIA
SEBOHE

L:2:}
-]

2019 TERE

019FEHFUEHRESTERR L
Fo—TH BREEBZBIRER %
ERMHEERER LRGSR - E
HBEREXSHEXRBLHI X
FEERBEEXATIE - BE - RAREL
EREHRERAATESREE 8%
K- BABENEREEFERES - i
KEXRHHE « AKBEXRERB2019%F



LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

challenges and great opportunities to the development
of photovoltaic and wind power generation. The National
Energy Administration’s target to ensure a further rise in
the national average utilisation rates of wind power and
photovoltaic power in 2019, which will further improve the
profitability of wind and photovoltaic power segments.
On the other hand, China aims to further increase the
traded power volume in the market, and to promote the
participation of different market entities in the market-
based electricity transactions. Accordingly, the on-grid
tariffs of wind power, natural gas power, hydropower and
photovoltaic power segments are likely to show a decline
trend, affecting the efficiency of power generation. Overall,
the “13th Five-Year Plan” has brought both challenges
and opportunities to the new energy industry. We will
continue to comply with the new development concept
and stick to the supply-side structural reform as the
underlying principle. On top of that and with reference to
the strategic goal of “building a world-class clean energy
enterprise”, the Group will work harder on acquiring new
energy resources, continue to optimise its industrial layout
and deliver economies of scale in its region. We will also be
engaged in greater development of waste-to-energy power
projects, and accelerate the Phase Il expansion work of
qualified waste-to-energy environmental power projects,
so as to sharpen the competitive edges of the segment.
The Group will promote the coordinated development of
its existing projects in the region for wind and photovoltaic
power projects. Relying on the existing environmental power
projects, we will take the initiative to explore opportunities
for the development of veinous industrial parks, and attempt
to develop power projects which generate electricity with
medical waste, food waste and sludge treatment. We will
continue to strengthen our safety production, project
construction and other areas of basic management, work on
team building and staff capability development, continue to
improve our management and asset quality, and enhance
industrial efficiency.

I firmly believe that all of the Company’s management
and staff will adhere to the core value of “innovation
and creation, continuous endeavor and harmonious
coexistence”, the entrepreneurial spirit of “green innovation
and deployment” and the striver-oriented concept. We
will take the initiative to overcome difficulties, continue
to adhere to the new development concept, persist
in promoting high-quality development, and return
outstanding achievements to shareholders and the society.

ERRESRTE2EVFHORENAEX
KRRBEEMARNER L E—FE
MEAE - ARBERBOMEEM - 5
—H - BRERE-FRSTHLER
SEERE  HESEMSIRIEE
TSRS AE - RE - KE - %
RESHRR LBEERS TEHER &
FERENG - BRMmE [T=01Y
FTEERERM S B EEBA T - B
BRI ERIED - BEFAMHRGA
HER/EIHR  BRAKE[ZRER—R
BRBEIREE INEEE B R - IIKHEER
BREDRNE  HEEBCEEMR B
MR R R - AR FIRREER
BNE - AREGREONTRRESIAE
IR AR TAE - E NITERE
B BHBE  RRBEFHB ML
EEERREBRER  KESEHR
RECEIAR IG5 P IRE X B B
g ERBEEAR  EFAR SRR
BEVHEMNBEEERR - HESELRELE
B TIREREEREE - FOIHK
hERMETRENER  THRRRERE
KF - RBAEEEE @ BEXR W -

BEEARREEEEEREIEAE
[BIFTRIE - HEEM - FIREEE M
DEE BERE [ #OAFERIN
EREWS - WEMEAZLR - EElm
O BEREFREES  BEEIHS
BERE  NERKEDLREE - B3R
e o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
i} 2018

15



16

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
EE  SAEEERQAAMEES

Tian Jun

H#

Non-Executive Director

FHUTES

Bornin 1966
AR 19664

Be appointed as a
non-executive director
of the Company since
27 March 2019
B201943H27H
BZERAKRAT
FERITES

Position in the Group
Nomination Committee — Chairman

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
— Director

Qualifications
Professor level senior engineer

Master of engineering degree — Taiyuan University
of Technology

Other major offices
China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Executive Director and President

China Power International Holding Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) —
Director and General Manager

Past Offices
Hejin Power Branch of Shanxi Zhangze Electric
Power Co., Ltd. — General Manager

CPI Power Operation Co., Ltd. — Deputy General
Manager and Chief Engineer

CPI Xinjiang Energy Co.,
Manager

Ltd. — Deputy General

State Power Investment Corporation Limited —
Deputy Director of the Safety and Environmental
Protection Supervision Department

State Power Investment Corporation Yuanda
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (SSEC: 600292)
— Director and General Manager (resigned in April
2017)

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Vice Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive Officer

EESREREREREITE

He Hongxin
AL

Executive Director

HBiTES

Bornin 1970
£R1970F

Joined the Group as
adirector since

1 April 2013, and
designated as an
executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
B2013F4H1H
MAREERES -
WH 201745 A
BERRARR
WITESE

Other positions in the Group
Investment and Budget Management Committee —
Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications

Financial Accounting — Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (formerly known as Zhongnan
University of Finance and Economics), Bachelor’s
degree

Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
— Peking University, Master’s degree

Other major offices

China Three Gorges Corporation (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) — Head of the Asset
Finance Department (since June 2017) and Group
Deputy Chief Accountant (since November 2018)

Bank of Beijing Company Limited (SSEC: 601169) —
Director (since 25 December 2018)

China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd (SSEC: 600900) —
Director (since 28 December 2018)

Past offices

No. 1 Smelting Plant of Maanshan Iron & Steel
Company Limited — Accountant of the Finance
Division

China Three Gorges Corporation Limited — Chief
Officer of the Financial Department; Deputy Head,
Head and Chief Auditor of the Asset Finance and
Accounting Department; Deputy Manager of the Capital
Finance Department; and Deputy Manager of the Asset
Finance Department

China Three Gorges New Energy Co., Ltd. — Deputy
General Manager
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Other Directors

HittE=E

He Lianhui

fAsE

Executive Director

HiTES

Born in 1970
£ 19704

Be appointed as

an executive director of
the Company since

27 March 2019
B2019F3A27H#
BZERERAR
WITES

Position in the Group

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications
Senior Accountant

Master degree in accounting — Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics

Other major offices
China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Financial Controller

China Power International Holding Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company) — Financial
Controller

Past Offices
Jilin Power Supply Bureau — Chief Accountant

Jilin Province Electric Power Company Limited —
Deputy Head of the Finance Department

China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Deputy Chief Accountant

China Power International Holding Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company) — General
Manager of the Finance and Property Management
Department and the Finance Department and Deputy
Chief Accountant

Wu Ling Power Corporation — Financial Controller

Hunan Branch of SPIC — Financial Controller

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Sun Guigen

BER

Executive Director

BITES

Bornin 1966
HER19664F

Joined as directors of
subsidiaries of the Group
and general manager

of China Power
International New Energy
Holding Limited since
August 2016,

and appointed as an
Executive Director

of the Company since

27 March 2019
H20165F8 A IMAREE
EEMBARIZEER

A E B BT s RIE R
BIRAE 2 AR - W
201963 A27AEZ T A
RRBITES

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
ES s EEERLARNEER

Position in the Group
Investment and Budget Management Committee of
the Company — Chairman

China Power International New Energy Holding
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) — General Manager

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
— Director

Directors of various subsidiaries of the Group

Qualifications
Senior Engineer

Master of business administration degree —
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics

Other major offices
China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Vice President

China Power International Holding Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company) — Deputy
General Manager

Past Offices
China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Chief Engineer

China Power International Holding Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company) — Chief
Engineer

Jiangsu Changshu Electric Power Generating
Company Limited — Deputy Chairman

Sichuan CPI Fuxi Power Company Limited —
Chairman

Hunggang Dabieshan Power Company Limited —
General Manager

China Power Maintenance Engineering Company
Limited — Deputy General Manager

Anhui Huainan Pingwei Electric Power Company
Limited — Deputy General Manager
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Qi Tengyun

Executive Director

HITES

Bornin 1969
H R 1969F

Joined the Group
as a director since
19 August 2014, and
designated as an
executive director
of the Company

in May 2017
B2014%8A19H &
MATEBRRES -
WR20174F5A4
EEmRARRA
WITES

Other positions in the Group
Deputy General Manager of the Company

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications

Mining Machinery — Shandong University of Science
and Technology (formerly known as Shandong Institute
of Mining and Technology), Bachelor’s degree

Management Science and Engineering — China
University of Mining and Technology, Master’s degree

Other major offices
China Power International New Energy Holding Limited
— Deputy General Manager

China Three Gorges Corporation (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) — Deputy General
Manager of General Office (the office of the Board)
(Since January 2017)

Past offices

Shandong University of Science and Technology
(formerly known as Shandong Institute of Mining and
Technology) — Deputy minister of the department of
students affairs and deputy head of the student affairs’
office; Head of department of student associations
affairs of the Qingdao campus

China International Water & Electric Corp. — Deputy
Head of the General Manager Office; Assistant
Manager of the Department of General Affairs

China International Water & Electric Co., Ltd* —
Assistant Manager of the Department of General
Affairs

China Water Investment Group Corp.* — Head of the
General Manager Office; Committee member of the
commission for discipline inspection; Secretary of the
youth league committee

China Three Gorges New Energy Co., Ltd.* (formerly
known as China Water Investment Group Corp.*) —
Assistant to General Manager

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Zhou Jiong
k)

Non-Executive Director

FHTES

Bornin 1960
HER19604F

Be appointed as a
non-executive director
of the Company since
18 August 2017
B2017%8H18H &
BZERARAT
FMITES

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
ES s EEERLARNEER

Other positions in the Group

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications
Business Administration — University of Western
Sydney in Australia, Master’s degree

Other major offices
CNOOC Investment Co., Ltd. — General Manager (since
July 2017)

CNOOC International Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.* —
President (since July 2017)

Past offices
CNOOC Bohai Oil Corporation* — Accountant of
External Cooperation Department

Japan-China Oil Development Corporation* —
Accountant

CNOOC-0TIS Well Completion Services Ltd.* —
Financial Manager

China Offshore Oil (Singapore) Internal Pte Ltd —
Financial Manager

CNOOC — Financing Manager of Treasury Department

CNOOC Finance Corporation Ltd. — Manager of
Treasury Department; Chief Accountant

Zhonghai Trust Co., Ltd. — Vice President; Deputy
Secretary of Party Committee; Secretary of Discipline
Inspection Commission; Chief Financial Officer
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Chu Kar Wing
RER

Independent

Non-Executive Director

BIFHNTES

Born in 1957
£R19574

Joined the Group

as a director since

23 December 2002,
and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company

in May 2017
B20024 12 A23H %8
MAREERESE -
WH201745A
BEGARRAR

B IEITES

Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Chairman

Remuneration Committee — Chairman
Nomination Committee — Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
— Director

Qualifications
Social science majoring in economics — Bachelor’s
degree

Other major offices

Emperor Capital Group Limited (HKEx: 717) —
Independent Non-Executive Director (since May
2010)

Public service
Canada-China Culture and Education Association —
President

Other information
Extensive experience in the banking and finance
sector

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Li Fang
£

Independent

Non-Executive Director

BUFBTES

Bornin 1962
HR19624F

Joined the Group
as a director since
7 July 2011,

and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company

in May 2017
B201167RA7HE
MAXEEREE -
WH20174F5A
BEGAART]
BUERTES
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Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Member

Remuneration Committee — Member
Nomination Committee — Member

Investment and Budget Management Committee —
Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications
Engineering — Beijing University of Science and
Technology, Bachelor’s degree

Law — Arizona State University, United States,
Juris doctoral degree

Other major offices

China Power International Development Limited (HKEx:
2380) — Independent Non-executive Director (since
March 2004)

Qinhuangdao Chincell-Town Food Co., Ltd* (NEEQ:
872370) — Director (since January 2017)

Past offices
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. — Executive Director

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, United States — Lawyer

Beijing Soft Rock Investment Group Corporation
(SZSE: 000609, formerly known as Beijing Mainstreets
Investment Group Corporation) — Director (resigned on
15 December 2016)

Guangdong Guanhao High-tech Co., Ltd (SSEC:
600433) — Director (resigned on 7 June 2017)

Other information
Extensive experience in business management and
corporate finance
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Wong Kwok Tai
BEF

Independent
Non-Executive Director

BIFHNTES

Bornin 1938
£A19384

Joined the Group
as a director since
27 September 2004,
and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
B2004F9A27H
MAREERES -
WH2017F5A

B RARE
BAUIENITES

Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Member

Remuneration Committee — Member
Nomination Committee — Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications
Certified Public Accountant (Practising)

Other major offices
W. Wong Consultancy Limited (formerly known as
W. Wong CPA Limited) — Director (since August 2010)

Past offices
China Solar Energy Holdings Limited (HKEx: 155) —
Director (resigned on 16 May 2015)

CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (HKEx: 1141, formerly
known as Mission Capital Holdings Limited) —
Independent Non-executive Director (resigned on 30
July 2015)

State Energy Group International Assets Holdings
Limited (HKEx: 918, formerly known as Takson
Holdings Limited) — Independent Non-executive
Director (resigned on 22 November 2016)

Winshine Science Company Limited (HKEx: 209,
formerly known as Winshine Entertainment & Media
Holding Company Limited) — Independent Non-
Executive Director (resigned on 18 December 2017)

Other information
Extensive experience in the audit and finance areas in
different industries

24  CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Ng Yi Kum
hm=E

Independent

Non-Executive Director

BUFBTES

Bornin 1957
HR19574

Joined the Group

as a director since
28 June 2013,

and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
B2013F6A28H &
MAXEEREE -
WH20174F5A
BEGAART]
BUERTES

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Member

Remuneration Committee — Member
Nomination Committee — Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) —
Director

Qualifications
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales — Fellow

The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
— Associate

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants —
Fellow

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants —
Fellow

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants —
Member

Master of Business Administration (MBA) — The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, Master’s
degree

Other major offices

Comba Telecom System Holdings Limited (HKEx: 2342)
— Independent Non-executive Director (since March
2019)

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (HKEx: 882) —
Independent Non-executive Director (since July 2010)

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (HKEx:
417) — Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer
(since July 2015); Company Secretary (since August
2015); Executive Director and Deputy Chairman (since
December 2015)

Past offices

Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(HKEx: 2882) — Independent Non-Executive Director
(resigned on 31 July 2015)

China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited
(delisted from the NASDAQ in the United States on
10 August 2015, stock code: CMGE) — Independent
Director (resigned on the delisting date of the company)

DS Healthcare Group, Inc. (delisted from the NASDAQ
in the United States on 23 December 2016, stock code:
DSKX) — Independent Director (resigned on 16 May
2017)
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ES  SNER

Senior Management
BREERE

Chen Xuezhi
FREX

Chief Financial Officer

EEMBE

Bornin 1968
£ 19684

Joined the Group
since 2009
B2009F EEMAKREER

Company Secretary
REANE

Fung Chun Nam
iR

Company Secretary

NEWE

Bornin 1975
£R19754

Joined the Group
since 2009
B2009F R INARER

BRARMEER

Other positions in the Group

China Power International New Energy Holding Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
— Deputy General Manager and Financial Controller

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Qualifications
Senior Accountant

Accounting — Fuzhou University, Bachelor’s degree

Business Administration — Capital University of
Economics and Business, Postgraduate

Past offices

China Power International Holding Limited (the holding
company of China Power New Energy Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company) — Deputy
General Manager (Department of Finance and Asset
Management)

China Power International Development Limited (HKEx:
2380) — Deputy General Manager (Department of
Finance and Asset Management)

Qualifications
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants —
Fellow

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants —
Fellow

Chartered Financial Analyst
Other information

Extensive experience in company secretarial,
accounting and audit areas in various industries

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The principal activities of the Group at present are the
development, construction, owning and management of
clean energy power plants in China, including but not limited
to wind power generation, hydropower generation, natural
gas power generation, photovoltaic power generation,
waste-to-energy power generation and other clean energy
power generation projects. As of 31 December 2018, the
number of power generation plants owned or controlled by
the Group within China has reached 41, which are scattered
in 23 provinces, including Guangdong, Fujian, Gansu,
Jiangsu and Chongging, etc., and the electricity generated
therefrom is sold to Southern Power Grid, East China Power
Grid, Northeast Power Grid and Northwest Power Grid.

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately RMB4,808,703,000
(year ended 31 December 2017: approximately
RMB4,820,975,000). The Group’s profit for the year was
approximately RMB186,101,000 (year ended 31 December
2017: approximately RMB403,846,000) and the Group
recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB185,323,000 (year ended 31 December
2017: approximately RMB401,702,000). Basic and diluted
earnings per share amounted to approximately RMB0.1562
(year ended 31 December 2017: approximately RMB0.3385).

On 28 July 2018, the Company received a letter from SPIC
informing the Company that, having regard to the time
that elapsed as from the signing of the memorandum of
understanding on 30 December 2015, SPIC considered
there to be material uncertainty as to the obtaining of
governmental and regulatory approvals in the PRC for the
Possible Transaction and the related internal reorganization
of the SPIC Group, and SPIC has therefore decided not to
proceed with the Possible Transaction. Accordingly, the
offer period in relation to the Possible Transaction, which
commenced on 8 January 2016, closed on 23 July 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The installed power capacity of clean energy in China has
continued to grow in 2018. There was faster growth in
the power generation from new energy sources such as
photovoltaic, wind and biomass power, with a significant
improvement in wind and photovoltaic curtailment. In
certain provinces, zero curtailment rates of wind and
photovoltaic power were recorded. During the year, the
installed power generation capacity of clean energy was
1.87 trillion kWh, which accounted for 26.7% of the total
power generation, representing a year-on-year increase
of 0.2 percentage points. With regard to the power supply
structure, the energy structure will gain an increasing
proportion in green and clean energy. In the future, the
proportion of hydropower, wind power, photovoltaic power
and gas power generation will continue to increase.

Stepping into the third year of the “13th Five-Year Plan” with
respect to power development, China’s power system reform
continued to develop into multiple business models. China
enhanced the competitive allocation mechanism for new
energy projects, optimised the construction distribution of
wind and photovoltaic power generation, promoted the grid
parity of renewable energy such as wind and photovoltaic
power, supported the development of distributed wind and
photovoltaic power and continued to reinforce the initiatives
for renewable energy consumption, all of which yielded
significant results. In 2018, there was a continued growth in
the traded power volume in the national electricity market,
with the traded volume amounting to 2,065.4 billion kWh,
representing a year-on-year increase of 26.5%. This helped
to notably relieve the wind and photovoltaic curtailment
within China. The national average wind curtailment
rate was 7%, representing a year-on-year decrease of
5 percentage points; average photovoltaic curtailment
rate was 3%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.8
percentage points.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Guided by the “13th Five-Year Plan”, the scale of the
installed power generation capacity for renewable energy
nationwide has steadily expanded. In 2018, additional
installed power generation capacity for renewable energy
amounted to 83.11 million kW, which accounted for 67%
of the total additional installed power generation capacity.
On the other hand, the country will continue to develop its
national carbon emission trading market, and implement the
protective buyouts and green certificate systems. Besides,
the country launched parity grid demonstration for wind
power and continued to promote its regional power market
reform, which resulted in a further increase in discount
to profits. By 2020, China is expected to fully activate its
electricity spot market mechanism, creating sufficient
competition among market players on the side of electricity
sales. In the next few years, China’s demand for electricity
will maintain a recovering upward momentum, with power
supply and demand to remain largely stable.

According to the data from the National Energy Administration,
in 2018, national power consumption was 6,844.9 billion
kWh, representing an increase of 8.5% year on year.
Specifically, the hydropower, wind power and photovoltaic
power accounted for 1.2 trillion kWh, 366 billion kWh and
177.5 billion kWh respectively, representing a year-on-year
increase of 3.2%, 20% and 50% respectively; and biomass
power accounted for 90.6 billion kWh, representing a year-
on-year increase of 14%. The total capacity of national
power generation equipment amounted to 1,899.67
million kW, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.5%.
Specifically, the total capacity of grid-connected wind
power amounted to 184.26 million kW, representing a
year-on-year increase of 12.4%; and the total capacity of
grid-connected photovoltaic power amounted to 174.63
million kW, representing a year-on-year increase of 33.9%.
During the year, national average utilisation amounted to
3,862 hours, increasing by 73 hours year-on-year. Specifically,
the average utilisation of thermal power, wind power and
hydropower were 4,367 hours, 2,095 hours and 3,613 hours,
representing a year-on-year increase of 143 hours, 147 hours
and 16 hours respectively. In 2018, the national installed
capacity of thermal power, hydropower, wind power and
photovoltaic power were approximately 1,140 million kW, 350
million kW, 180 million kW and 170 million kW, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW FOR 2018

In 2018, the Group’s power generation was 10,135,282.52MWh,
representing an increase of 1.96% as compared with the same
period last year. Such increase was primarily attributable
to (i) the year-on-year increase in annual power generation
of the wind power segment of 27.19% resulted from the
good wind conditions of the wind power segment and the
significant drop in wind power curtailment rate; (ii) the year-
on-year increase in annual power generation of the waste-
to-energy segment of 50.74% due to the full year operation of
Anhui Wuhu Project and the commencement of operation of
Guizhou Guiyang Project in February; and (iii) the increase in
annual power generation of the photovoltaic power segment
of 156.09% due to the commencement of operation of the
additional capacity of Zhejiang Yunhe Project and the decrease
in loss from photovoltaic power curtailment. Although (i) there
was a year-on-year decrease in annual power generation of
the hydropower segment of 27.92% due to the decrease in
water flow volume in Fujian area; and (ii) there was a year-
on-year decrease in annual power generation of Guangdong
Dongguan Project of 4.36% due to the “West-to-East Power
Transmission” and the decrease in natural gas supply,
considering all the factors above, the power generation of 2018
was still on the rise.

In 2018, the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB185,323,000, representing
a decrease of 53.9% compared to the same period last year.
Such decrease was primarily attributable to: (i) the drop
in natural gas tariff; (ii) the rise in unit price of natural gas
resulting in the increase in production costs of natural gas
projects; and (iii) the decrease in power generation resulted
from the significant decrease in rainfall in Fujian where the
hydropower projects are located.

On the other hand, the Company achieved a better
performance in actively striving for a larger share of
power generation in the market and lowering the wind and
photovoltaic power curtailment rate, which enhanced the
profitability of wind and photovoltaic power generation.
In 2018, the Company accounted for 42% of the power
generation in the market, representing a year-on-year
increase of 10 percentage points. The accumulated
curtailment rates of wind and photovoltaic power were
20.4% and 1.1%, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 11.6 percentage points and 3 percentage points,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group innovated a project development model which
enables it to identify the development priorities and tracking
projects. During the year, the Group obtained franchise
rights for Tai’erzhuang, Huanggang, Huangmei, Wenchang
and Keshan County Environmental Power Projects, and
development rights for Phase Il of Chunyangshan and
Anhui Huaining Lashu Wind Power Projects. Jiangsu
Xiangshui Wind Power Project has been included in 2018
Wind Power Development and Construction Plan by Jiangsu
Development and Reform Commission. Shandong Dezhou
Natural Gas Thermal Power Joint Production Project,
Hongze Sanhe Natural Gas Distributed Energy Project,
Tai’erzhuang Environmental Power Project, Jilin Panshi
Environmental Power Project and Hebei Handan Yongnian
Environmental Power Project were approved, which had a
total approved capacity of 369.0MW.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has 13 projects under
construction, which comprised 1 natural gas power project,
9 waste-to-energy power projects, 1 wind power project,
1 biomass power project and 1 coal power project. During
the year, Guiyang Environmental Power Project and Yunhe
Photovoltaic Power Project commenced operation, which
had a total capacity of 31.76MW. In strict accordance
with the requirements of “regulation of quality standards,
visualization of handover and refinement of operation
process”, the Group organised and conducted specialised
inspections for mass concrete pouring quality and quality
supervision at key nodes. The Group also strengthened its
engineering process management and steadily promoted the
construction process. In 2018, we obtained the “2018 China
Power Quality Project Award” (2018 EFREHE HEE T24)
for the Wu Hu China Power Environmental Power Project.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s projects under
construction had an installed capacity of 772.0MW.

In 2018, the Group promoted its implementation of
safe production, and compiled a list of safe production
accountability system covering all positions, resulting
in a further implementation of the safe production
accountability system. The Group organised and conducted
assessments related to production safety. To strengthen
the all-round supervision, a project safety management
support system has been fully implemented for the
infrastructure unit. The Group reinforced its supervision
and management for tendering, admission and licensing
of the contractors. Besides, the Group also stepped up its
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

efforts in investigation and management of hidden dangers,
strengthen safety education and training, implemented the
safe production accountability system, and prevented safety
accidents through various safety precautions. During the
year, the safety conditions of infrastructure and production
were stable and under control.

BASIC SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Natural Gas Power Projects

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s controlled installed
capacity of natural gas power in operation was 1,300.0MW,
with annual power generation of 4,400,336.0MWh,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.36%. The
decrease in power generation was primarily due to (i) the
overall amount of power generated in Guangdong Province
decreased gradually month-on-month attributable to the
“West-to-East Power Transmission”, and that the amount
of power generated by the Dongguan natural gas projects
has dropped; and (ii) the decrease in natural gas supply.
The natural gas power segment remains an important profit
source for the Group. During the year, the power generation
of this segment accounted for 43.42% of the Group’s total
power generation. The current capacity under construction
of the segment was 400.0MW (Guangdong Dongguan Lisha
Island Project). The project is progressing as planned and is
expected to commence operation in 2019.

Waste-to-Energy Power Projects

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s controlled installed
capacity of waste-to-energy power in operation was
126.0MW, with annual power generation of 790,185.50MWh,
representing an increase of 50.74% compared with last year.
Waste processed amounted to 2,047,000.0 tons. The growth
in the segment was primarily due to the commencement of
operation of additional capacity of Guizhou Guiyang Project
(24.0MW). The power generation of this segment accounted
for approximately 7.80% of the Group’s total power
generation. The current capacity of the segment under
construction is 227.0MW, 96.0MW of which is expected to
complete construction and commence operation in 2019.

Wind Power Projects

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s controlled installed
capacity of wind power in operation was 1,509.50MW, with
annual power generation of 2,822,421.12MWh, representing
an increase of 27.19% compared with last year. Hubei
Macheng Chunyangshan Wind Power Project with an
installed capacity of 80.0MW commenced operation at full
capacity. During the period, the wind power curtailment
rate of the Group’s wind power projects was 20.40%,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

representing a significant decrease when compared with
37.20% for last year. The power generation of this segment
accounted for 27.85% of the Group’s total power generation.
The current capacity under construction of the segment was
100.0MW.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s controlled installed
capacity of photovoltaic power in operation was 327.69MW,
with annual power generation of 467,049.0MWh,
representing an increase of 15.09% when compared with
last year. The growth in the segment was primarily due to
the commencement of operation of additional capacity of
Zhejiang Yunhe Project (7.76MW); and larger increase in
light radiation of Phase Il of Gansu Wuwei Project and Fujian
Zhangpu Project. The photovoltaic power curtailment rate
was 1.10% for the Group’s photovoltaic power projects,
representing an improvement as compared with 4.20% for
the same period last year. During the period, the power
generation of this segment accounted for 4.61% of the
Group’s total power generation.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s controlled installed
capacity of hydropower in operation was 651.0MW, with
annual power generation of 1,553,657.30MWh, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 27.92%. The decrease in power
generation of the segment was primarily because the year-
on-year decrease in water flow volume in Fujian district
affected the power generation of hydropower projects.
During the year, the power generation of this segment
accounted for 15.33% of the Group’s total power generation.

PLAN FOR 2019

With the continuous implementation of the “13th Five-
Year Plan” and the further deepening of the power market
reform, the macro-economy is expected to grow at a stable
but slightly slower pace and the development of the industry
will continue to be under pressure given the influence of the
continued supply-side structural reform of the domestic
market. Against such backdrop, power demand is evolving
in the direction of “slower growth, structural optimisation
and change of growth drivers”, whereas power supply is
“largely abundant, excessive in some areas, and sufficient
to meet the demand”. The Company will maintain its
strategic strength, stay focus on the clean energy industry,
and continue to explore the electricity market according
to government policies and market demands, and adopt
a down-to-earth attitude to grow such business that has
stable profitability. The Company will continue to focus
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

on the environmental protection industry, keep an eye
on the opportunities of industrial synergy, and carry out
coordinated treatment and recycling of urban pollutants;
study clean energy policies and market trends, and focus
on subsidies for renewable energy and electricity market
transactions (including quotas, spot, power generation
rights, green certificates, and carbon emissions),
incremental distribution networks and other market
hotspots; track the latest technological progress of clean
energy, step up the harmless treatment and co-processing
of domestic waste, increase the capacity and efficiency
of obsolete photovoltaic power plants, and integrate
technical resources such as energy storage; continue to
conduct international business research and track project
opportunities in neighboring countries, especially those in
Southeast Asia. In this regard, the Company aims to become
a model enterprise in the industry.

The Company’s key task in 2019 remains primarily on the
development of environmentally-friendly power projects.
The Company will give priority to the expansion and
radiation of stock projects to peripheral regions, continue
to optimise the industrial layout, and continuously bring out
regional scale benefits; vigorously develop environmental
power generation, continue to develop large-scale waste-
to-energy projects in prefecture-level cities and across
regions, keep an eye on small-scale projects in county-
level regions, and continuously increase market share;
track the recycling industrial projects that focus on
domestic waste incineration and power generation with
coordinated treatment of food waste, sludge and medical
waste, and explore construction projects of joint treatment
of waste incineration and biomass power generation. To
steadily promote gas power generation, the Company
will promote distributed energy projects of natural gas in
mature key cities, and encourage production diversification
by appropriately matching heat supply with installed
power capacity. The Company will develop its wind and
photovoltaic power segments in an orderly manner
by expanding and establishing wind power projects in
southeastern regions, and establish reserve projects of wind
and photovoltaic power as appropriate in western regions,
particularly those adjacent to the corridor of high-voltage
electricity transmission.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY TASKS IN 2019

Overcoming operational difficulties and improving its
operating results

The Group will continue to adhere to the principle of
“maximising corporate efficiency” by taking “steady”
and “growth” as its major goals, to make all-rounded
marketing efforts in the power market, strive to generate
more electricity to improve its economic efficiency, reduce
production costs, improve capital utilisation efficiency,
reduce capital redundancy and occupation, save capital
costs and improve economic benefits. For natural gas power
generation, we should strive for more valuable market
electricity while ensuring the basic electricity volume, and
at the same time, enhance the fuel cost control. For wind
and photovoltaic power projects, we should take advantages
of the current favourable situation, continue to reduce
wind and photovoltaic power curtailment rate, and further
improve its profitability. For hydropower projects, we
should reverse the decline in profitability brought about by
climate reasons, modulate water flow volume with scientific
methods, and increase water-saving and power generation
level. For waste-to-energy power generation, we should
determine the amount of waste, ensure proper operation
of generating units and improve the utilisation rate of
generating units. For projects with poor performance, we will
take targeted measures to overcome difficult situations and
strive for a rebound in efficiency.

Strictly implementing the accountability system to ensure
safe production

The Group will firmly establish the development concept
of safe production, vigorously promote the idea of “lives
and safety come first”, and continue to improve the safe
production responsibility system, supervision system
and support system. The Group will also implement safe
production accountability system, and step up its safety
supervision of key projects, key segments and key processes.
Moreover, the Group will strengthen the transformation of
generating units and ensure the reliability and safe operation
of them in order to further improve the safety risk prevention
level and the level of ecological environmental protection,
which will ensure to meet the emission standards.

Keeping up with policy orientation and looking for project
opportunities

In 2019, the Group will continue to focus on waste-to-energy
environmental power generation, and strive to sharpen the
edge of the segment. The Group will promote the coordinated
development of existing projects in the region for wind and
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BEENWNE TN

photovoltaic power projects, and accelerate the Phase Il
expansion work of qualified waste-to-energy environmental
power projects so as to establish a regional benchmark.
Relying on the existing waste-to-energy environmental
power projects, the Group will actively explore opportunities
for the development of veinous industrial parks, and attempt
to develop power projects which generate electricity from
medical waste, food waste and sludge treatment. In western
regions, particularly the corridor of ultra-high voltage
electricity transmission, the Group will look for development
opportunities for wind and photovoltaic projects. In
Jiugquan area of Gansu Province, the Group will explore
the use of wind and photovoltaic curtailment to develop
energy storage, heat supply and smart energy projects. In
the meantime, the Group will continue to focus on project
development in the “One Belt, One Road” countries and
actively pursue quality project overseas.

Constructing quality projects with quality as the core

The Group will continue to strengthen project quality
management so as to achieve high standards. Activation,
construction and commencement of operation of the
projects will strictly focus on the four requirements of
“safety, progress, quality and costs”. The Group will
coordinate and plan for the project progress, and reinforce
the whole process management of the projects. On the
premise of ensuring safety and quality, efforts will be made
to improve the progress, and the Group will strengthen
the overall investment control of projects. By reducing the
auxiliary plant area, the Group will optimise the control of
construction cost of structures and system design to ensure
projects are completed with high quality.

Attaching great importance to talent development and
improving core competitiveness of the enterprise

The Group will continue to adhere to its “people-oriented”
value concept and assignment approach by reinforcing
its talent incentive system, recruitment and assignment
mechanism, strengthening the talents pool and trainings of
professional talents, constantly optimising its workforce,
developing a talent exchange mechanism between similar
projects and further enhancing talent efficiency to
establish a stable enterprise team with unity, pragmatism,
progressiveness and aggressiveness.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROJECTS HH

During the year, the power projects in operation and those FER - ANEEEERMBAT - BELEA
under construction and owned by the Group through its FIREBTEBENNTEEBE AR

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures were as follows: MIER :
Attributable
Installed Installed Power  Utilisation
Capacity Interest Capacity ~ Generation Hours
No.  Project Name Operating Entity (MW) (%) (MW) (MWh) (hours)
EHRE i REERAE BEE AR
&% EAEH FEER (¥R) (%) (kR) (KRE) (ME)
Natural Gas Power
ARRRE
1 Phase | of Guangdong Dongguan China Power New 360.00 100.00 360.00 926,321.10 2,573
Dongguan Project Energy Heat and Power
EXRRE—HEE Company Limited*
REPENHRAEERAA
2 Phase Il of Guangdong Dongguan China Power No. 2 940.00 100.00 940.00  3,474,014.90 3,696
Dongguan Project Heat and Power Company
BRRZ_HEHR Limited*
RHEE_HEARAT
Sub-total of natural gas 1,300.00 1,300.00  4,400,336.00
power projects
AARBEEA MGt
Waste-to-Energy Power
HREE
3 Yunnan Kunming Project Kunming China Power 30.00 100.00 30.00 162,946.80 5,432
EMEREE Environmental Power
Company Limited*
ERAMERRENERAA
4 Phase | of Hainan Haikou China Power International 24.00 100.00 24.00 159,956.60 6,665
Project New Energy Hainan
B8O —HER Company Limited*
REERMREHEERAR
5 Phase Il of Hainan Haikou Haikou China Power 24.00 100.00 24,00 180,139.70 7,506
Project Environmental Protection
BEEO0_HER Company Limited*
BORERRARAT
6 Anhui Wuhu Project Wu Hu China Power 24.00 89.67 21.52 157,745.70 6,573
ZHENEE Environmental Power
Company Limited*
BT ERREBERLA
7 Guizhou Guiyang Project ' Guizhou China Power 24.00 100.00 24.00 129,396.70 5,392
EMEBER Environmental Power
Company Limited*
EMPERRESERAA
Sub-total of waste-to- 126.00 123.52 790,185.50
energy power projects
URBEEE Nt
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BEENWNE TN

No.  Project Name
&% HEEER
Wind Power
EA%E
8 Phase | of Gansu Jiuguan
Project
HEEX—HER
9 Phase Il of Gansu Jiuguan
Project
HEBR_HER
10 Phaselll of Gansu Jiuguan
Project
HEBR=H%A
" Phase IV of Gansu Jiuguan
Project
HRESNSAER
12 PhaseVof Gansu Jiuguan
Project
HREXLHER
13 Gansu Anbei Project
HERIER
14 Heilongjiang Honggi Project
RETMIEER
15 Heilongjiang Hailang Project

ERTERAR

Operating Entity
FBEf

Gansu China Power Jiuguan
Wind Power Company
Limited*

HBPEERRENETERAA

Gansu China Power Jiuguan
No. 2 Wind Power
Company Limited*

HRETEBERE_BNEE
BRAT

Gansu China Power Jiuguan
No. 3 Wind Power
Company Limited*

HRPEERE=-ENEE
ARRA

Gansu China Power Qiaowan
Wind Power Company
Limited*

HEPEREENEE
BB

Gansu China Power Qiaowan
Wind Power Company
Limited*

HEPERERN%EE
BRAT]

Gansu China Power Jiuguan
No. 3 Wind Power
Company Limited*

HRTEBRE=ANEE
BRAT]

Hailin China Power Hongai
Wind Power Company
Limited*

BRRBAERNEE
ARADA

Hailin China Power Hailang
Wind Power Company
Limited*

BRREERANEE
BRAF

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
EHAE
(kE)

100.50

49.50

201.00

100.50

20.00

601.00

49.50

49.75

Interest
(%)
ER
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(MW)

ERERAE

(kE)

100.50

49.50

201.00

100.50

20.00

601.00

49.50

49.75

Power
Generation
(MWh)
REE
(KEEF)

193,388.90

70,224.70

316,166.60

186,963.20

45,970.00

1,112,880.80

106,297.40

132,804.70

Utilisation
Hours
(hours)
FERNES
(1B

1,924

1,573

1,860

2,299

1,852

2,147

2,669



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

No.

&%

20

Project Name

HE&H

Jiangsu Dafeng Project
THALER

Inner Mongolia Chayou
Zhonggi Project
RRERAPHAR

Hubei Macheng
Chunyangshan Project

M ILER

German Bonen Project
CEIERIENEE

Shanghai Sea Wind Project
LEBRIER

Shanghai Chongming Beiyan
Project
LESRHInER

Sub-total of wind power
projects
BEABEER MG

Photovoltaic Power

EREE

22

23

24

Phase | of Gansu Wuwei
Project

HRE - 4ER

Phase Il of Gansu Wuwei
Project

T

Phase | of Gansu Baiyin
Project

HRAR—HEA

Operating Entity
FRBEf

China Power Dafeng Wind
Power Company Limited*

PERERNEEARAA

China Inner Mongolia Wind
Power Company Limited*

FRARREENEEARAT

Hubei China Power
Chunyangshan Wind
Power Company Limited*

AP ELGILEEERAA

Zehnte Windpark Support
GmbH & Co. KG

Zehnte Windpark Support
GmbH & Co. KG

Shanghai Donghai Wind
Power Company Limited*

LERBRNEEERAT

Shanghai Chongming Beiyan
Wind Power Company
Limited*

ERRLREEERAA

Gansu China Power Wuwei
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

HERERAAREE
BRAF

Gansu China Power Wuwei
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

HETERRAREE
BRAR

Gansu China Power Baiyin
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

FRTEORANREE
BRART

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
kHAE
(¥R)

200.25

49.50

80.00

8.00

102.00

48.00

1,509.50

20.00

30.00

20.00

Attributable
Installed

Interest Capacity
(%) (MW)
B REENAE
(%) (¥R)
100.00 200.25
100.00 49.50
100.00 80.00
100.00 8.00
13.18 13.44
20.00 9.60
1,509.50

100.00 20.00
100.00 30.00
100.00 20.00

Power  Utilisation
Generation Hours
(MWh) (hours)
REE FRIBE
(KER) (/NEg)
368,363.40 1,790
102,487.80 2,070
183,519.20 2,294
13,354.42 1,669
494,210.00 2,361
113,320.00 2,420
2,822,421.12
32,461.40 1,623
44,391.60 1,480
32,938.20 1,647
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No.
i

25

26

27

28

29

30

32

33

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Project Name

HE&H

Phase Il of Gansu Baiyin
Project

HeAF-HER

Phase Il of Gansu Baiyin
Project

HRAR=HER

Gansu Guazhou Project

H&IMER

Hainan Changjiang Project
gmEaTAR

Yunnan Yuanjiang Project
EMTIER

Fujian Zhangpu Project
RRERER

Sichuan Panzhihua Project
M)l 24Tt B

Jiangxi Ji'an Project
TRERER

Guangdong Dongguan Huimei
Project

BRRZEXER

FEENEREREREGRAT

Operating Entity
FBEf

Gansu China Power Baiyin
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

HREREARKNREE
BRAT

Gansu China Power Baiyin
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

HRRERRANREE
BRAR

Gansu China Power Jiuguan
No. 3 Wind Power
Company Limited

FRPEERF=ENEE
ARRA

China Power International
New Energy Hainan
Company Limited
Changjiang Branch*

hERRIMERER
BRDAEIARA

Yuanjiang China Power
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

TIFEXREEERAA

Zhangpu China Power
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

ERTEAKEBARAT

Panzhihua China Power
Photovoltaic Company
Limited*

ERETERRBRAR

Jiangxi China Power Yineng
Distributed Energy
Company Limited*

TRREREEDERER
ARALA

Dongguan Integrated Energy

Company Limited*
REARRERAR

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
EHAE
(kE)

30.00

15.00

8.00

20.00

20.00

80.00

34.32

14.07

0.80

Interest
(%)
ER
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

70.00

70.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(MW)

ERERAE

(kE)

30.00

15.00

8.00

20.00

20.00

80.00

34.32

9.85

0.56

Power
Generation
(MWh)
REE
(KEEF)

46,500.50

24,382.10

14,394.00

26,889.00

26,230.20

50,805.20

14,778.40

723.20

Utilisation
Hours
(hours)
FERNES
(1B

1,550

1,625

1,799

1,344

1,480

1,050

904



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

No.
&

34

35

36

Project Name

HE&H

Zhejiang Yunhe Project?
MIEMER?

Jiangxi Ji'an Aoli Project
IREZYRER

Phase | of Fujian Zhao'an
Project

BEAZ AR

Sub-total of photovoltaic
power projects

KRBEHEE Mt

Hydropower

KHBE

37

38

39

40

42

Fujian Shaxikou Project
BEYEOER

Fujian Niutoushan Project

BE4FAIAR

Fujian Zhangping Huakou
_ Project
BREYEORE

Chongging Meixihe Project
ER1EZWAR

Yunnan Yingjiang Hongfu
IndustriglProject
ZRETERERER

Yunnan Yingjiang Huimin
Project
EHAIERER

Sub-total of hydropower
projects

KOREFE Mt

Operating Entity
FRBEf

China Power Yunhe
Photovoltaic Company
Limited*
TEAAHITARLA

Jiangxi China Power Yineng
Distributed Energy
Company Limited*

TETEGE R

ARRE

Zhao'an China Power
Photovoltaic Power
Company Limited*

BRPEARETERAA)

CPI (Fujian) Power
Development Limited*

PE(RR)ENREBRAR

Fujian Shouning Niutoushan
Hydropower Company
Limited*

REEEFBEKEFRAT

Zhangping Huakou
Hydropower
Company Limited*

BTTEOKEBRAF

Chongging Meixihe River
Hydropower Development
Company Limited*

ERBRAREKERY
ARARA

Yingjiang Hongfu Industrial
Company Limited*
BIRREXARAA

Yingjiang Huimin Hydropower
Development
Company Limited*
BISERKEREEARAT

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
kHAE
(¥R)

13.00

2.50

20.00

327.69

300.00

115.00

36.60

129.00

64.00

6.40

651.00

Interest
(%)
ER
(%)

60.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

52.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(MW)

BRERAE

(k®)

7.80

2.50

20.00

318.03

300.00

59.80

36.60

129.00

64.00

6.40

595.80

Power  Utilisation
Generation Hours
(MWh) (hours)
REE FRIEY
(KER) (/NEg)
10,117.20 778
3,107.10 1,243
26,189.90 1,309
467,049.00
746,143.70 2,487
290,564.92 2,527
93,389.20 2,552
227,130.00 1,761
102,732.32 1,605
93,697.16 14,640
1,553,657.30
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Installed
Capacity
No.  Project Name Operating Entity (Mw)
RHRE
&% HEEER FRER (¥R)
Other Clean Energy
RfEReR
43 Jiangsu Hongze Biomass China Power (Hongze) 15.00
Project Biomass Thermal Power
TEERAENEEE Company Limited*
PECLE)ENERE
BRAR
44 Jiangsu Hongze Thermal China Power (Hongze) 6.00
Power Project Thermal Power Company
THLEAEER Limited*
mE(E)REBRAT
Sub-total of other clean 21.00
energy projects
HitEReRER Nt
Aggregate Amount of Controlled 3,935.19
Projects in Operation of the Group®
AEECEERRER A
1. Guizhou Guiyang Environmental Waste-to-Energy Power Project

commenced commercial operation with an installed capacity of 24MW
in February 2018.

2. Zhejiang Yunhe Photovoltaic Power Project commenced commercial
operation with an additional installed capacity of 7.76MW in August
2018.

3. The sub-total of wind power projects and the aggregate amount of

controlled projects in operation did not include Shanghai Sea Wind
Project and Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Project.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

Attributable

Installed Power  Utilisation
Interest Capacity Generation Hours
(%) (Mw) (MWh) (hours)
B BEERAE BEE FRIERY
(%) (¥R) (kRE) (/M)
100.00 15.00 83,635.60 5,576
60.00 3.60 17,998.00 3,000

18.60 101,633.60

3,865.45 10,135,282.52

1. BEMEBRRIEFERE 24 REREE

HAR2018F 2 AR ATEEES -

2. AT EMHARETIHE 7. 76K LG HER
2R2018F8ARAEXEE -

3. BABBREE P RELERIABAHTE
& Le8REE &k DERAILEER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DN

Table of Projects under Construction EEREE X
Attributable Estimated
Installed Installed Time of
No. Capacity Interest Capacity Commencement
5% (Mw) (%) (MW)  of Operation
KHAE R ERRHAR it
Project Name RS (%E) (%) (%R) RERE
Natural Gas Power
ARREE
1 Guangdong Dongguan Lisha Island Project ERRZUDEEE 400.00 95.52 382.08 2019
Sub-total of natural gas power RAREEN 400.00 382.08
Waste-to-Energy Power
HREE
2 Hebei Bazhou Project ALEMER 24.00 100.00 24.00 2019
3 Sichuan Deyang Project m)EBEE 24.00 70.00 16.80 2019
4 Guizhou Renhuai Project EMCRES 24.00 100.00 24.00 2019
5 Henan Pingdingshan Project ABTELER 24.00 70.00 16.80 2019
6 Liaoning Tieling Project BESZER 24,00 51.00 12,24 2020
7 Henan Shanggiu Project TEELER 24.00 85.00 20.40 2020
8 Phaselll of Hainan Haikou Project AEE1=8ER 40,00 100.00 40.00 2021
9 Hainan Qionghai Project BEEeER 25.00 100.00 25.00 2021
10 Liaoning Beizhen Project BEJAER 18.00 100.00 18.00 2021
Sub-total of waste-to-energy power WREE N 227.00 197.24
Wind Power
ENEH
11 Phase Il of Jiangsu Dafeng Project THAE_HER 100.00 100.00 100.00 2019
Sub-total of wind power BAREN 100.00 100.00
Other Energy
EfRR
12 Anhui Fengtai Biomass Project RHERENERE 30.00 100.00 30.00 2019
13 Jiangsu Hongze Thermal Power Expansion Project [T EAEEEAR 15.00 100.00 15.00 2019
Sub-total of other energy ) 45.00 45.00
Aggregate Amount of kBEEAH 772.00 724.32
Projects under Construction
FINANCIAL REVIEW g dE)
Revenue WA

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group HZE2018F12A31BILFE » ~&EE
was approximately RMB4,808,703,000 (2017: approximately WA %9 A R ¥ 4,808,703,000 7T (2017
RMB4,820,975,000), representing a decrease of 0.3% F M ARKE4,820,975,0007T) @ B X
over last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable FTR03%  TRFREARAAREET
to the drop in natural gas tariff and the decrease in power F& KB AR YRIE B FTAT 2 @i 2 PR R
generation resulted from the continued lower rainfall in ERERK  SHEBE TR -

Fujian where the hydropower projects are located.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fuel Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, fuel costs of the
Group were approximately RMB2,193,456,000 (2017:
approximately RMB2,215,299,000), representing a
decrease of 1.0% over last year. Such decrease was
primarily attributable to the decrease in fuel usage due to
the decrease in on-grid power generation, resulting in the
decrease in fuel costs.

Depreciation and Amortisation

For the year ended 31 December 2018, depreciation
and amortisation of the Group were approximately
RMB943,872,000 (2017: approximately RMB884,502,000),
representing an increase of 6.7% over last year. Such
increase was primarily attributable to the depreciation
provided for the generating units and facilities due to the
full commencement of operation of the newly-operated
projects.

Staff Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, staff costs of
the Group were approximately RMB293,068,000 (2017:
approximately RMB252,130,000), representing an increase
of 16.2% over last year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the commencement of operation of new
projects and the staff costs that were not eligible for
capitalization.

Repairs and Maintenance

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the expenditure on
repairs and maintenance of the Group was approximately
RMB158,125,000 (2017: approximately RMB112,838,000),
representing an increase of 40.1% over last year. Such
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
expenditure on repairs resulted from the major technical
reforms of the original generating units to qualify the safety
and quality inspections.

Operating Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2018, operating profit
of the Group was approximately RMB815,867,000 (2017:
approximately RMB1,043,163,000), representing a decrease
of 21.8% over last year. Such decrease was primarily
attributable to the average unit price of natural gas
increased year-on-year, resulting in increased production
costs at the Dongguan natural gas projects, coupled with the
decrease in power generated in Fujian owing to less rainfall
there in comparison with the same period last year.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

HE2018F12A3MBILFE » A&
R AR 4 A R ¥ 2,193,456,000
(2017 F + H AR 2,215,299,000
TT) BEFTRI1.0%  EZREAZE
PEERLVHAEFERABERD + B

TEREH

HZE2018F12A31HILFE » A&EH
W& X GH 4 A R 043,872,000 7T
(20174 « #H9 AR #884,502,0007T) -
BEFEA6.7%  TERRARIIRESE
BE2EKE  BERARBEMTIRD
WEME -

EEMA
HZE2018F12A31HILFE » A&EH
ELXEEKAL AR 293,068,0007T
(20174 « H AR ¥252,130,0007T) °
BEE FF16.2% 0 TERREIHEE
BIRE  BEXATEERNL -

HIERHEE
HZE2018F12A31HILFE » A&H
s M EES B AR 158,125,000
TL(2017F & « HH AR ™ 112,838,000
) BMEF FFH40.1% 0 TERARR
AHRABETEARN  UFELZ2EE
BE - GRS TIEM -

4T k334

R
HE2018F12A31BILFE - KEE
EEEFIHAREES15,867,0007(2017
F P ARM,043,163,0007T) © BE
FTE21.8%  EBRARKARZFY
BERLLERER  EXEZXAKEERN
EERALEA  REERREREFH
BATRE - BEEBETBERD -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs, Net

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net finance costs
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB607,568,000
(2017: approximately RMB515,155,000), representing an
increase of 17.9% over last year, which was due to the
increase in bank loans of the Group and the rise in interest
rates of loans.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2018, income tax expense
of the Group was approximately RMB52,511,000 (2017:
approximately RMB156,860,000), representing a decrease
of 66.5% over last year. The income tax expense decreased
along with the decrease in total profit.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018, profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB185,323,000 (2017: approximately RMB401,702,000),
representing a decrease of 53.9% over last year. It was
mainly due to (i) the drop in natural gas tariff; (ii) the rise
in unit price of natural gas resulting in the increase in
production costs of the natural gas projects; and (iii) the
decrease in power generation resulted from the continued
lower rainfall in Fujian where the hydropower projects are
located.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB403,848,000 (2017:
approximately RMB739,385,000). The cash and cash
equivalents decreased by 45.4%, which was mainly due
to the payments for property, plant and equipment of new
projects.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2018, capital expenditure
of the Group was approximately RMB1,468,607,000, spent
mainly on the development of new projects, purchase of
equipment and technical renovation. The major sources
of capital were the Group’s cash balance and bank loans
financing for projects.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, total borrowings and corporate
bonds of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB14,573,607,000 (2017: approximately
RMB13,680,290,000), which included short term bank
borrowings, current portion of long-term bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB3,246,607,000,
long-term bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB10,527,370,000 and long-term corporate bonds of
approximately RMB799,630,000.
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BEENWNE TN

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio,
calculated as net debt divided by total capital, was 62%
(2017: 60%).

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risks

The Group’s main business transactions, assets and
liabilities are substantially denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group did not use any derivative
instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposure as
the Group considered its foreign currency exposure is
insignificant.

Investment Risk of the Capital Market

The Group has kept some of its funds invested in the
securities market. By focusing on clean energy related
businesses in recent years, the Group has gradually scaled
down its securities investment business. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group’s fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
approximately RMB2,291,000 (2017: a loss of approximately
RMB78,000).

Charge on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2018, certain bank deposits, accounts
receivable, lease prepayments, property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group with
an aggregate amount of approximately RMB2,558,892,000
(2017: approximately RMB6,978,810,000) were pledged as
securities for certain borrowings of the Group and notes
payable facilities granted by banks.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at the balance sheet date.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,901 employees
in Hong Kong and the PRC (2017: 1,813). Remuneration of
directors and employees is determined by the Group with
reference to their performance, experience and duties
as well as the industry and market standards. The Group
provides appropriate emoluments as well as benefit
packages and insurance to all employees of its operating
power plants and new project developments in the PRC
based on their respective duties and pursuant to the labour
laws of the PRC. The Group provides Hong Kong employees
with a mandatory provident fund scheme with defined
contributions as required by the laws of Hong Kong. It also
provides Hong Kong employees with medical insurance.
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MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
TERRRETHABEE

() MARKETRISKS (—) mEREE

Risks relating to changes in electricity retail market
policies

As China deepens its power system reform,
new projects in the new energy sector are
facing a downward trend in subsidy standards.
The proportion of market-based electricity
transactions is expanding, while the development
of the competition mechanism among power
generation enterprises, including renewable
energy, is accelerating. The Group’s operations
are affected by the increase in the proportion of
retail power transactions, market fluctuation of
transaction tariffs and other factors, which also
affect the revenue of the Group. The utilisation
problem of new energy has eased, a significant
improvement in curtailment of wind power is
achieved in Northwest and Northeast China, while
the wind power curtailment in Northeast, North
and Northwest China still exists. By following
policy orientation, intensifying the research
of state policies, conducting sales in power
business and optimising operation management,
the Group seeks to generate more electricity to
improve its economic efficiency, ensure stable
operation of its generation units, and take various
measures against the risks brought by changes in
the electricity retail market.

Risks relating to price fluctuation of natural gas
Fluctuation may occur to the fuel costs because
of the domestic price changing of natural gas,
which will affect the economic benefit of natural
gas power projects of the Company. The Group
will meticulously and prudently conduct market
analysis on price movement of natural gas,
expand channels for procuring fuels, optimise the
structure of gas sources and execute reasonable
control on procurement cost.
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MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FEREERTAREE

() OPERATING RISKS

1.

More challenges in project development

Given the rapid development of the new energy
industry and increasingly stringent government
requirements in energy conservation and
emission reduction, domestic power companies
have been increasing their investments in the new
energy industry, fueling more intense competition
and making project development more difficult
than before. The Group will optimise its
development mechanism with greater efforts
to secure resources, consolidate and strive to
expand existing resource reserve, and enable
its regional economies of scale to take shape on
the premise of existing resource allocation and
fresh regulatory requirements imposed by the
government.

More environmental investment

The government has accelerated its institutional
reform on ecological civilisation, vowing to build
a beautiful China and imposing increasingly strict
requirements on environmental protection. This
has brought both opportunities and challenges
to the Group in the waste-to-energy sector. The
Group will increase its environmental investment,
and enhance its management of environmental
protection facilities and production. Furthermore,
the Group will enhance its efficiency of waste-to-
energy power generation and the profitability of
power generation on the premise of ensuring that
environmental indicators are met.

Lack or draining of specialised talents

The lack of human resources with appropriate
skill sets and proven experience might prevent
the Group from realising its strategic objectives.
The Group will focus on strengthening the
development and training of staffs in the pipeline
for succession, building talent teams at various
levels, and strengthening the communication
and exchange of personnels within the system to
maximise the utility of its talents.
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(D)

(Iv)

V)

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group has reported its financial conditions in
due compliance with procedures stipulated under the
Listing Rules. For our financial risks, please refer to
the section headed “Financial Review” in “Management
Discussion and Analysis” set out in page 43 to 46 in this
annual report.

UNCERTAINTY OF CLIMATE CHANGE

Power generation and source of revenue of wind
power, photovoltaic power and hydropower projects of
the Company are dependent on changes in seasonal
and climatic conditions. Meanwhile, extreme climate
conditions will affect the revenue from the above
projects. Before construction, the Group will conduct
tests on constant climatic conditions of the projects
to reduce the adverse impact of climate change on
operations, and in daily operations, organise more
drills of contingency plans to enhance the ability in
responding to natural disasters at the same time.

CONTINUOUS MONITORING OF RISKS AND THE
SCOPE AND QUALITY OF INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM BY THE MANAGEMENT

The Group has established an internal control and
monitoring department to perform internal audit
functions and furnish opinion in respect of material
matters or bring to the attention of the management
the existence of any relevant risks. In accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Group has actively
promoted and continuously improved the development
of its risk management mechanism, defined the risk
management responsibilities at all levels, optimised
its risk management procedures and annual risk
assessment, enhanced the risk management
mechanism for major decisions and strengthened
daily risk tracking to ensure effective implementation
of comprehensive risk management of the Group.
The management made two communications on
the outcome of their internal control to the Audit
Committee during the year, to report the risk evaluation
and provide data analyses and relevant policies at such
stage. During 2018, the Group conducted internal audit
in its operations and tracking audit on constructions,
increasing income and reducing cost and creating
risk alert to strengthen its management. Throughout
the year, the Group performed supervision on daily
operations as usual and conducted operations in an
orderly manner.
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Both the Board and the management of the Company
are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures and believe that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and shareholders’ value
enhancement. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasize quality Board, sound internal controls,
and transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Group’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability
of the Group’s operations. The Board sets appropriate
policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s
business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the CG
Code.

1. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2018, save for the deviations from code
provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 as follows:

Code provision A.4.1: non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-
election.

None of the existing non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at annual general meeting pursuant to the Articles.
Accordingly, the Board considers that such
requirements are sufficient to meet the underlying
objective of the said code provision A.4.1.
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Code provision E.1.2: the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.

Mr. Wang Binghua, the former Chairman of the Board
and the Nomination Committee of the Company, due
to his other business engagement, did not attend
the 2018 AGM. In view of his absence, Mr. Wang
had arranged Mr. Zhao Xinyan, the former executive
director who is well versed in all the business
activities and operations of the Group, to attend the
meeting as a chairman and communicate with the
shareholders. Mr. Wang also invited Mr. Chu Kar
Wing, being the chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee, to attend the 2018 AGM and
to give shareholders an opportunity of having a direct
dialogue with the Board members.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the
Company’s directors, they confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group has also established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code
(the “Employees Written Guidelines”), governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company and/
or its securities. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by relevant employees
was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company’s securities,
notification will be sent to the directors and relevant
employees in advance.
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3. THEBOARD 3. E=Ew
3.1 Board Composition (as at 31 December 2018) 3.1 EE=24HEMK(R2018F12A31H)

Executive directors: HITES

Mr. He Hongxin (Vice Chairman of the Board, AN EE (BEFSHTE  BRHTE
Chief Executive Officer, Member REHFEEHZEEME)
of the Investment and Budget
Management Committee)

Mr. Wang Fengxue "otV TR Bg4m -

Mr. Zhao Xinyan (ete2 (Chairman of the Investment and WHRLEN (REHBEERZEDTE)
Budget Management Committee)

Mr. Qi Tengyun - ERELLE -

Non-executive directors: FERITEE

Mr. Wang Binghua®™3  (Chairman of the Board, Chairman of FEIREFL W) (EEETE  ELEZEETE)
the Nomination Committee)

Mr. Zhou Jiong - [ & -

Independent non-executive directors: BAUFEHITES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Audit Committee, — K&~ (BiTZ58FF  FHWZEE
Chairman of the Remuneration B IREZEEHE)
Committee, Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Dr. Li Fang (Member of the Audit Committee, — ZHE+ (%57??,\ BR  HHEEEH
Member of the Remuneration jﬁz%@?ﬁ BHE - REH
Committee, Member of the f I EHEZEEMA)
Nomination Committee, Member
of the Investment and Budget
Management Committee)

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai (Member of the Audit Committee, =~ BRTLLE (%57??,\ EKE  HWEREM
Member of the Remuneration zﬁz%@?ﬁ BHE)
Committee, Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum (Member of the Audit Committee, — M&EEL+ (BAZEEHKE  HNESER
Member of the Remuneration B [BEZEEHE)
Committee, Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Notes: BRE -

Subsequent to the year end, on 27 March 2019, the composition of the

Board changed as follow:

1. Mr. Wang Fengxue resigned and Mr. He Lianhui was appointed

as an executive director of the Company.

2. Mr. Zhao Xinyan resigned and Mr. Sun Guigen was appointed as
an executive director and the chairman of the Investment and

Budget Management Committee of the Company.

3. Mr. Wang Binghua resigned and Mr. Tian Jun was appointed
as a non-executive director, the chairman of the Board and the

chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
has met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A
of having at least 3 independent non-executive directors
(representing at least 1/3 of the Board) with one of them
possessing appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business
requirements and objectives of the Group and for the
exercise of independent judgement. The independent
non-executive directors bring different business
and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board and they are invited to serve
on the Board committees. Through participating Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on Board
committees, the independent non-executive directors
have made contributions to the effective direction
of the Company and provided adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the Company
and its shareholders.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to the quality of its performance.
The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed
to attract and retain candidate(s) for Board with a
combination of competencies from the widest possible
pool of available talents; and to increase diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage. A Board diversity
policy was adopted by the Company, pursuant to
which the Board and the Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing and assessing the Board
composition under diversified perspectives (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience) and for
ensuring that changes to the Board’s composition
can be managed without undue disruption. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and
make recommendation to the Board, if any. Such policy
and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time to
time to ensure the appropriateness in determining the
optimum composition of the Board that are aligning
with the Company’s strategy and objectives.

The biographical details of the existing directors and
the relationships between the Board members (if any)
are set out under “Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary Profiles” in this annual report.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his/
her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light
of the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Leadership, control and management of the Company
are vested in the Board. The Board oversees the
Group’s business, strategic decision and performance
to further the healthy growth and effective functioning
of the Company with a view to enhancing value to
investors. All the directors carry out their duties in good
faith, take decisions objectively and act in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
company secretary and the senior management, with
a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures
and all applicable laws and regulations. Any director
may request for independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibilities
for the day-to-day management and operation of the
Company to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers, and the Board has the full
support from the senior management to discharge its
responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and the Employees
Written Guidelines, and the compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer in order to ensure a balance of power
and authority and preserve a balanced judgement of
views. During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr.
Wang Binghua had taken up the role of the Chairman
of the Board, who is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, the determination
of the broad strategic direction of the Company
in consultation with the Board, and the high-level
oversight of management of the Company; whereas Mr.
He Hongxin was the Chief Executive Officer, who takes
care of the day-to-day management and operation of
the Company.

Subsequent to the year end, on 27 March 2019,
Mr. Wang Binghua resigned and Mr. Tian Jun was
appointed as a non-executive director and the
Chairman of the Board.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment and
removal of directors are laid down in the Articles. In
accordance with the Articles: (i) 1/3 of the directors
for the time being (if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than 1/3)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every 3 years; and (ii) any
new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment and submit himself/herself for re-
appointment.
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According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with the
legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to refresh their knowledge and
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development
to directors are arranged whenever necessary. In
addition, reading materials on new or changes to
salient laws and regulations applicable to the Company
are provided to directors from time to time for their
studying and reference. All of the directors received
trainings as described below and provided the training
records to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
had provided regular briefings and updates on its
business, operations and corporate governance
matters to all directors being Mr. He Hongxin, Mr. Qi
Tenyun, Mr. Zhou Jiong, Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Dr. Li Fang,
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum, as well as the
former directors namely, Mr. Bi Yaxiong, Mr. Wang
Liangyou, Mr. Wang Fengxue, Mr. Zhao Xinyan and Mr.
Wang Binghua. In addition, all the above mentioned
directors had also attended seminars, which were
relevant to their duties and responsibilities, to keep
themselves updated to the relevant laws and statutes;
and read technical bulletins, periodicals and other
publications on subjects related to the Company and
on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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Sz Ashe S
TEEBRE
3.7 Directors’ Attendance Records 3.7 EEHERH

The attendance records of each director at the Board ZEEELFEEHZE2018F12A318

meetings, the Board committees’ meetings and the HFEEARTCIESEEH  EF

general meetings held during the year ended 31 CLECERRBREREZHER

December 2018 are set out as follows: SRE DA

Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE/EREmE
Annual  Extraordinary

Audit  Remuneration Nomination General General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
B3t E3g #itz8e iMzee R5zee  RRAEAE  RREAAE
Executive directors: HfiEE.
Mr. Wang Fengrue TESEL 14 - - - o o
Mr. Zhao Xinyan BHALE 4/4 - - - i i
Mr. He Hongein b 34 - - - o o
Mr. 0 Tengyun i £ 0l - - - 0/ 0/
Non-executive directors: b2 £ 0
Mr. Wang Binghua TRELH 0/4 - - 012 o o
Mr. Zhou Jiong BIREE 4/4 - - - o o
Mr. Bi Yaxiong "’ ERfEELrE 012 - - - 0/1 071
Mr. Wang Liangyou =2 IRRELNE s s s s s s
Independent non-executive BU#H1EE.
directors:
Mr. Chu Kar Wing RERRE 4/4 33 1 0 i i
Or.Li Fang i) ug 4/4 30 11 0 o o
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai EERRE 4/4 313 1 2 01 01
Ms. Ng i Kum (i 4/4 33 i 20 o o

Notes: s -

1. Mr. Bi Yaxiong resigned as a director of the Company with effect 1. BnELEEBH2018F5 A3BEHT
from 3 May 2018. Prior to his resignation, there were 2 Board RRBESE - RIRFHER - EHZE
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2018. 201851231 B ILFERITT2RE

FERH-

2. Mr. Wang Liangyou appointed as a director of the Company on 2. TRRFEAEMN2018F5 43R EERT
3 May 2018 and resigned on 5 June 2018. During his tenure of RARAIESE - WH2018F6H5H
office as director of the Company, no Board meeting was held B - EREEARAARESHME - £
during the year ended 31 December 2018. HE2018F 12831 AL FEI MmE

TEEEEHE -

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting W - FNEFEE REIFNTE

with the non-executive directors and independent non- ERBNIFRTERERTEST

executive directors without the presence of executive EHMERATRITT —REH °

directors during the year.
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4. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has 4 Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Investment and Budget
Management Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of its affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on its website www.cpne.com.hk and
on the Stock Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.
All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

4.1 Audit Committee

Composition  The Audit Committee of the Company

#H R comprises all 4 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chu
Kar Wing (Chairman), Dr. Li Fang,
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi
Kum. In which 2 of the members, Mr.
Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum,
possess the appropriate accounting
and financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

Function The main duties of the Audit

B Re Committee are reviewing the
financial information and reports
of the Company and considering
any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the
Company or external auditor before
submission to the Board; reviewing
the relationship with and the terms
of appointment of the external
auditor and making the relevant
recommendation to the Board; and
reviewing the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and
internal audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Audit Committee has
performed the following major works:

« Review and discussion of the
annual financial statements,
results announcement and report
for the year ended 31 December
2017, the related accounting
principles and practices adopted
by the Company, and the internal
control related matters; and
recommendation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the new
auditor of the Company upon the
retirement of the former auditor;

+ Review and discussion of the
interim financial statements,
results announcement and report
for the 6 months ended 30 June
2018, and the related accounting
principles and practices adopted
by the Company;

+ Review and discussion of the
significant issues on financial
reporting, operation and
compliance controls, and the
effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems and
internal audit function.

The attendance records of each Audit
Committee member at the Audit
Committee meetings held during
the year under review are set out in
section 3.7 above.

The external auditor has attended the
Audit Committee meetings to discuss
with the Audit Committee on issues
arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the appointment of external

auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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Composition

MK

Function

i BE

Attendance

HE

The Remuneration Committee of the
Company comprises all 4 independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chu Kar Wing (Chairman), Dr. Li Fang,
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum.

The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure
and the remuneration packages of
directors and senior management
(i.e. the model described in the
code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code is adopted). The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined
by the Board with reference to the
performance of the individual and
the Company as well as the market
practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Remuneration Committee
has performed the following major
works:

« General review and discussion of
and recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration packages and
benefits policy of the directors and
senior staff;

+ Assessment of the performance of
executive directors and considering
the bonus payment to senior staff
for the year 2018;

Consideration of and recommendation
to the Board on the terms of
appointment of the new directors
during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The attendance records of each
Remuneration Committee member at
the Remuneration Committee meeting
held during the year under review are set
outin section 3.7 above.
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During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Nomination Committee of the
Company comprises a total of 5 members,
being the Chairman of the Board, namely
Mr. Wang Binghua (Chairman), and the
4 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Dr. Li Fang, Mr.
Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum. The
majority of the members are independent
non-executive directors.

Subsequent to the year end, on 27 March
2019, Mr. Wang Binghua resigned and
Mr. Tian Jun was appointed as a non-
executive director and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The principal responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and
recommending any changes to the
Board; identifying qualified and
suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and/or making
recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; assessing the
independence of independent non-
executive directors; and making
recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the
appointment or reappointment of
directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer.
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Function
(Cont’d)
Bae(E)

The Board believes that the defined
selection process is good for
corporate governance in ensuring
the Board continuity and appropriate
leadership at Board level, and
enhancing better Board effectiveness
and diversity as well as in compliance
with the applicable rules and
regulations. The terms of reference
lays down the key nomination criteria
and principles of the Company for
nomination of Directors. In selecting
candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee may make
reference to certain criteria such as
the Company’s needs, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional
knowledge of the candidate, and the
amount of time and effort that the
candidate will devote to discharge
his/her duties and responsibilities.
The Nomination Committee shall
report its findings and make
recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of appropriate candidate
for directorship for decision. External
recruitment professionals might be
engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Nomination Committee has
performed the following major works:

Review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements for the
business of the Company;

Recommendation of the re-
election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the
2018 AGM;
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+ Assessment of the independence
of all independent non-executive
directors;

« Consideration of and recommendation
to the Board on the appointments of
the new directors during the year.

The attendance records of each
Nomination Committee member at the
Nomination Committee meeting held
during the year under review are set
out in section 3.7 above.

During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Investment and Budget
Management Committee of the
Company comprises a total of 8
members, including 3 directors,
namely Mr. Zhao Xinyan (Chairman)
Mr. He Hongxin and Dr. Li Fang; and 5
senior staff, namely Mr. Sun Guigen,
Mr. Chen Xuezhi (Chief Financial
Officer of the Company), Mr. Bai
Jinchang, Mr. Tian Jiandong and Mr.
Chai Mao.

Subsequent to the year end, on 27
March 2019, Mr. Zhao Xinyan resigned
and Mr. Sun Guigen was appointed
as the executive director and the
chairman of the Investment and
Budget Management Committee of
the Company.

The Investment and Budget
Management Committee is under
the direct authority of the Board
to increase the efficiency of
business, investment and budgeting
decisions. It reviews the execution of
investment and budgeting strategies,
and discusses and considers the
recommendations on investment and
budgeting related matters.
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ERERHRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The management
has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Company put forward to the Board for
approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established and maintained its own
risk management and internal control systems, the
details of the specific features of such systems, and
the processes and procedures used for managing risks
are also presented under the section “Major Risks and
Uncertainties”.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems have been designed to protect assets from
misappropriation and unauthorized transactions and
to manage operational risks.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and its assets. The
Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and makes
recommendation to the Board.

The Group has established an internal control and
monitoring department to perform the internal audit
function and furnish opinions in respect of material
matters or bring to the attention of the management
the existence of any relevant risks. This department is
responsible for performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Group has also formulated a policy related to risk
management with detailed provisions addressing
specific issues that help to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks, define basic processes and
methods for relevant risk management, and develop
detailed specific risk evaluation standards. The
ongoing improvement of the risk management regime
has provided assurance for broader and more in-depth
development of the Company’s management.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has implemented control procedures to
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside
information are strictly prohibited.

The management, together with the internal control
and monitoring department, reviews and evaluates the
control procedures and monitors the risk factors on a
regular basis, provides treatment plans, and reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board on any findings
and measures to address the variances and identified
risks.
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Based on the reports submitted by the external auditor
and the internal control and monitoring department
and the various management controls put in place,
the Board, with the support of the Audit Committee,
reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2018, and considered that such systems are effective
and adequate. The annual review also covered the
financial reporting and internal audit function and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

So far as it is known based on available information,
there was no significant error in internal control, nor
was any major weakness in internal control identified
during the year, the occurrence of which might result in
unforeseeable consequences or emergency situations
or any significant impact that might materialize in
future.

The Group attaches great importance to internal control
and risk management. Currently, the Company has
internal control mechanisms for aspects including
governance structure, strategic development, capital
operation, financial management, human resources
management, production management, safety,
health and environmental management, construction
management, resources and fuels management,
administrative and comprehensive management,
information system management, party-masses work
and risk management.

In 2018, the Company newly prepared and revised
a total of 64 systems in 12 categories, including
finance, engineering, security, and production.
Comprehensively improving the soundness,
applicability, and reasonability of the system would
contribute a more rigorous and sound internal control
system of the Company and improve its standardized
and refined management level. Meanwhile, the
management communicated with the Audit Committee
on the outcome of their internal controls, including
reporting the risk evaluation and providing the data
analyses and relevant policies. The Group believes
that timely data analysis is a very effective tool for the
Board in assessing the status of internal control and
risk management.
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In 2018, the Company conducted 1,359 tasks of
supervision over daily ongoing operations to ensure
smooth implementation of various material matters
in its operations. The Company also conducted
systematic reviews of internal controls for different
regimes, such as the major controls for financial,
operational and compliance matters and the risk
management function.

Working Plan for 2019

In 2019, the Company will continue to carry out overall
system revision, strengthen the implementation
of systems, enhance risk tracking and audit
management, improve audit quality and performance
and achieve double effect in service and supervision.
The focuses are as follows:

()  Conducting assessment on the internal control
and risk management systems.

(I Improving and implementing the work
requirements of grassroots supervision.

() Strengthening the dynamic tracking of audit
mechanism of engineering process, effectively
improving audit quality and performance, and
realizing double effect in audit service and
supervision.

(IV) Orderly carrying out performance monitoring,
tender supervision, petition report verification
and other works, so as to achieve the desired
goals.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Fung Chun Nam, who
has fulfilled the qualification requirements laid down
in the Listing Rules. Biographical details of Mr. Fung
are set out in the section headed “Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary Profiles” of this
annual report. During the year ended 31 December
2018, Mr. Fung has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out below:

NEAWE

ARMERBRELEE  HERFA
ETRBIFTS 2 ERIRE - HBEE
PEREFBHRAGERIEE 5
BEBEBRARMEER | —H -
HE2018F12A31HLFE - 5
EEBEITORI5/ K28
E=EEI -

EEREREER 2FH

RIEEEEATREBA.5ESFA
1§ B Z2018F12A31HIEF
EafhERENB 2 FEHFNRSE
FEHWT -

Remuneration band (RMB)
FMER(ARE)

Below 1,000,000

1,000,000LA

Number of
individuals

AB
1

Details of the remuneration of each director for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements contained in this
annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

At the 2018 AGM, PricewaterhouseCoopers retired
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the
Company’s auditor. The statement of the external
auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the external auditor, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2018 are analyzed below:

TRERRE

SN A% S8 £ A 2 B 3 A

R2018FREAFAE L R
BoKEGFAEFME REME
. BERHF ST EZEAR
A TVZEAD o SNEEAZBRAD ph H ¥
HE2018F12A3MBLEFEAR
BRI TSR 2 BRI E AR RE N A
TR B ULAZBANRE | —&7 -

AR B INEIZERANIES) - BIEFR
F A TREZ=2018F 12 A 31
BIEFERMEZ FBIZRH MIEEZ
IRISEN, ENERZHTWT

Fees paid/
payable
B/ ENER
Type of services provided by the external auditor HK$’000
SNBRB AR AR 2 R TET
Audit services =% R
— audit fee for the year ended —HE2018F12831BILFEEY
31 December 2018 BEZEMR 3,190
Non-audit services FEZRS
— interim review on financial results for the — HZE2018F6A30H 1E61A AR Z
six-month period ended 30 June 2018 BT TS S B AR 790
— tax advisory — WBHA 30
TOTAL: g5t 4,010
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10.

10.1

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed for each substantial
issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration
and voting.

Pursuant to Article 49 of the Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit, and shall on requisition of
members in accordance with the statue, proceed with
proper expedition to convene a general meeting.

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance:

(1

One or more shareholder representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings may
request the Board to call a general meeting. The
request must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with, and it may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
Company’s shall proceed to convene a general
meeting within 21 days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement.

If the directors do not within 21 days proceed
to convene a general meeting, the shareholders
who requested the meeting, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves call
a general meeting. The meeting must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date
on which the directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting; and in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
that meeting is required to be called by the
directors.

One or more shareholder representing at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders
or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
relevant annual general meeting may request the
Company to give notice of a resolution that may
be properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

10.

BRRRIREE

10.1 BREEER

RREBERR 2 #H REN  RIRE
REL BRBEAFH(BIER
BERNESE)REBIORERIAM
BREERKER -

BREESRMAELOK EFEA
EERREE B RERBIERENR
HESETEE ZERABHRABREX

&= o
=

RIBERBED]

(1) E2RERIRBERAGLR
RZ BRI E R 5%
—HRZEBEREEERE
ERARKRRRE - AHE
RKBRRBEFRNAEG LREE
EHc—REE  XAEE
ARZARE LRELEE
BBBIRBRAE - AR
RIARNEBTHREZ BK2
AAARRERERRE -

HEFRRAENR2IBRNARAR
RRg BRAREHZK
RAMEMFFE 2 BBRRAE
BIRERE U EZBRRA
BITARABRRKRE - K&A
REZFETHRENBREH
ZBETHEBEIEARNER
VERAERAEEEERA
ME@ I BREN -

(2) E2BERIRBERAG LR
RZBRBILEERLD2.5%
Z—HBRZBBERITLRN
50BN AR AFAE £
ARBRARAB IR
FHERME) A BRKARAF
BARENASLRENEHE
B HERBRASE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance and
the Articles (where applicable), for convening a general
meeting or circulating a resolution for annual general
meeting.

Under the Articles, if a shareholder wishes to propose
a person for election as a director at a general meeting,
he or she should give a written notice of nomination to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered
office. Details of the procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available in the Company’s website.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder must provide
his/her full name, contact details and identification,
in the originally signed written requisition, notice
or statement (as the case may be), in order to give
effect thereto. Information of the shareholder may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, no changes have
been made on the Articles. An up-to-date version
of the Articles is available on the websites of the
Company (www.cpne.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further
details of the rights of shareholders. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings shall be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll voting results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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10.2 Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company recognises the importance of
transparent and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision. The
Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investors’ understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies.

A website at www.cpne.com.hk is maintained as
a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other
information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries
or requests to the Company, for the attention of
Investor Relationship Manager, as follows:

Address: Rooms 3801-05,
38/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3607 8888
Fax: (852) 3607 8899
Email: ir@cpne.com.hk

Besides, general meetings provide an opportunity
for communication between the directors and the
shareholders. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Company are available at such meetings to
answer any questions raised by shareholders.
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The directors are pleased to present this annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
construction, ownership, operation and management of
clean energy power plants in the PRC, including but not
limited to the following types of energy generation — wind
power generation, hydropower generation, waste-to-
energy power generation, natural gas power generation and
photovoltaic power generation. The Group is also engaged
in investment holding in the clean energy power industry,
property investments and securities investments. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to
results by principal activities and geographical area of
operations for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year
is provided in the “Letter to Shareholders” and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators, a
discussion on the major risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, and the Group’s future business development
are set out in the “Business and Financial Highlights”, the
“Major Risks and Uncertainties”, and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report respectively.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are also contained in the “Letter to Shareholders”, the
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the “Major Risks
and Uncertainties” and the “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

“Green Innovation” — the Group’s mission this year.
Committing to good ESG practices, developing green,
recyclable, low-carbon, clean energy have been our goals.
An overview of relative efforts were summarised in the “ESG
Report” which will be published on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website in due course.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, sales to the
Group’s 5 largest customers accounted for approximately
83% of the total sales and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 51% of the
total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 98% of the total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately 74% of
the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors of the
Company nor their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), nor any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s 5
largest customers or suppliers.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last 5 financial years is set out
on page 243 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on pages 103 and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 104 respectively.

74  CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

FEENEREREREGRAT

RERERMSEM

[RERIFER ] /SAFOR - LIBT
RIFHERR  HEREATR  BRK
& fBIR B BRERAEE-F
B ITEBUR G HN RS LG REER
T AR R E R A B
R R AR R B o

FREFRHTER

REZE2018F 12 A31HIEFE » &
EESARFHNEERMHEEBRTY
83% EFHRAZEFPMHESRGHES
EH451% o

AEESAHEFNRBB(GEZE2018
F12A31BIEFEREETELI8Y% -
Efhg REEENEERGRBERY
74% o

REZEMHM ARARBZEZTHARFNE
THMEA(EZR LMARA)SEMEE
EMABEAEARRB D HITRAL% A LR
BERBEEEAEES AT R EHIE
BEGR:FA

S5EHBEHE

AEERBESETBFEND AME
BREEERBEMBENAFRE243
B o AN 230 3F 4 | AX B TS R HO &P

T/'\ S
REBEE2018F 12831 HILFEE

BORENEI103ENGESRARNE
104EHE2EKERA -



DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company attaches great importance to returns to
investors and maintain the continuity and stability of its
profit distribution policy. According to the dividend policy
adopted by the Company, the Board would consider the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company, as
well as other factors the Board may consider relevant, before
declaring or recommending dividends.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any applicable
laws and the Articles.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors recommended a final dividend of
approximately RMB0.0546 (equivalent to HK$0.0638 at the
exchange rate announced by the People’s Bank of China
on 27 March 2019) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2018, representing a total of approximately
RMB64,790,000 (equivalent to HK$75,707,000), payable
to the Company’s shareholders whose names appear on
the Company’s register of members on 27 June 2019.
This dividend payment, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the 2019 AGM, is expected to be paid on 11
July 2019.

DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable donations were made by
the Group, however, it showed support for charitable
causes. With details set out in the “ESG Report” which will
be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website in due course.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/
or sale for investment purposes are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As governed by the Companies Ordinance, a company shall
not make a distribution except out of profits available for
the purpose. A listed company may only make a distribution
(i) if the amount of its net assets is not less than the
aggregate of its called up share capital and undistributable
reserves; and (ii) if, and to the extent that, the distribution
does not reduce the amount of those assets to an amount
less than that aggregate.

In addition, according to the Articles, no dividend shall be
paid if to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due or cause the realisable value
of the Company’s assets to become less than its liabilities.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution amounted to approximately
RMB100,128,000.

DEBENTURES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

A green corporate bond of RMB800,000,000 issued on 22
May 2017, as approved by National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors, will be due on 22 May 2020.
The purpose is to provide funding for the daily operation
and business development. The bond is unsecured, carries
a fixed coupon rate of 5.5% per annum, with the interest
being payable annually. Details are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of their subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as
disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Further details of the Company’s share option
scheme are disclosed in Note 27(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The following tables disclose movements in the Company’s
share options during the year ended 31 December 2018:

DIRECTORS" REPORT

fBRAERT

ARAREEBERETEIATENEREY
AEBELEMZAERZEER &
EAREERERBRESERERENR
BREAEEMEBEEZANER
BRAARRMBEEE ZE— B
R A BT BR I RE27 (o) BEEE -

TEREENEHZE2018F12A318ILE
ERN/NGI |50k

Name or category of
participant
SAERLRH

Mr. Zhao Xinyan

Sub-total for director:
EE7

In aggregate
At

[SIVAY

Sub-total for
employees:

it

TOTAL:

it

Number of share options
BIRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat asat Dateof Exercise
1 January 31December grant period Exercise price
2018 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2018 of share of share of share
#2018% during during during during 12018% options options* options**
1A1R theperiod  theperiod  theperiod the period 128318 #H BRE BREL
WATE  HAERY  BREFE  BREAM  BREHH WAGTE BREAS s friEE
(DD/MMAYYY)  (DD/MM/YYYY) HK$ per share
(B/R/%) (B/A/%) B/ R
Director
£z
800,000 - - - - 800,000 8/6/2017 18/7/2017 - 7.80
31/10/2020
1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000 8/6/2017 18/7/2017- 514
15/1/2023
2,000,000 = S = = 2,000,000
Other employees working under continuous employment contracts
RERBERSDBANINES
2,150,000 - - 500,000 - 1,650,000 8/6/2017 18/7/2017- 7.80
31/10/2020
4,450,000 - - 700,000 - 3,760,000 8/6/2017 18/7/2017- 514
16/1/2023
6,600,000 = S 1,200,000 = 5,400,000
8,600,000 - - 1,200,000 - 7,400,000
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Notes to the table of movements in the Company’s share options during the
period:

# The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

i The number and/or exercise price of the share options is/are subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in
the Company’s share capital.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
securities of the Company available for issue under the
share option scheme was 118,663,341 shares, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ LISTS

The following is the list of Directors during the year and up to
the date of this report (unless otherwise stated).

Executive Directors

Mr. He Hongxin (Chief Executive Officer & Vice Chairman)
(appointed as vice chairman on 29 August 2018)

Mr. Wang Fengxue (resigned on 27 March 2019)

Mr. Zhao Xinyan (resigned on 27 March 2019)

Mr. Qi Tengyun

Mr. He Lianhui (appointed on 27 March 2019)

Mr. Sun Guigen (appointed on 27 March 2019)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Binghua
(resigned on 27 March 2019)
Mr. Zhou Jiong
Mr. Tian Jun (Chairman)
(appointed on 27 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Dr. LiFang

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

Ms. Ng Yi Kum

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Tian Jun, Mr. He Lianhui, Mr.
Sun Guigen, Mr. Qi Tengyun, Mr. Zhou Jiong, Mr. Chu Kar
Wing and Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, shall hold office until the 2019
AGM and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2019 AGM.
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Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries

The following is the list of directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this report
(unless otherwise stated).

Mr. Sun Guigen'
Mr. Chen Xuezhi?
Mr. Fung Chun Nam?

Notes:

1 An executive director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Investment and Budget Management Committee

2 The chief financial officer of the Company and a member of the
Investment and Budget Management Committee

3 Company Secretary of the Company

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within 1 year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company are
determined by the Board in accordance with their duties
and responsibilities within the Company and the Group’s
performance, and based on the recommendation of the
Company’s Remuneration Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option schemes operated by the
Company as set out in note 27(c) to the consolidated
financial statements and save as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, neither at the
end of nor at any time during the year there subsisted
any arrangement to which the Company or any of their
subsidiaries or their parent company or their fellow
subsidiaries was a party and the objects of or one of the
objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of their subsidiaries or their parent company or their
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director and
the director’s connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior
management are set out on pages 16 to 26.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Company’s
directors in the underlying shares of the Company, which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register maintained by the Company referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Pursuant to the Pre-listing Share Option Scheme, the
Company has granted options to the following director of the
Company to subscribe for shares of the Company, details of
which as at 31 December 2018 were as follows:

DIRECTORS" REPORT

EERRG RAAER G WERS

M2018F12A31H » RRAREEBRA
RAZHEERNEAEREZ S KBERK
B 55 352 (& 7B 72 8RN 2N 1 BIAR BB 5% A& 51
FEzERMAZ#ERD  HRBRESE
BIZEAE AR R R R AT 2 s T

RIEETMAIERERTE - ARRIE MM
TARAEER THRENREALQT
%D » R2018FE12 A3 1 B EMFEIBW
—|T:

Number of
underlying shares

Percentage' of
underlying shares

inrespect of the  overthe Company’s

Name of director Nature of interest share options granted  issued share capital

BRI E

EREBERERYS NGRS}

=g BEtE REBRAEE BRAHED

Mr. Zhao Xinyan? Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.17%
HETA S A ExBAA

Note 1: The percentage represents the number of underlying shares BT B IsFT BRI 8B RIAR QA

interested divided by the number of the Company issued shares
as at 31 December 2018.

Note 2: Subsequent to the year end, Mr. Zhao Xinyan resigned as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 27 March

2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the directors nor the chief executives of the Company nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

R2018F12A31HEZITRNEE

B5E2 - RERE  EIRCEFEARRRITMIT
BE H2019F3A27ABER -
Br EXXCFriEEEE SN - 120184F 12 A 31

B ARREE  TETBRABREF
HY B S A S O AN A A 3 B AR AT AR B
B(ExRESFKAEERGIEXVER) H K
0~ R RMESFT - BERERS
KMEERPIE 2R AR B R AR AR
BREPFEZ2ELMAZ EMERSK
KB IRBEETUANE AR R
B FTR SR SO R ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The interests of the relevant directors in a business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely
to compete either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business as informed by the Company’s directors (other
than independent non-executive directors) pursuant to Rule
8.10(2) of the Listing Rules are as follows:

EERHFRBNES

BARRER(TEREBLIFNTES)
RiE EHARRAESI0QIKEM - BH
EENAKEEBASND B EZ S HEE
AEBERGHF XA e EE U ERBEK
BRZEBRREAE 2RI

Name of the Position(s)

director within Company

EENE R4 T B

Mr. Tian Jun Non-Executive Director;
Chairman of the Board

AL E FHITEE  BEESXF

Position(s) in other companies
which may compete with the Group

WHRAKEERRF ZEM AT 2R

Director and General Manager of China Power
International Holding Limited

R EE A AL ERA A EERREE

Save as disclosed above, during the year and up to the
date of this report, none of the directors of the Company
are considered to have interests in any business which
competes oris likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company are fully aware of, and have
been discharging, their fiduciary duty to the Company. The
Company and its directors would comply with the relevant
requirements of the Articles and the Listing Rules whenever
a director has any conflict of interest in the transaction(s)
with the Company. Pursuant to the Articles, when the
director is aware of the existence of his interest, he is
required to declare the nature of such interest at a Board
meeting. Such director shall not vote nor be counted in
the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
transaction, contract or arrangement or any other proposal
in which he or any of his associates is materially interested.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following parties had interests
of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
according to the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as
known by the Company:

DIRECTORS" REPORT

FERRRER G 2 EH

B2018F12 8318 @ AR RIRIEFE
A MHEEP 336 ATEENE LM
Fr#E skt AR RRIFTA - LT & HHER
NEBBEITRARS% A EiEa

Name Nature of interest
£ BiEE
State-owned Assets Supervision and Corporate interests

Administration Commission of the State
Council, the PRC
FREEGEEAEEEEEREZER hERER

State Power Investment Corporation Limited Corporate interests
BRENREEEARAA hRER

China Power International Holding Limited ~ Corporate interests

REENERERAR hRER
Beneficial owner
EGEAA

China Power New Energy Limited Beneficial owner

REENFERERAA EREEA

China Three Gorges Corporation Beneficial owner

PERI=ZRERERAR EREAA

China National Offshore Qil Corporation Corporate interests

REEFRREEERAA RS

Overseas Oil & Gas Corporation, Ltd. Corporate interests
¥R

Shining East Investments Limited Beneficial owner
EnfEAA

Number of
shares interested
or deemed Percentage
Notes  to be interested holding*
BRIRD
W EANKROBE BREA Y
1,2,3, 778,641,857 65.62%
485
1&2 333,074,923 28.07%
1 313,602,923 26.42%
2 19,572,000 1.65%
333,074,923 28.07%
1 313,502,923 26.42%
3 321,626,923 27.10%
4 90,000,000 7.58%
4 90,000,000 7.58%
4 90,000,000 7.58%
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Notes:

84 CHINA

These 313,502,923 shares were held by China Power New Energy
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Power International
Holding Limited. China Power International Holding Limited was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of State Power Investment Corporation
Limited (formerly known as China Power Investment Corporation),
which in turn was wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of The State Council, the PRC (2
BB EEEEEEZE8 ). Accordingly, China Power International
Holding Limited, State Power Investment Corporation Limited and
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
The State Council, the PRC were deemed to be interested in these
shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These 19,572,000 shares were held by China Power International
Holding Limited. Based on the relations set out in note 1 above, State
Power Investment Corporation Limited and State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of The State Council, the
PRC were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

These 321,626,923 shares were held by China Three Gorges
Corporation (FEIRI=ZWKEEFRAQA), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of The State Council, the PRC. Accordingly, State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of The State Council, the
PRC was deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

These 90,000,000 shares were held by Shining East Investments
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Overseas Qil & Gas Corporation,
Ltd., which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of China National
Offshore Oil Corporation. China National Offshore Oil Corporation was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of The State Council, the PRC. Accordingly,
Overseas Oil & Gas Corporation, Ltd., China National Offshore Qil
Corporation and State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of The State Council, the PRC were deemed to be
interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Out of these 778,641,857 shares, 33,940,011 shares were held by
China Energy Engineering Group Guangdong Electric Power Design
Institute Co., Ltd. (PEIALREREEBREENRFAMAERRBERRA), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Energy Engineering Group Co., Ltd.
(P EIBEIREZREE AR A R]) which is an ultra-large energy construction
group directly managed by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of The State Council, the PRC. Accordingly,
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of The State Council, the PRC was deemed to be interested in these
shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2018.

POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person
had registered an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance have been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group had conducted
the following connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions and was exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules or had obtained the
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to Rule
14A.36 of the Listing Rules.
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The details of such connected transactions and continuing ZEFTA LTTRAE14A491ERE
connected transactions, which complied with the disclosure 14A7 VEH BREEHNBEERZ S RF

requirements of Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing BREZSFE  #IWT

Rules, are set out as follows:

(i)

Type: Continuing Connected Transaction

A SEMRER S

Announcement Date: 25/07/2017

NEBE 201747 AR 25H

Parties: (@) China Power International New Energy Holding Limited*
HESVE (“CPINE”) — an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company
REBRFERIZERERAR(THEEBRHEIR]) —ARAHE
2EMBLRR

(b) China Power Hua Chuang Electricity Technology Research Co.,
Ltd.* (‘*CPHCETR”) — a subsidiary of China Power International
Holding Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company)
and therefore a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules
REELENRMARAERAR(NHEEEL]) —FEAEHERE
RAB(ARA—BEFERF)NMBEAR - B ETRAME
RANRINEEAT

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

R R B R

TECHNICAL SUPERVISION AND SERVICES FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT — On 25 July 2017, the Parties entered into the
Technical Supervision and Services Framework Agreement, which is
a framework agreement for the provision by CPHCETR of technical
supervision and management services to the Power Generation
Enterprises of CPINE, including but not limited to:

Pl Ee B RIS IE R e B — 5T AT 70201757 B 26 B AT M g Ba B5 R
RBERGHRE  ZEERTEEAMPEERIERNEELER
HEMEE B RERREHERGZE - FETRRY

(1) detecting issues relating to equipment timely through
conducting technical supervision, putting forward practical
solutions to the issues and continuously tracking, supervising
and rectifying the issues identified;

BRFREMEETHE MYERREFENRERE  REDER
TR R - HEROMBETHERNE - B8N

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

FEENEREREREGRAT
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(2) undertaking the training, collection of evidence, inspection
and examination relating to technical supervision;

AERARMESENEY - BE - ok mET(E:

(3) participating in the assessment and verification work relating
to technical programs and feasibility study, etc.;
DNMBAEMA R - AIARESNHTEF - wELE

(4) participating in on-site investigation, examination and project
evaluation organised by CPINE;
2N EERFEEREABNIFISHE - wENERFEIE

(5) providing technical analysis report and relevant technical
supervision information and scientific and technological
information; and

RESMONRE - REERRMEBEERMEER « &

(6) periodically reporting to CPINE the analysis, evaluation and
inspection results and issues identified over the term of the
Agreement.

M E £ R AR P EEEFERERDNT - A RRE
RRAREHNEE -

Term:

HARR

25/07/2017-31/12/2019
201797 B25HE2019F12A831H

(renewable within the 3 months immediately preceding the expiry of
the term by mutual agreement of the Parties, subject to compliance
with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules)

(BT EMRRZBBERT - AIREEMREWRISEA AL
HEGERESR)

Annual Cap:
FELER :

25/07/2017-31/12/2017: RMB12,000,000
20177 B25HE2017F12A31H : AR¥12,000,0007T

01/01/2018-31/12/2018: RMB20,000,000
20181 A1HE2018F12831H : AR¥20,000,0007T

01/01/2019-31/12/2019: RMB26,000,000
20191 AR E2019%12H318 - AR¥26,000,0007T
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(if)

Type: Continuing Connected Transaction

A FEBRERS

Announcement Date: 16/10/2017

NEBH 2017%10R16H

Parties: (a) China Power International New Energy Holding Limited*
HEE (“CPINE”) — an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company
BRBEFERIERERAG([PEREHER]) —AARMEE
2EMBEAR

(b) Beijing China Power Huizhi Technology Company Limited
(“China Power Huizhi”) — a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Power International Development Limited (HKEx: 2380) and
also an indirect subsidiary of SPIC, and therefore a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
IRPEEEMEARAG([PEES ) —HEENERERE
AT ERFARMAI - 2380) 22 EWBAR - RKTEEK
BRoEZEMBELR - Bt ETRAIME ARAR EAL

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

ERP SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT — On 16
October 2017, the Parties entered into the ERP System Construction

REu M E A Framework Agreement, which sets out the framework for the
provision by China Power Huizhi of services in connection with
construction and implementation of an ERP (enterprise resource
planning) system to CPINE and the power generation enterprises
and subordinate companies designated by CPINE.
ERPRAMERIELBHEE —FIA R 2017F 1016 BRI LERPR
RIERGHE - ZEZFATEBES AP EEENEREEETNE
BRENTEBARREEHEERLEBEMERP(REEBRMAE) ZHRE
HEZR -

Term: 16/10/2017-15/10/2020

HARR - 201751016 HE2020510815H

Annual Cap: 16/10/2017-31/12/2017: RMB5.4 million

FELR: 2017103168 E2017512A31H : ARBS4BET

01/01/2018-31/12/2018: RMB12.1 million
20181 A1HE2018F12A31H : AR¥121EETT

01/01/2019-31/12/2019: RMB10.6 million
2019F1 B1HE2019F128318 : AR¥10.6BE8T

01/01/2020-15/10/2020: RMB9.6 million
2020%F1 A1HZE2020F10A15H : ARBIEETT

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

FEENEREREREGRAT
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(iii)

Type: Continuing Connected Transaction
A FBAER S

Announcement Date: 16/10/2017

NEBH: 20179F10R816H

Parties: (a) The Company

BEIREE RAT]

(o) SPIC Financial Co.,Ltd (“SPIC Financial”), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of SPIC (a substantial shareholder
of the Company) and therefore a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
BREREEMNBERAR(TERERMB]) » —KPX P EEM
BRIZZBREERRF  RERER(ARAFAN—BEERR)ZE
BHBAT - Futpt EHRAIT S RARRNBEAL

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

FINANCIAL SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT — On 16 October
2017, the Parties entered into the Financial Services Framework

RSB EEH Agreement pursuant to which SPIC Financial has agreed to provide
the Group with deposit services, loan services, settlement services,
and other financial services approved by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on a non-exclusive basis subject to the
terms and conditions provided therein.
CRRBIERERE ST HAR2017F10A16 BRI L © Bt RS IEZE #
& B BRERVBC AERGEMRE  GERRGMT  RIFBR
HEEMAEEREFHIRG - EFRG - fERBRPBERITREESE
BLEgE Hth & RARTS

Term: 01/12/2017-30/11/2020

HARR - 2017512 1B ZE2020%11A30H

Cap: RMB1 billion (approximately HK$1.19 billion) in respect of the

PR maximum daily balance of deposits (including accrued interests)

placed in SPIC Financial
EERBERVBFRESERFRER(BREETNE)SARKI0

BT (#11.918587T)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
F7 2018

89



90

DIRECTORS” REPORT

EEEHRE

(iv)

Type: Connected Transaction

$RE MER S

Announcement Date: 06/02/2018

NEBH 20185 2H6H

Parties: (a) BEFRBRREFEEHFR AT (Contract Letting Party), a company
HESPE incorporated in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company
AEFERREEERAF(ERR)  —KRFEGFMKZ 2R
Al WARARMNHEERZEMBERAR]

(b) SPI Power Engineering Company Limited (Contractor), a
company incorporated in the PRC and a subsidiary of SPIC and
SNPTC, and therefore a connected person of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules
TERENIRBRAF(EABRE)  —KRPEFEMKIZZ R
A TRERERRERZENMNBAR - AWt EHRAMmS
RARBIZBABEAL

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

Ry M BER

EPC PROJECT AGREEMENT — On 6 February 2018, the Parties
entered into the EPC Project Agreement pursuant to which the
Contract Letting Party engaged the Contractor to carry out the
engineering, procurement and construction work of the Project,
which involves the construction of a domestic garbage incineration
power plant in Yuandian Village, Guocun Town, Suiyang District,
Shangqiu City, Henan province, PRC.

EPCHEEB =& /I XA R 2018F 26 I ZEPCIHB & » #BAHZE
BASHETRENTIRE RKBEET - FRETBEINEE®ELTHS
[ BRI E A B — R AR W SRR ERR o

Term:

HARR -

The first and second power generating units under the Project are
expected to be delivered for trial production on around 30 June 2019
and 31 July 2019 respectively.

BHIZEENE - RE - aAK D RIN201956 A30H &2019%7 A
31 B A& A AR AR -

Consideration:

& :

RMB385,000,000
AE%385,000,0007T

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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(V)

Type: Connected Transaction

B BiE S

Announcement Date: 16/03/2018

NEBH: 201843 H16H

Parties: (a) State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation* (“Contract
HEIVE Letting Party”), a company incorporated in the PRC and a

subsidiary of SPIC, and therefore a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
BERZERMERAR(ERT L) RRPBEZMAL 2E R
BRERZMBAR - A3t EHRENMEARNARZEEAT

(o) Shanghai China Power New Energy Property Development
Limited* (“Contractor”), a company incorporated in the PRC
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FETPEFEREXERERAFT(EBE]) - ARPEGZMA
MR RRRARARZ 2 ENBAR

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

RSN B

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT — On 16 March
2018, the Parties entered into the Project Management Services
Agreement, pursuant to which the Contract Letting Party engaged
the Contractor to provide property management services for an
office building at Building 1, Compound 29, Bei San Huan Zhong Lu,
Xicheng District, Beijing and the residential apartments at Building
28, Guanlinyuan Community, Mafang Area, Haidian District.
MEERRERE —TA A R2018F3 16 AR L MEBERB B -
Bt HFESTEEADE /LN R ARE L =R F K 2958 15718
A RN SRS BEMNELR28FENABEEREMERE
2R -

Term:

HARR -

01/04/2018-30/03/2019
2018F4A1HZE20199F3A30H

Consideration:

(M

RMB5,809,166

AER®5,809,1667T
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(vi)

Type: Connected Transaction

A BER S

Announcement Date: 03/05/2018

NEBH 201855 H3H

Parties: (a) Xiamen China Power Photovoltaic Power Company Limited*
HESPE (Contract Letting Party), a company incorporated in the PRC

and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EFIFREXRBEERQGF(ERR)  —KRPEFAMKIZA
8 WARARNEEEZENEAF

(b) Shanghai Power Equipment Research Institute Co., Ltd*
(Contractor), a company incorporated in the PRC and a
subsidiary of SPIC, and therefore a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
FEEBRERERAARKEREETARAERE) - —FKNF
BAMKI AT - WABKEROMBE AT - Amst LHRA
MERRNRARIZBEALT

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

THE PROJECT PROCUREMENT AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT
— On 3 May 2018, the Parties entered into the Project Procurement
and Construction Agreement pursuant to which the Contract Letting
Party engaged the Contractor to carry out the procurement and
construction work for the Project, which involves the construction of
a photovoltaic power plant in Meipu Village, Tongan District, Fujian
province, PRC with an installed capacity of T0MW.
HERBMETHZE A R2018F5A3RFT L EB HERETR
& B BEHREAREETHEENREREL - FRETEER
HRZEEHNEZ —([ARXEETERIOMWHE S IRE S -

RSB BH -
Term:
HARR -

The power plant under the Project is expected to commence
operation within three months from the commencement of
construction.

FBHZIBANBERANS TRN=(EANFHREE -

Consideration:

& :

RMB34,276,000
ANE®34,276,0007T

Further details of the above connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions are set out in the
respective announcements and/or circulars, which are

FRRERZRGERER G2 E—F
FHEBRREAZRERFBEEHA - I
AIREE R P R AR BB ETER -

available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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ANNUAL REVIEW ON CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu has issued an unqualified letter
containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in the paragraph above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
reviewed the continuing connected transactions in the
paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i)  onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) accordingto the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Group as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions, some of which
constitute connected or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are set out in Note 37
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS" REPORT

FREEERS 2 FEEH

BIE EM R AIE14A.5615 -
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EEEHRE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the directors of the
Company, there was sufficient public float of not less than
25% of issued shares of the Company as required under the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance) for the benefits of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and
practices are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statement have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and being eligible,
official themselves for re-appointment at the 2019 AGM.

INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Closure of register of members

Right to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM: the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 27 May 2019
to 30 May 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
determining this right. In order to be entitled to attend and
vote at the 2019 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all share transfer documents
accompanied with the corresponding share certificates are
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
24 May 2019.

94 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Entitlement to the proposed final dividend: the register of
members of the Company will also be closed from 24 June
2019 to 27 June 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of determining this entitlement. In order to be qualified for
the proposed final dividend (if approved by the shareholders
at the 2019 AGM), unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all share transfer documents
accompanied with the corresponding share certificates are
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar at the above
address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 June
2019.

ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report is published in English and Chinese
bilingual format and is available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk under “Listed
Company Information” and the Company’s website at
http://www.cpne.com.hk. Printed copies in both languages
are posted to shareholders.

On behalf of the Board tZx&EZHe

TianJun H#
Chairman F/&

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
&% - 201993278
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

Deloitte

To the Members of
China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 103 to 242, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS BREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional MEEZEEERERMOBEEAE
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the REHANPEREMBEHRENEZRAE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. EWMEE  ZEETHEERMEZEE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit FEVERRREAEERBETEY
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and B BRMITIESZESHEREEN
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a BHR o

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

RREREE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R E R

We identified the carrying value of
goodwill related to power generation
as a key audit matter due to significant
accounting estimations and judgements
involved in estimating the recoverable
amounts of the relevant cash generating
units (“CGUs").

HRNEA AR ELBU([REELE
7 1) AT i B I8 e B A& A ET R
b BB REEREENOHEZREER
REAREZER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNNEERRERSEE

Our procedures in relation to key assumptions used by
management on impairment assessment of goodwill
included:
BPAERENEERENGEEANERBRRERNOERFE
¥

+ Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the key assumptions used;

FHEFTERAETE R ERBRROERNE

+ Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions

such as revenue growth rate in electricity output
and discount rates by comparing with the Group’s
prior year performance and benchmarking with the
market trend of comparable location, as well as
comparing the current year actual results with the
prior year budget in order to assess the reliability of
management budget and strategic plans;
FiREE EEEF—FRRWDE[ L BE TS
P AREBAFEEREEEN —FEE - FThEE
BROSEM - FIAEHEHWAEREMAEIRE - A
ML ERETRE RERET EIM AT S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matter (Cont’d)
FAREERSE(E)

Impairment assessment of goodwill
(Cont’d)
R (B RT G ()

As disclosed in note 2.9(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, for
the purposes of assessing impairment,
goodwill is allocated to each of the
CGUs or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. The calculations
of recoverable amounts of these CGUs
based on value in use calculation
require significant management
judgements and key estimates in
preparing cash flow projections,
including applying an appropriate
discount rate as well as growth rate.
WINERE B REMT290)IHKE - &
ERE BB NOREENBEE MR
AYEXEZEReEFEUNNTEE
FEUER - BRERABEFEZEL S
EEEMNFTKREIRIE  FERNGERE S
TR E I ERE R E A R B
it BREEREERRRNERE -

As disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements,
management has performed
impairment assessments by measuring
the recoverable amounts of these CGUs
based on value in use calculation. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, no
impairment was recognised based on
the impairment assessments performed
by management.
BNGEEVBBRRMT17ARE - B8
BEEREAEEARAAEXEREES
B AT B RO TR E RS - EE
2018F12A31HILFE - IEREEIR
[EHEIT 2% ERENEERRE

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Cont’d)

EMNECNTEERRELEE(E)

Agreeing the input data used in the value-in-use
calculation, such as power plant utilization rate and
per unit electricity price, to supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets and the agreed electricity rate
by the respective provincial power grid companies;
and
REREREAENEBELSHECREEMANR
AR XEZAERAFMAENTEENRTEESE
B &

Assessing management’s sensitivity analysis around
the key assumptions, to ascertain the extent to which
adverse changes, both individually and in aggregate,
would result in the goodwill being impaired.

AL EREEEREBRROBREST - UETEE LA
BTN EREERIBNEE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Hitv &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and, for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B M XA

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is YU Kin Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

mElER

HZE2018F 128318 ILEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETTT ARETTT
Revenue WA
Goods and services G m &R 4 4,762,260 4,775,465
Rental HE 56,443 45,510
Other income LR ON 5 56,739 65,458
Other gains and losses, net Hi ez REE - 58 6 2,163 12,688
Fuel costs FRELBC A (2,193,456) (2,215,299)
Staff costs BEKA 10 (293,068) (252,130)
Depreciation and amortisation ITE R 5H (943,872) (884,502)
Repairs and maintenance e RuEE (158,125) (112,838)
Other operating expenses Emg gz (463,217) (391,189)
Operatingprofit  _ ________@&&¥ 7. . ..81587 1,043,163
Finance income BRI A 8 14,297 11,367
Finance costs MsER 8 (621,865) (526,522)
Financecosts,net _ MEBRE FE 8 (607568 (515,158)
Share of profits of associates ~ ~_ MhBEA=@A ] 16451 ....12752
Share of profits of jointventures =~ BfmaAdXmf L C—
Profit before tax A5 B A 238,612 560,706
Income tax expense FriS Bk 9 (52,511) (156,860)
Profit for the year F Ag F 186,107 403,846
Attributable to: AT &7 (L -
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ =N 185,323 401,702
Non-controlling interests FEFERR B 7 778 2,144
186,101 403,846
Earnings per share for profit attributable AN F1HEA A FE1E % 7
to owners of the Company =T ¥ xil
(expressed in RMB per share) (AEBRAREZIR)
- Basic —E K (N 0.1562 0.3385
The notes on pages 111 to 242 are an integral part of these %1 11¢242EE’]W?7%E Eir e %

consolidated financial statements.

rZHD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEZHEWER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HZE2018FE12A3181LEE

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT
Profit for the year FREN 186,101 403,846
Other comprehensive expense: Hthe2mAx :
ltem that will not be reclassifiedto  BAEEHFHHEE
profit or loss: BmMIEE
Fair value loss on equity investment  AF{EF A M2 E UK
at fair value through other HIRIERE 2 A FE
comprehensive income, net of tax BB - MIRRTIA (18,750) -
Items that may be reclassified Hiig Rl pe B ME
subsequently to profit or loss: ZEmMWIER -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale At ERE 2 AFE
investment, net of tax 18 - HkRTIE = (8,250)
Exchange differences arising on WEIGINERET
translation of foreign operations EENEHEZR 2,649 (273)
Other comprehensive expense FREAM 2R X
for the year (16,101) (8,523)
Total comprehensive income FREEBELE
for the year 170,000 396,323
Attributable to: AT N
Owners of the Company KATHEB A 169,222 393,179
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 778 2,144
Total comprehensive income FAZHEKZLEE
for the year 170,000 395,323
The notes on pages 111 to 242 are an integral part of these %1 11¢242EE’JW&%§ Fir e MR

consolidated financial statements.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

SRE PRI &R

M2018F12H31H

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2018 2017
2018% 201745
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETTT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 14 18,780,100 18,210,016
Prepaid lease payments AR ERE 15 348,665 295,745
Investment properties "EYHE 16 315,204 308,496
Goodwill B 17 1,023,692 1,023,692
Other intangible assets HEmmpEE 17 34,105 31,500
Interests in associates N Y/NCI P X 18 158,621 153,569
Interests in joint ventures REBELE = 19 242,866 231,912
Available-for-sale investment AN ERE 25 - 244,000
Equity investment at fair value NEEFTAHA
through other comprehensive ZEWER
income IR E 25 219,000 -
Deferred tax assets IRERIBE B 31 29,730 27,180
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 26 1,447,883 1,048,296
22,599,866 21,574,406
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 21 137,138 125,518
Accounts receivable FEMAR X 22 1,651,600 1,165,393
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIR -
receivables T E b i W Sk 1B 20 454,348 931,371
Prepaid lease payments AR ERKIE 15 10,793 8,026
Financial assets at fair value NEEFTABE
through profit or loss MEmEE 23 4,849 7,140
Restricted deposits R HilfE K 24 27,872 36,318
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKBEEY 24 403,848 739,385
2,690,448 3,013,151
Total assets BEBRE 25,290,314 24,587,557
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

= A\ B S
SARBRRE
As at 31 December
®W12H31H
2018 2017
20185 2017%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
L ARBT T ARBT T
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable RAEIHEB AEG
to owners of the Company BARN
Share capital f& = 27 5,746,012 5,746,012
Reserves & 28 2,737,022 2,708,416
8,483,034 8,454,428
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = 148,705 99,268
Total equity M R 8,631,739 8,553,696
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities JEmEIaE
Long-term bank and other RERITR
borrowings Hithfg & 29 10,527,370 9,363,857
Corporate bond TEESH 30 799,630 799,363
Construction costs payable e REER AR 33 352,447 947,656
Other non-current payables H it JERNHAFE 1< 58 33 138,286 131,173
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAEE 31 59,619 75,286
11,877,352 11,317,335
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 2017%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE ARBT T ARBTT
Current liabilities mEBE
Accounts payable FERTRRER 32 112,045 46,639
Construction costs payable FEATREER AR 33 1,020,119 813,214
Other payables and HAhERT IR R
accrued charges FEETER 33 378,331 296,737
Short-term bank and other RHIRIT
borrowings Hibtg & 29 1,766,482 489,939
Current portion of long-term RAEIRITR
bank and other borrowings Hib B BB S 29 1,480,125 3,027,131
Tax payable FERTFIR 24,121 42,866
4,781,223 4,716,526
Total liabilities BfEERE 16,658,575 16,033,861
Total equity and liabilities e B EeE 25,290,314 24,587,557
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (2,090,775) (1,703,375)
Total assets less current liabilities ~ BELERTBEGE 20,509,097 19,871,031
The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 242 F103F 242 B MRE MK M 2019

were approved and authorized for issue by the board on 27
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

He Lianhui
e
Director

EF

Sun Guigen
BRER
Director

EF

FIA7AREFTSHIMERTETIF -
VB TIEERRETERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 BHZE2018F12A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARBARL
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings  Sub-total interests equity

B Riel  HtRE  RERA MtOFREER  ERER
RMB00O  RMB000  RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'0O0
ARETL ARBTR ARBTL AREBTL ARETLI ARETL ARETR

(note 28)
(FizE28)

Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018%F1418

k% oI T U383 2782047 8454428 99268 8563696
Profit for the year ERET = - - 185323 185313 778 186,101
Other comprehensive Et2E
income/(expense): W/ (Ax) -
Fxchange differences arising TEENEH
ontranslation of foreign operations  MELHEHZE = - 2,649 - 2,649 - 2,649
Fffects of share options BREYE = = (1,676) 1,676 = = =
Fair value loss on RTER AR
equity investment at fairvalue 2 ERENRIE
through other comprehensive REZATEEE -
income, net of tax TR - - (18750) - (18750) - (18750)
Total comprehensive (expense)/  ER2E(ER)/
income for the years lgarar] = = (17.777) 186,999 169,222 778 170,000
Dividend paid (note 12) BRRE(H12) = = - (140616)  (140,616) - (140,616)
Contribution from non-controlling K BRI
interests gy - - - - - 57,119 57,119
Acquisition of non-controlling Vs RER
interests - - - - - (8,460) (8,460)
Balance at 31 December 2018 12018%12831A

&8 5,746,012 - (91408) 2828430 8483034 148705 8,631,739

108 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TEENERERERARAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREHR
Attributable to owners of the Company
KATHE AEE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings  Sub-total interests equity
k& RGEE  HtRE  REEA Nt OFEREE  BREE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 28)
(Ft3t28)
Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017%1418
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2f 1077101 195308 4791812 2178616 8202837 70565 8273402
Profit for the year ERET - - - 401,702 401,702 2146 403,846
Other comprehensive expense:  Eft 2R :
Exchange differences FEENEHD
arising on translation of EEMERZR
foreign operations = = (273) = (273) = (273
Fair value loss on AfHEREL
available-for-saleinvestment,  ATERFE -
net of tax MeHE = S (8,250) S (8,250) S (8,250)
Total comprehensive (expense)/  FRZE(ER),/
income for the year kissE - - (8523) 401,702 393,179 2144 395323
Transactions with owners intheir B A (DR A
capacity as owners SN
Share options forfeited after GERERER
the end of the vesting period e fhe = = (3,345) 3,345 - - -
Dividend paid (note 12) BRE(FHF12) - - (141,588) - (141,588 - (141,588)
Contribution from non-controlling R FEHEMRIER
interests hrf = = = : : 26,559 26,559
Cancellation of shares THRN
(note 27(a)(i) (H&E27(0)(0) (1,077,101)  (195,308) (4,473,603) - (6,746,012 - (6,746,012)
Issue of new shares pursuantto ~ BEBANE
the Reorganization Proposal BIHRA
(note 27(a)(ii)) (MzE27(a)i)) 5,746,012 = = - S 7eI0P) - 5,746,012
Transfer (note 28(ii) a3 (R 28(in) = - (198,384 198,384 - - -
Total transactions with ownersin ~ SHAHAAEE A
_ theircapacityasowners GNMRAER 4008911 (195308 (4816920) 201729  (141588) 26559 (115028
Balanceat 31 December 2017 12017128318
&8 5,746,012 - (73631) 2,782,047  84B4428 = 99,268 8,553,696
ANNUAL REPORT 2018-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HZE2018F12A318ILEE

Year ended 31 December

BE12B31ALEE
2018 2017
20185 20175
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AREFT AREFTT
Operating activities RETH
Cash generated from operations REEDEENRS 34 1,263,081 1,583,001
PRC income tax paid BRPBEER (83,223) (214,051)
Net cash generated from operating activities #4853 4548 1,179,858 1,368,950
Investing activities REED
Payments for property, plant and TAME - BER
equipment HEEER (1,643,328) (2,154,527)
Payments for prepaid lease payments YRBARERE (48,229) (99,535)
Payments for intangible assets INEBREERER (9,436) (4,532)
Payments for investment properties SRHBREMEBER (4,294) -
Proceeds received from disposals of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment SEERIE 458 28,952
Capital injection into an associate m— kS ARTE S (9,200)
Acquisition of a joint venture WE-—HeELE - (10,500
Dividends received from associates and BEERRIR
joint ventures BEPERS 24,707 15,254
Proceeds received from disposal of HE—HEBELE
ajoint venture FT{S 3R 21,140 5,280
Interest received BUFIE 7,823 11,367
Decrease in restricted deposits X 67 H0R 10,446 35,872
Increase in restricted deposits R HIFREm (2,000) (36,318)
Decrease/(increase) in securities for BMEREER
finance leases "L/ (Em) 39,413 (3,429)
Net cash used in investing activities RERHAARCFR (1,603,300 (2,221,316)
Financing activities MEEE
Contribution from non-controlling interests % B FEIZRIERS ) 42,119 26,559
New bank and other borrowings FRGRITREMER 29 4,737,809 2,818,663
New corporate bond, net of HRELERS
transaction costs MBRZ H A = 799,200
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (BB HFTREMEE 29 (3,847,382) (2,262,302)
Repayment of corporate bond BELEES = (800,000)
Dividend paid ERERE 12 (140,616) (141,588)
Interest paid BRFE (695,565) (629,670)
Payments for non-controlling interests SAIEEREREER (8,460) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BEEEFE,/(FTH)
activities R FH 87,905 (189,138)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B2 REEZBYH L ERE (335,537) (1,041,504)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MATEZEE R
BEZEY 739,385 1,780,889
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A31BZHE 4R
REeFEY 24 403,848 739,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited
(“CPCE”, or the “Company”) is a limited liability Company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, owning, operation
and management of clean energy power plants in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), including but not
limited to the following types of energy generation-natural
gas power generation, wind power generation, hydro power
generation, waste-to-energy power generation, photovoltaic
power generation and other power generation. The Group
is also engaged in investment holding in the clean energy
power industry, property investments and securities
investments.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out as below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, these consolidated
financial statements include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except that certain equity
instruments and investment properties are measured at fair
value, as appropriate.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

e P BwRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(a) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by HKICPA for the first time in the current

year:
HKFRS 9

BB B HmEERFEINR
HKFRS 15

BB B RELERFE 165
Hong Kong (International Financial

Reporting Interpretation Committee)
Interpretation ("HK(IFRIC)-Int”) 22

55 (EREMBRERBEES)
—Z2EB(EE(BARMERE2RE
ZEg 28 E22%

Amendments to HKFRS 2

M BHREENE 29 (BF])
Amendments to HKFRS 4

BRUBREEANE 4T (EFT)

FTESTBERME(E)

21 (REEE(E)

(a) FEFIHETRASIEAT SR BREE
A

WAFRE - AEESRER T hES

AR 2 BT R BB

kR -

Financial Instruments

EHRIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related
Amendments

®PERKARABBER

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
INER B R BB

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

BN NRZH D RET 2

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

RATEMBHREEAELRE [REEH K —HERE BB RS
ZRFEH [ FIT A

Amendments to HKAS 28

Cycle
B G ERIE 285 (1BFT)
Amendments to HKAS 40
BB G ERFE 4098 (1BF]) REMFENER
Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(a) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” for the first time in the current year. HKFRS
15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of electricity to
regional and provincial power grid companies and provision
of power generation and related services.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained earnings (or other components of
equity, as appropriate) and comparative information has
not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18,
HKAS 11 and the related interpretations.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in notes 2.23 and 4 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
15

Since more than 99% of the Group’s revenue comprised of
revenue from contracts with customers from generation
and rate-regulated sales of electricity, heat and waste-
handling to customers like regional and provincial power
grid companies, heating companies and waste-handling
companies, where revenue continue to be recognised at
a point in time upon transmission to the customers. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have a material impact on
the Group’s financial position at 1 January 2018 except for
disclosures.

2 IFESHBEBEGE

2.1 WREE(E)

(a) BRI RESTEBYHHREE
R (&)

BV BRELENELR [ FFPAR

YA

AEBERAFEERERATEVBER

FERF165 [FPERWAL - BEY

BHREENE15REMRBE S LR

F185 WAL - BB ERIFE 1R

[ZiEE R | RERERE -

AEEBRHRAKB AR N ERE
BAREEMRHEABERABRS -

AEBBEXERESYBHMEERE S
5% EBVIAE AL ERI REFEE
R2018F1A1BVIREAERRER - =
BERYVBERE BMBYIRE &EH (HEH

fE AR R - B ) R RER - HEE
BB - tbsh - RIBBBM B MELE

BIZE 15 MBEGR - AEBEREERE
1% ERE SRR 201841 A1BHA
ERMER - At - ARLEER TR
BERBSTERNE 185 BESHER
FVHFARABRZRERE e THR
BRI RE TN E BRI L o

EEAEBBENRENERBT SR
EREAFEISHERNSTBORZER D
BUPAMIEE2. 23 R4 ER ©

NREREEMERERENEISHAE
FENHE

AR 5= B B 3B 99 % Y W A s [l 3t [ %
ERBMEAR  HARTRAFRER
AEEPRERZEBRESE - AR
REHEFEBIEVETFPERKA - RA#
BRATEFPEBRNEHMHEER - R
BEEI KRB B BRELERF 6
SREAREEN 20181 1 BN
WEBERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(a) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit
losses ("ECL”) for financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
earnings and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 2.10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets under HKFRS 9 and HKAS
39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018:

SRR (4

A

BEAVBHRELENFOR ISR T A

(#)

NEERERMBRERNFORMELE

FENHE

TRHIPERMEERVIRERB A
2018F1 A1 B)RIBF B KRS LR
FORREBER G LERNFEIRETHD

HRETE -
Equity
investment
at fair value
Available-  through other
for-sale comprehensive AFS FVTOCI
(“AFS”) income revaluation revaluation
investment (“FVTOCI”) reserve reserve
AVE
FARMRE
Wz ([ AYE AYE
AHHE FTARA AR
(TTHEE) Z2ER&RH AHEE 2EKEN
RE RERE EfhftE Eftf#E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFT
(Note 25)
(KtzE25)
Balance at 31 December 2017 4201751243182
- HKAS 39 GHR—BREHEL
%£3095% 244,000 = 8,250 =
Effects arising from initial IREREEUERESE
application of HKFRS 9: BIEORFELNEE !
- Reclassification —ENDE
From AFS investment e HERE (i (244,000) 244,000 (8,250) 8,250
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F1A18 246 - 244,000 - 8,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(a) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’'d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i)  AFSinvestment

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income
for the fair value changes of its equity investment previously
classified as AFS investment. This investment is not held
for trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future. At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, balance
of RMB244,000,000 was reclassified from AFS investment to
equity investment at FVTOCI. The fair value loss, net of tax,
of RMB8,250,000 relating to this unlisted equity investment
previously carried at fair value was adjusted to equity
investment at FVTOCI and FVTOCI revaluation reserve as at 1
January 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all accounts
receivable. Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, accounts receivable have
been assessed individually.

Except for those which had been determined as credit
impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at
amortised cost, including notes receivable, deposits and
other receivables, long-term deposits pledged as securities
for finance leases, restricted deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are assessed on 12-month ECL (*12m ECL")
basis as there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, the directors reviewed and assessed
the Group’s existing financial assets for impairment
using reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort in accordance with
the requirements of HKFRS 9. As the assessed amount is
not material, no additional credit loss allowance has been
recognised against retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the application of HKFRS 9

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial
position had to be restated. The following table shows the
adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(a) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the application of HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

2 IFESHBEBEGE

2.1 WREE(E)

(a) BRI RESTEBYHHREE
R (&)

FEEMBEHRELEANEIR [/ T A

(&)

NREREBMBEREENFIRTEE

FENBEE)

FEMEBM B HRE L FIRHPNERS

MBRRAKRAEENTE(E)

Reclassification

and
remeasurement
arising from the
31 December  application of 1 January
2017 HKFRS 9 2018
EREE
BI RS 2R
BOREEN
20175 BENSER 20184
12831H EFFE 181H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT ARBFL
(Audited) (Restated)
(EZ) (=)
Non-current assets *RBEE
AFS investment EHERE 244,000 (244,000) -
Equity investment at FVTOCI NTFEGARMRE
s IR B A - 244,000 244,000
Others with no adjustments VEFELAERNEMER 21,330,406 - 21,330,406
21,574,406 = 21,574,406
Current assets RBEE 3,013,151 > 3,013,151
Current liabilities REAE 4,716,526 - 4,716,526
Net current liabilities RBeEFHE (1,708,375) - (1,703,375)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZFRABERE 19,871,031 = 19,871,031
Equity &
Share capital L& 5,746,012 - 5,746,012
Reserves e 2,708,416 - 2,708,416
Non-controlling interests RS 99,268 - 99,268
Total equity AR 8,553,696 - 8,553,696
Non-current liabilities E = 11,317,335 ¥ 11,317,335
Total equity and liabilities EzkaEAE 24,587,557 - 24,587,557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 16
BABMBHmEERFE 165
HKFRS 17
BB BHmEERE175R
HK (IFRIC) = Int 23
55 (EREMBRERBEESY
—REE235%
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB BHREEREIFR(EET)
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BB BHREERFEIF(EF])
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
BB BHREERFE109E R
BB SEERFE 2858 (157])
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
BEBGHERNEIRR
BB G ERESR (BF])
Amendments to HKAS 19
BB G ERE195E(1BF])
Amendments to HKAS 28
BB G ERE 285 (1&F])
Amendments to HKFRSs
BBMBHREER(EET)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 !

FTESTBERME(E)

2.1 REEE(F)

E R 18 5 K £ 3% 2 #T AT RAZAEET
BB BHEER
AEBEYERFEA TS EMERK
HER R MRIERT BB S HMEER -

Leases'

HE

Insurance Contracts?

RigA R

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

FRSTBRRIE 2 THETE 1E

Definition of a Business*

EBHESE

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

B EMERENENFIE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

KREEHEEBE ARG BELEZHNEEL SR EAS
Definition of Material®
BEMHTERS

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
FHENEET ~ BB

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
REERBREELE I RPER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'
FRMBHREER2016F 2201 7FBH 2 FEUGE

R2019F 1 A1BR 2 ERB 2 FEHRHE4E

3
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 2 R2021F1 A1 Az &Rz EE AR E
ik
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 R—ERFE Bk 2 BB 2 FEHRBRER
determined
& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which 4 HULEE H B A 2020F1 B1HER 2B FIAH

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest
and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use while other operating leases payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, leases payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated to a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group,
and upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be
presented as investing cash flows.

e PR HRRME

2 IFESHBEBEGE

2.1 REEE(E)

(b) B8 [ R E M F 5T RAZMEET
BBUBHEER (H)

M REERF 165 [HE]

BEMBHRELERNE 165 BB EEA
REBAZHERHFR G EESIA—
EmRERK - BEMBRELLE16
SAEME - BB G ERFE 175
[THE | MAARE R -

BEMBRELERE 16 BIEPIRRIE
ESTmEPENRRSBHORRBEE
[ o Lok - BEM B REERIE 165
EERBORZRET B K RELER
FISHEREENHEER T RIERH
EABRNBREMETE - BEMBREE
AIFE 16 MBIEE @O A RBENEHRN
RUE e

BREHEOMEEEEERNI K&
HHOEREBEONZEAABAGE
BBk WHABEABRAEHEOE
REAREENEBEREBENRAEN -

EREEENSIRKNATTE - BERIAK
AR CE T BISMESERIN) B R 5T E BB
EEETE  YHEEAENERER
FREMELRE -HEAGVFREE
MRCGEE AT RETE - BER -
HEaBEeRMEREENFIAREL
ERMFEELRE - RREREDE
mE - AKBEREREBHEEL KR
AIENEERREZ2IARERSRE
MEMKLHERRUZ2IAELRS
ME - REMEEMHERELEANE 165
% ARHEERENEEREROER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS
16 may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use asset separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17 and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB25,835,000 as
disclosed in note 35. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will apply the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sales and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale. For a transfer
that does not satisfy the requirements as a sale, the
Group will account for the transfer proceeds as financial
liabilities within the scope of HKFRS 9. In accordance with
the transition provisions of HKFRS 16, sale and leaseback
transactions entered into before the date of initial
application will not be reassessed but the new requirements
may impact the Group’s future sale and leaseback
transactions.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FEENEREREREGRAT

2 EEEFBRBMEGE)

2.1 REEE(F)

(b) B8 [ R E R F AT RAZME T
BRI BIHEER (&)

EEMBHREERE 165 [HEI(E)

RBEEB ST ERNE175  AEEEH
MEMELHHER -REE R —HIAMH
REMEARE  UERAKEREAEA
MEE T ERENEERR - BAE
BUBREEAZ1RERTAERE
BINHEEEERE 27 WIAEER
BEMR-ABANZIEREEEMA
RERREEEN D BRLBCED -

BRIEANEBAANETHREN  BE
B HEEAF1FABAERTES A
ERNFE17ROBEASTHEBIERE @ X
BEERHEASEERBRKLENED
KEETEL ©

BEAN - B3R 21638 B AR
BZHRE -

R2018F 12 B31H » # a0 £ 354
BASBEABTREESCEROREA
R#25,835,0007T ° M1 FHEERA %
ELHBEFEHENNTE - EAREN
IERMEERE165RE - BIEBEAAEHT
AIEEESREHBONKYE  XEES
MRATEZERANEAREEEMERE
maRE-

EREEMBEREERE 165 - KK
BREREEMBRSENFISHZ
ME - HERBORZIREEBKIHEE
1TRHE - BLRBEERHE R EMEREM
B AREBREEBREENFE
FNBEAAREEMSHALSEHE
B REFBVBHREEF 165 218
B MR B BRTRI LN E 1R
MBS IEEM - ERREA LR
EREERRERARDRS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

The application of new requirement may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosures as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained earnings without restating comparative
information.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide additional guidance with the objective of assisting
entities to determine whether a transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or an asset
acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group
prospectively for acquisition transactions completed on or
after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. The amendments
also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair value at acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition-date fair values, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

122 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

FEENEREREREGRAT

2 EEEFBRBMEGE)

2.2 #HEAE

(a) HELA

MEBAREAERAEHENEE(BIE
HEREEER)  EAKERBAT E®
M= A A] & o AR R R K&
BEREEHEAZERRESTER - AR
SEMIEHZES - WB A EEmliE
EREARNEEEARREEAR - KB
NEMEZESI AR E B REIEAR S BRI SIBR o

i) ZEBast
AEBEREABBEBRGEHARK - I
BHBEARNBERNRESMEREE
BB ARNAEEAMELEN AR
RAGSEBRTORAEZNATE &£
KH A Gt BTUCE AT BB B B A S P
EORELRIAAE - MHEAERKE
AHM R FEFE -

AEBER AR EEEERREE LB
EAIEERER - ERERBRERERY
BTESAEARNBRERLIDEER
B8 A B F B B 2 SRR AR R M & ) 2A
RFESK AR B R IR L ] 0 16 R B
RACHERABMAFEESHETE - I
HERBVBHRELEARENS —FHEE
HELHE - RSN ATA E AR ED
DREER N A TERE

WRBARRIR AR EE A S8

A 6t 0B BT - RIMBETT TR
FAENREET RSN KEE A6
FREEDNDEFFERKBREHNAT
B ZEFAEELNEMNRENER
Typ iR es s HE b 2 R (AE ) e

27
e ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

(i)  Business combinations (Cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquire over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

(i)  Changes in ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(iv) Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to the financial assets and financial liabilities at
their respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

(b) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the investee after the date of acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(b) Associates (Cont’d)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. If a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate (including goodwill) is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associates are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealized losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interests in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(c) Jointventures

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between
the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
joint venture (including goodwill) is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of the joint
venture and its carrying value and recognises the amount in
the consolidated income statement.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.3 Foreign currencies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The principal activities of
the Group are mainly transacted in RMB and accordingly
the consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.3 Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “finance costs”. All other exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “Other operating expenses”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
such as equities classified as equity investment is included
in the FVTOCI reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of that reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Cost includes purchase price of the
asset, costs transferred from construction in progress and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives to their
residual values as follows:

Buildings 14-50 years
Dam 50 years
Power generators and equipment 5-25 years
Others 3-17 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).
Such impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the net sale proceeds with the carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.5 Construction in progress and prepayments for
construction of power plants

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery, direct labour costs and
overheads and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and are available for the intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated in note 2.4.

Prepayments for construction of power plants represent
advance payments made to contractors in connection with
the construction of the Group’s power plants including
payments for equipment and machineries pending
delivery to the relevant power plants for installation.
Such prepayments are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

2.6 Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Cost mainly represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated and coast use right. Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.7 Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

2.8 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition,
intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over expected beneficial
period. The expected beneficial period and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

(a) Non-financial assets other than goodwill

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment losses is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount.

For the purposes of impairment assessment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are independent
cash inflows (“cash-generating units” or “CGUs”). The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

(b) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree at acquisition date.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of
the CGUs or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.

Goodwill impairment assessments are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.10 Financialinstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL”) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.11 Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2.1(a))

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial assets is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual term give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)

Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(a)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)

(b) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial asset that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses, net” line item.

(c) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve, and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2.1(a))

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including accounts receivable, notes receivable, deposits
and other receivables, long-term deposits pledged as
securities for finance leases, restricted deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
the financial instrument is not determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Low credit risk

If the financial instrument has a low risk of default, the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations, the credit risk on
a financial instrument is considered low.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instruments external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)
Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due (except for clean energy power price premium)
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)
Credit-impaired financial assets

Afinancial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
and other receivables are each assessed as a separate
group. Accounts receivable are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;
. Nature and size of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the directors to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2.1(a)) (Cont’d)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investment in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
accounts receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables,
and AFS investment. The classification depends on the
purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.
The directors determine the classification of the Group’s
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-
term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within twelve months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables mainly comprise deposits with banks and
accounts and other receivables with fixed or determinable
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Cont’d)

(c) AFSinvestment

Investments are designated as AFS investment if they do not
have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments,
and management intends to hold them for the medium- to
long-term. Financial assets that are not classified into any of
the other categories (at FVTPL or loans and receivables) are
also included in the AFS category.

The financial assets are presented as non-current assets
unless they mature, or management intends to dispose of
them within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

When securites classified as AFS are sold, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss as gains and losses
from investment securities.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. AFS investment and
financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at FVTPL” and “AFS investment” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
respectively in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at FVTPL and AFS investment
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Cont’d)

(d) AFSfinancial asset

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition
of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI
upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the AFS revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
earnings.

2.12 Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.12 Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including corporate bond, bank and
other borrowings, accounts payable, construction costs
payable and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and with other financial institutions
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Restricted deposits are
separately disclosed from cash and cash equivalents.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories comprise coal, oil, consumable supplies and
spare parts held for consumption and usage and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realizable value after provision
for obsolete items, and are expensed to fuel costs or
repairs and maintenance expense when used/consumed,
or capitalized to property, plant and equipment when
installed, as appropriate using weighted average method.
Cost comprises purchase price and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition and excludes borrowing costs.

2.15 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.15 Borrowings and borrowing costs (Cont’d)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as these
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Currentincome tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period in the places where the Company and
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferredincome tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profits or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b) Deferredincome tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax
liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profits available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable rights to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme established under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are expensed as
incurred. Both the Group and its employees in Hong Kong
are required to contribute 5% of each individual’'s relevant
income with a maximum amount of Hong Kong dollars
("HK$”) 1,500 per month as a mandatory contribution.
Employees may also elect to contribute more than the
minimum as a voluntary contribution. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group and
managed by independent professional fund managers.
The Group has no future payment obligation once the
contributions have been paid.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group contributes
on a monthly basis to various defined contribution plans
organized by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC based on certain percentage of the
relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for any post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are expensed as incurred.

All contributions to pension plans are fully and immediately
vested and the Group had no unvested benefits available to
reduce its future contributions.

(b) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
areliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
of bonus plan are expected to be settled within 12 months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(c) Share-based compensation expense

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(share options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share price); excluding
the impact of any service and nonmarket performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth
targets, forfeiture rate and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specific period of time), and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of share options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.18 Provisions

Provisions (including environmental restoration provisions)
are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligations using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
the provision shall be reversed.

2.19 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Specifically, government grants whose primary condition
is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income/a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.19 Government grants (continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

2.20 Finance lease

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property, plant and equipment and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in short-
term and long-term finance lease obligations. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

2.21 Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made or received
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged or credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

2.22 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors and certain senior management
that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.23 Revenue and income recoghnition

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2.1)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

2.23 Revenue and income recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note2.1) (Cont’d)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from Customers in which
the Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for significant financing components, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The Group recognises interest income during
the period between the payment from customers and the
transfer of the associated goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

2.23 Revenue and income recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue and income when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

(i)  Sales of electricity and revenue from heat supply
by thermal power are recognised when electricity is
generated and transmitted.

(i) Rubbish handling income and repairs and maintenance
management fee income are recognised when services
are rendered.

(iii) Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

(v) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s Shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s Shareholders or directors as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined based on
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of
disposal. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment assessment and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary
to take an impairment charge to the consolidated income
statement. Specific assumptions and estimates involved in
the cash flow projections are set out in notes 14 and 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, management has
performed impairment assessments based on value in
use calculation by measuring the recoverable amount of
certain CGUs associated with goodwill as well as certain
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, and
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of RMB19,000,000 and RMB1,977,000
(2017: nil and nil) has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement based on such impairment assessments
performed by management.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible
assets are RMB18,780,100,000, RMB1,023,692,000
and RMB34,105,000 (2017: RMB18,210,016,000,
RMB1,023,692,000 and RMB31,500,000) respectively.

(ii)  Fairvalue of equity investment at FVTOCI

The fair value of equity investment at FVTOCI is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management’s judgement
is required in the area of asset impairment particular in
assessing the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
the valuation. Specific assumptions and estimates involved
are set out in note 25.

(iii) Useful lives, residual values and depreciation charges of
property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technological advancement and innovations in the power
industry. Management will adjust the depreciation charge
where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation charges in the future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)
(iv) Currentand deferred income tax expenses

The Group is subject to income taxes which is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws in the places where the Group
operate and generate taxable income. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these places. There are transactions and
calculations during the ordinary course of business for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilized. Deferred tax liabilities of the Group mainly arise
from the unremitted earnings of its PRC subsidiaries. The
reliability of the deferred tax liabilities mainly depend on its
subsidiary’s dividend pay-out ratio. When the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation
amount in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 WA R D EER
(a) Disaggregation of revenue @) ZHBA
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE2018F12A31ALEE
Waste-to-

Natural Wind Hydro energy Photovoltaic Other

gas power power power power power power

generation generation generation generation generation generation

business  business  business  business  business  business Total

AAR B KA 3k iR Htt

REXR RERY  REXE  REXR  RERE  BEXEK @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETL ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
Sales of electricity to AERERLF
provincial power grid LEES
companies 2,464,854 1,034,883 294,010 331,113 336,399 50,272 4,511,531
Heat supply by thermal BEMREMAR
power plants to other 1z
companies 21,019 = = = - 104677 125,696
Waste-handling income SRR = - - 115,033 - - 115,033
Total @z 2,485,873 1,034,883 294,010 446,146 336,399 154949 4,752,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 4 WARDEER(E)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d) (@) DIFWA(E)
Timing of revenue recognition for the year ended 31 BHZE2018F12 A3 B ILFE MR AR
December 2018 TR
Total
@t
At a point of time RE—F 4,752,260
4,752,260
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE017F12A31BILEE
Waste-to-
Natural Wind Hydro energy Photovoltaic Other
gas power power power power power power
generation generation generation generation generation generation
business  business  business  business  business  business Total

AR B Kh R R A
RMB000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB0O0  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTR ARBTL ARBTT ARETL ARETL ARETR

Sales of electricity to AEREHAT

provincial power LEEN

grid companies 2,727,068 870,014 430,737 232,122 310,944 11,499 4,582,384
Heat supply by thermal HEFMAMLA

power plants to other {2

companies 15,666 = S = - 88,584 104,250
Waste-handling income SRR - - - 88,831 - - 88,831
Total st 2,742,734 870,014 430,737 320,953 310,944 100,083 4,775,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d)

Majority of the sales of electricity to provincial power grid
companies are pursuant to the power purchase agreements
entered into between the Group and the respective
provincial power grid companies, the Group’s sales of
electric power were made to these power grid companies at
the tariff rates agreed with the respective provincial power
grid companies as approved by the relevant government
authorities.

For sales of electricity and heat, revenue is recognised when
control of electricity and heat has transferred, being when
electricity and heat is supplied to the power grid companies
and heat customers. Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the electricity and heat is
supplied to the power grid companies and heat customers.
The normal credit terms are 30 days upon transfer. Except
the tariff premium of renewable energy as disclosed in note
22(iii), there is no significant financing component among
the payment terms of sales of electricity and heat.

For waste-handling, revenue is recognised when the agreed
amount of waste is handled by the Group. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately at the point the waste
is handled.

There is basically no obligations for refunds, returns,
exchanges or warranties, considering the business mode
and nature of electricity, heat and waste-handling.

(b) Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors and certain senior management
of the Group (together, the “CODM”) that makes strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of
the Group in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on each segment’s profit/(loss) before
tax and share of profits of associates and joint ventures
(“segment results”).

The Group has the following major segments: power
generation, property investments and securities
investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b) Segmentinformation (Cont’d)

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
construction, ownership and management of clean energy
power plants in the PRC. The power generation business is
further evaluated based on the types of energy generation
(natural gas power generation business, wind power
generation business, hydro power generation business,
waste-to-energy power generation business, photovoltaic
power generation business and other power generation
business).

The property investments segment is engaged in the leasing
of properties to generate rental income. The securities
investments segment is engaged in securities trading. These
segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds required
by HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” for reportable segments
and are grouped together under “others”.

No sales between operating segments are undertaken.

Unallocated income mainly refers to interest income
earned from cash and cash equivalents held at corporate
level. Unallocated expenses mainly refer to general and
administrative expenses incurred at corporate level.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets, AFS investment, equity
investment at FVTOCI and corporate assets, all of which are
managed on a central basis.

Other unallocated assets mainly comprise property,
plant and equipment, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents held at
corporate level.

No analysis of segment liability is presented as the CODM
does not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue, segment results and
segment assets are presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRME

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b)

Segment information (Cont’d)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2018

and 2017 is as follows:

4 WARTHER(E

(b) HIWER(E)
MBEDIREFTELERARE &
E2018FE R2017F12A31HIEEEZ
DEERAT

Waste-to-
Natural Wind Hydro energy  Photovoltaic Other
gas power power power power power power
generation  generation  generation  generation  generation  generation
business  business  business  business  business  business
PRt BA 9| bk | biS R Others  Unallocated Total
REEH  BEEXR  REEY  HEER  REEY  HEXR fp RAE a3t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBO00  RMBO000  RMB000  RMB00O
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
Forthe year ended 31 Decernber 2018 BZ2018%12A31 B I 5
Segment revenue AHUA 2,486,713 1,035,801 294,090 446,494 338,605 155,007 51,993 - 4,808,703
Results of reportable segments RENBEE 72,31 289,464 (52,03) 68,937 103,490 (9.526) (55,769) - 416,784
Areconciliation of results of E e £
reportable segments to profit Enigflz
for the year is as follows: HEmT:
Results of reportable segments CpRES 416,784
Unallocated income KARMA 2991
Unallocated expense FARRR (211,476)
Share of profits of associates EfrBERTE 16,451
Share of profits of joint ventures EREELRRET 13,862
Profit bfore tax IRARA 238,612
Income tax expense fiEtim (52511)
Profit for the year Ehigfl 186,101
Segment results included: APEERE:
Depreciation and amortisation TERER (111,004 (664283 (123,834 (100,006)  (146777)  (10,164) (3,40) (6,305)  (943872)
Finance income HHRA 2,353 1854 397 1,24 5,381 n % 2991 16,097
Finance costs A%ER (150,214)  (182,931) (94,423) (56,223) (55,336) (2,665) (6,647) (73,426) (621,865)
Impairment losses of property, 0% BERRER
plant and equipments and other LfpEpEE,
intangible assets HEER (20977) - - - - - - - (097

FEENEREREREGRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b) Segmentinformation (Cont’d)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 is as follows: (Cont’d)

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

4 WARTBERE)

(b) DWER(E)
MBEDIIRBEFETBEELERREZE
E2018F K2017F12A31HILEFEZ
DEERINT ()

Waste-to-

Natural Wind Hydro
§as power power power

energy  Photovoltaic Other
power power power

generation  generation  generation  generation  generation  generation
business  business  business  business  business  business

AR B 9

b1k b H Others  Unallocated Total

BEEE  RERE  RERE  YRRE  RERY  RERE At A58 3t
RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBO0O
ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TT ARETR ARMTR ARMTR AR¥TR  ARETR

Forthe year ended 31 December 2017 BE2017512A31 A L5
e
3

Segment revenue N 2,742,734 870,029 430,737 320,953 317,579 100,083 38,860 - 4820975
Results of reportable segments RENDEE 291,627 168,551 60,353 88,510 106,411 (9.361) (39,512) - 666,579
Areconcilation of results of BEADEERER

reportable segments to profit R ZHENT :

for the yearis as follows:
Results of reportable segments HEPE 666,579
Unallocated income APEMA 351
Unallocated expense RARAR (138922)
Share of profits of associates NI 12,752
Share of profits of joint ventures ElERELEE 19,946
Profit before tax Ritaa 560,706
Income tax expense R (156,860)
Profit for the year Efiaf 403846
Segment results included: APrEaE:
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (119.040)  (629414)  (129120)  (63,699)  (129,666) (7,946) (3379) (2029)  (884,502)
Finance income BRI 6,196 766 353 8% il 19 17 3714 11,367
Finance costs HHER (106902  (184378)  (88,033) (29603  (45219) (2,679) (4583  (65.229)  (6526522)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRME

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 4

(b) Segmentinformation (Cont’d)

WAR 7 EER (E

(b) 2EEFR(R)

Waste-to-
Natural Wind Hydro energy  Photovoltaic Other
gas power power power power power power
generation  generation  generation  generation  generation  generation
business  business  business  business  business  business
AR BA 9| bk | b R Others  Unallocated Total
BERE  REER  REEE 0 REEE YEER MEEE A KAR it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBO00  RMBO0O0  RMB000  RMB00O
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Asat 31 December 2018 20185128318
Segment assets AHEE 3,384,082 8305945 4526150 4538840 2,765,186 487,792 400,504 - 24,408,499
Interests in associates REERA BR 158,621 158,621
Interests in joint ventures N ¥ I 22866 242,866
Deferred tax assets EiEEE 2,730 29730
Equity investrent at FVTOCI LATEARMEE
st RERE 219,000 219,000
Other unallocated assets ERIREE 81598 231598
Total assets per consolidated FeEHMRR
statement of financial position 25|z aEEE 25,290314
Additions to non-current assets REFIBEE 231,408 1 W03 99340 6787 159,435 7970 9430 1,468,607
Asat31 December 2017 R017512R318
Segment assets AHEE 4039079 8755215 3568462 3466035 2,816,438 305,767 407,465 - 23,348,461
Interests in associates REENAER 153,569 153,569
Interests in joint ventures et kR PRIV IR IV
Deferred tax assets ELiEEE 27,180 27,180
AFS investment AHERE 266000 244,000
Other unallocated assets AfbAniAE 582435 582435
Total assets per consolidated FeEHmRR
statement of financial position 2l AELE 24,587,557
Additions to non-current asssts TEXTIEE 99,074 501,949 80,326 862,538 562,129 85,827 3,098 6916 2,201,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b) Segmentinformation (Cont’d)

Substantially all of the Group’s revenue and assets are
generated or located in the PRC except that bank and
cash balances held at corporate level in the amount of
approximately RMB20,535,000 (2017: RMB47,020,000)
were deposited in Hong Kong, an investment property of
approximately RMB27,204,000 (2017: RMB26,496,000)
is situated in Hong Kong, financial assets at FVTPL in the
current assets of approximately RMB4,849,000 (2017:
RMB7,140,000) relating to equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and total assets of approximately RMB21,068,000
(2017: RMB22,111,000) relating to wind power generation
business in Germany.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, external revenue of
approximately RMB2,464,854,000, and RMB768,861,000 are
generated from 2 major customers, each of which accounts
for 10% or more of the Group’s external revenue. The
revenue is attributable to the natural gas power generation
business, wind power generation business and photovoltaic
power generation business segments. For the year ended
31 December 2017, external revenue of approximately
RMB2,727,063,000 and RMB693,783,000 are generated
from 2 major customers, each of which accounts for 10%
or more of the Group’s external revenue. The revenue is
attributable to the natural gas power generation business,
wind power generation business and photovoltaic power
generation business segments.

5 OTHERINCOME

4 WARTBERE)

(b) ZDHTERI(E)
AEBLETHAERAREETIRE KA
KPR ELAFEMBFAECRITERRS
EERAI AR 20,535,0007C (20174 ¢
AR ¥ 47,020,0000) REBF R -
—HBEWELH AR 27,204,0007T
(20174 : AR #26,496,0007T ) £ A
EERRBEERRAFEFAERED
SRMEENH AR 4,849,000t (2017
F: ANRBE7,140,0007T) BEFH £
MeBAEBHFBEH MEEREHNA
R ¥21,068,000 L (2017 F : AR¥
22,111,000 ) BB A ER 2 & %S
X%HE -

HZE2018F12A31BILFE » ShEFIL
ANA AR 2,464,854,0007C & A R
768,861,000/ RE2REERF « &
SR MAREEINFUAZ10% A £ -
WA RERARREEER  RHEE
EBRARBEEERDE - HE2017F
12A3MBLEFE  IBRAHARE
2,727,063,0007T & A R#693,783,000
TNRE2BEERF  HESHALE
HNEBUR A Z 10% 8K BA | o WA T3k B K
RREBBER BOBBEBERLARE

TEBHH -

5 HflkA

Year ended 31 December

HE12A3MBLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Refund of value added taxes (note)  E{EBED (MT:E) 38,973 32,743
Government grants B @< 5,008 15,282
Others HAh 12,758 17,433
56,739 65,458

Note: It represents the value added taxes refunded from the relevant
government authorities as an incentive for the Group’s operation.

MYaE - WAREBREERASPAE RSB ZES T2
BB ETRM o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

6  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

6 HtlmkEE  F8E

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLEEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Fair value losses on financial NEEFAEED
assets at FVTPL SRMEECATEER (2,291) (78)
Fair value gains on investment wEMEZ
properties A EKE 2,414 -
Gain on disposal on interest in HERGEDRHEY
a joint venture U - 10,683
Others HAtb 2,040 2,083
2,163 12,688

7  OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

7 RERF

P27 L EME MR, (Gt A) T

KIF :

Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment losses included in other
operating expenses
- Prepayments
- Inventories
- Property, plant and equipment
(note 14(i))
- Other intangible assets
Gains on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease rental in respect of
leasehold land and buildings
Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense
Amortisation of government grants

BNHEEFEZ #iH

B AE 2
2 Gl
ME - BB &
B IE
ATAREMEERY 2
AR R
- %E\ 1f /TA
-FE
W% - BB KRB
(P EE140G))
—HihEREE
HEWE  BER
Bz W
ERHETWRET Y
e
R AR
FERA
BT B & 2 B

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLEE

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

7,542
4,854
4,010
931,476
15,414
4,501

19,000
1,977

10,610

2,416,873
(794)

2017
201745
RMB’000
AREET T

6,486
3,954
5,782

874,062

(207)
16,772

2,384,616
(794)

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8  FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

e B HRRME

8 HBURARMKER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFE
2018 2017
20184 2017%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTFT
Interest income from bank deposits & B8 $R1T1E 2 F B U A 7,823 11,367
Interest income on discounting FEUS 2B B INE B
effect on clean energy power price (HHEE22(i0i)) K985 38
premium receivable (note 22(iii)) S8 T B UL A 6.474 .
Interest income M EWA 14,297 11,367
Interest expense on bank loansand RITEREEMEEZ
other borrowings FEMAX (596,040) (515,519)
Interest expense on obligation under BEREREZFIBHX
finance leases (50,101) (46,722)
Interest expense on corporate bond  {PEEHF 2 F B (44,267) (26,954)
Interest expense FERX (690,408) (589,195)
Less: amounts capitalized in property, & @ Y% * BEMREZ
plant and equipment BERbeE 68,543 62,673
(621,865) (526,522)
Finance costs, net WMBER - F8E (607,568) (515,155)

The weighted average interest rate on capitalized borrowing
costs is approximately 5.05% (2017: 4.48%) per annum.

BARbLZ BEERALNEFFEFREL
5.05% (20174 : 4.48%)5t 8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group
did not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year.

The provision for PRC current income tax is calculated
based on the statutory tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on the
estimated assessable income for the year.

The corporate income tax of German entity is levied at 15%
(2017: 15%) on the net taxable profit. No Germany profits
tax has been provided for as the Group did not have any
assessable profit in Germany for the year.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

9 FBEiRAX

HRAKEFAETEIL BT BRK
B - B EEREBNSTEE -

RERREIAT SR B E S B T A F R
JERTUM A BEE - 5225%(20174F ¢
25%) ZIRTEREGTE -

EEREERERH AN FEIE15%
(20174 : 15% ) BMTEMSH - A
TP 7 S5 8 4F 1A 72 728 0 S 4 T () B SR AR 0%
B BB ERFERTIREE -

B&E KRS RIR 2 HIAS RS -

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBLEEE

2018 2017

20184 20175

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARETIT

PRC current income tax B BN HAFT 1S 8 59,949 118,356
Withholding tax TEIAL 4,529 75,379
Deferred income tax (note 31) EIEFTS R (FI5EST) (11,967) (36,875)
52,511 156,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities as follows:

9 RSB ()

BRAAKBERT A G A 2 BIEA IR KR
ReEHEBERENEER 2 MEFHRE
PG BRmERMT

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Profit before tax B 758 A1 a5 ) 238,612 560,706
Less: Share of profits of associates  Jil : FE{EEEE N E1E A (16,451) (12,752)
Less: Share of profits of joint ventures & : FE1E& &% F (13,862) (19,946)
208,299 528,008
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate  1%25% 2 BT R+ &
of 25% 21 52,075 132,002
Expenses not deductible for taxation A[1f 2
purposes 12,996 7,707
Income not subject to taxation AT WA (1,950) (1,684)
Effect of lower tax rate for companies 2 &ABIEH W B =
under tax concession EAREMREZZE (70,553) (58,196)
Tax effect of tax losses and REERBIIAEE KAl N
deductible temporary differences TRFEE
not recognised M E 72,750 45,415
Utilisation of tax losses and B SR AR IERBIIA
deductible temporary differences 518 R A
previously not recognised R EEE (3,327) (9,150)
Withholding tax arising on unremitted Ff@2 &7ARE H
earnings of subsidiaries s M ELE Z TR (9,480) 40,766
Income tax expense FriS Bk 52,511 156,860

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain
subsidiaries of the Group located in the specially designated
regions of PRC were either exempted from PRC Enterprise
Income Tax or entitled to the preferential tax rate of 7.5%,
10%, 12.5% or 15%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries that are received by investing company
incorporated outside the PRC. If the investing company is
eligible to the treaty benefit under HK-PRC tax treaty, a
reduced rate of 5% is applied.

HZE2018F N2017512A31 B I
€ ANEBEE TP BT HESH
BARERRHMNPRCEMSESH - &
ZH7.5% 10% * 12.5%K15% ) EB=
B o

RIETBRAEREIEER  HRERBEE
SMNEM ALY IR B A AR B0 BB B
X E AT ERER B M AT IS ARS. - ARBTRIR
BMEBKERI10% - WREQARFER
B - TERERBIROESE - BRKR
TBAR5% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D) 9 FIEHiEZ(E)

Share of taxation attributable to associates and joint HE2018F 1231 HIEFEHE
ventures for the year ended 31 December 2018 of RPAREGELEEGEREBEBANDAR
approximately RMB7,396,000 (2017: RMB4,679,000) are #& 7,396,000 7T ( 2017 F : AR #
included in the Group’s share of profits of associates and 4,679,0007T) * BEFAFAREB FENL

joint ventures for the year. e NE RaBRERTN -
10 STAFFCOSTS 10 EBEEAE

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBLEEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARET T
Wages, salaries and bonuses I8 - Hrekiti 188,225 159,729
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKE KA — FE
plans HRE 2 11,299 6,559
Staff welfare EERH 93,644 85,842
293,068 252,130
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) SREEF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit BRERNRNDIZARRNGHEE AEGHE
for the year attributable to owners of the Company by the Wi F B A F R E 21T (D 2 InE F19
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year. BEtE -

Year ended 31 December
BZE212A3MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
Profit for the year attributable to KREHER AEE
owners of the Company (RMB’000) FREMNARETT) 185,323 401,702
Weighted average number of EETERRY
ordinary shares in issue (TR
(shares in thousands) 1,186,633 1,186,633
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FERENGZF(AREEIT) 0.1562 0.3385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise price of those share options is higher
than the average market price for the shares for both the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

12 DIVIDEND

11 BREF(E)

(b) EwREHHER

ARADRMATENERENITEE
SREZE2018F K2017F 128318 1
FEMFHRMTE  BAtESRE
BT T eREZERBREDETE -

Dividends for ordinary shareholders

of the Company recognised as TERRERAKE
distribution during the year:
2018 final RMB0.0546 (2017: 2018 F REIFRX

2017 final RMBO0.1185) per share AR¥0.05467T

(20174 : 20175 FKHA
FRARE0.11857T)

RERNEZRRD IR ANAE

12 KRE
Year ended 31 December
HZE12H831HLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT
64,790 140,616

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of
approximately RMB0.0546 (equivalent to HK$0.0638 at the
exchange rate announced by the People’s Bank of China on
27 March 2019) (2017: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 of approximately RMBO0.1185
(equivalent to HK$0.1467 at the exchange rate announced
by the People’s Bank of China on 16 March 2018)) per
ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB64,790,000 (equivalent to HK$75,707,000) (2017:
RMB140,616,000 (equivalent to HK$174,079,000)), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.

RMEHERE  ARAREZECEZR
BHZE2018F12A31BItFERFKE
[& B =M EBARAARE0.0546 7T (#8
£10.0638FB L BHRBEARRITR
2019F 3 A27H AMAIER H1R) (2017
FEHE2017F12A3BIEFERNRK
il B gl T @R ARK0.11857T
(FBER0.14678 7T » IHHPBEARELT
2018316 B A htERKRE)) -
A H 4 AR 64,790,000 7T (HZE R
75,707,000 7T ) (2017 F « AR
140,616,000 (B35 54 174,079,000 %
J0)) c WAFRKREREEREANS it
A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST 13 BEERANVESEHFMALZHE

PAID INDIVIDUALS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=#M<
The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for RKAFZEEEZREE2018F12A831H
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: IEFEZBEmT
Basic salary,
housing
allowance, other Employer's
allowances and Share-based contributions
benefits in kind compensation to pension
Exgid AR expenses  Discretionary scheme
Fees  fih - EftfR NRBFR bonuses ExHEne Total
ik RENRE  xfizMemx L[ Ei 5 @t
Name of director 3.5 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Chairman ik
Mr. Wang Binghua ImERE = = = = = =
Executive directors gz
Mr. Wang Fengvue (note (i) TE25%E (M) = = = = = =
Mr. Zhao Xinyan BHRLE S S S s S S
M. He Hongxin (note (ii) AL S 5 (B EE (i) - 855 - - - 855
Mr. Qi Tengyun ERERE = 579 = = = 579
Non-executive directors FHnES
M. Bi Yaxiong (note (iv) SDEEE(Ew) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jiong (note (i) RS (B sk Gii)) - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Liangyou (note (i) TRREE (M) - - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFH{TES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing REREE 125 = = = = 125
Or. LiFang FhfEt 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BEREE 125 - - - - 125
Ms. Ng Vi Kum E4E4t 125 - - - - 12
Total it 500 1,434 = = S 1,934

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for ENFRBTESHEe P REEEARAR
their services in connection with the management of the RAIRAEBEEBER RS - EXATR
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive FNTEETRBIIIFRTEETWE PR
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ BEEETARARTES 2R
emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST 13 BEERANVERSEHFMALIZHE

PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT’D) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a) EE=ML(E)
The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for RABEEETREE2017F12831H
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below: IEFEZMemT -
Basic salary,
housing
allowance, other Employer's
allowances and Share-based contributions
benefits in kind compensation to pension
F:v.¢ 5 R expenses  Discretionary scheme
Fees il BAUME NRBEA bonuses EXHEAS Total
ne RENRE  xftzMemx ML FiE 15 &t
Name of director 4.2 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Chairman Ik
Mr. Wang Binghua IMERE - - - - - -
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Wang Zhongtang (note (i) TREEE () - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Fengrue (note (]) TRBLE (M) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhao Xinyan BIARE = = = = = =
Mr. He Hongin (note (i) AT (ki) - 781 - - - 781
Mr. Qi Tengyun ERELA - 638 - - - 638
Non-executive directors FHnES
Mr. Bi Yaxiong E0RE = = = = = =
Mr. Wu Hanming (note (i) EER A (i) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jiong (note (i) P A (B i) - - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing REREE 106 - - - - 106
Dr. LiFang 5t 106 - - - = 106
Mr. Wong Kok Tai e 106 - - - = 106
Ms. Ng Yi Kum h&ELL 106 - - - = 106
Total st 424 1419 - - - 1843
©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT’D)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Wang Zhongtang has resigned and Mr. Wang Fengxue was
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 22
February 2017.

(ii) Mr. He Hongxin is also the vice chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Group.

(iii) Mr. Wu Hanming has resigned and Mr. Zhou Jiong was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effective from 18 August
2017.

(iv) Mr. Bi Yaxiong has resigned and Mr. Wang Liangyou was appointed
as vice chairman and a non-executive director of the Company with
effective from 3 May 2018. Mr. Wang Liangyou has resigned as vice
chairman and a non-executive director of the Company with effective
from 5 June 2018.

None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services were
paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (2017: nil). No consideration was provided to or
receivable by third parties for making available directors’
services (2017: nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors, their controlled bodies corporate and connected
entities with such directors (2017: nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2017: nil).

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
FEENEREREREGRAT

13 ESRIUKSHFMALZHME
(%)

() E=ME(HE)
UEE

(i) THRELAEDHIT MIRBLLEEZTA
AABMITES - A2017F 28228 #£4
B e

iy ALELEENRAEEINEFERERNT
E °

(i) SOERALEBEHT - MAMETEBRZEANRN
NEFEHITESE - B2017F8A18HEE
e

(ivy BITEEECET MIRKAEEZTA
RARBIEFERIEMITES - 520185654
SHEBAEM - FRREEBH2018F6ALRHE
EEHIARBIRBEFRIENTES -

HZE2018FE K2017%E12 831 B IH&
B AARZEEHERETMWHE -

FA - BEERXEZRAEFREARNK
&H - AR LB ARG AT R SR
@SB EARIA(20174F - &) © #f
BEREEERUERBMETE=7HK
B =77 A LI R 58 36 AR 75 T AR Y
RE(20174F : £|&) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT’D)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include 2 (2017: 2) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 (2017: 3)
individuals during the year are as follows:

e B HRRME

13 BEERANVERSEHFMALIZHE
(&)

(b) HUERSEFHMMAL

FR - AEEBRNRSFMALTEER
(20174 : M) EE - HBleRMH
EXZ2F AR - FREMNEMBG =L
(2017%F : ZRDALZBEWT

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A3MBLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Basic salary, housing allowance, EX%e EEMAL - B
other allowances and AL R BN &=
benefits in kind 2,410 2,485
Employer’s contributions to BEEHRIKSFT SRR
pension scheme 29 28
2,439 2,513

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

e N FTIEBE :

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 TR
2,000,000/ 7T

Number of individuals
A
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MALLEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFIT
2 2

During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2017: nil).

FRAKESEAESHEAAME
SE A L NS ERBE AN
ARGEE 2 RE BRI E (20174 ¢
&) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRME

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 Y% - BERSRE

Power
generators
and Construction
Buildings Dam  equipment Others inprogress Total
BT *E EERRRG 2 REIE h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTR  ARETT  ARETRE  ARETRT  ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1R 1,768,464 2,486,068 16,550,143 346,352 1,475,430 22,626,457
Additions AE 631 S 54,631 17,283 1,448,473 1,521,018
Disposals il S S (730) (837) - (1,567)
Transfers s 28,720 7,004 855,031 27888 (927,886) (9,243)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31A 1,797,815 2,493,072 17,459,075 390,686 1,996,017 24,136,665
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAESS
impairment losses
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1418 382,346 339,831 3,025,421 168,843 = 4,416,441
Depreciation charge for the year ERFERT 75,584 61,174 768,447 26,271 - 931,476
Impairment losses for the year ERRESEM))

(note (i) S S 19,000 S S 19,000
Disposals e = = (578) (533) = (1,100)
Eliminated on transfer to SRERRTRRYY

construction in progress - - (9,243) - - (9,243)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A318 457,930 401,005 4,303,049 194,581 S 5,356,565

Net book value HEFE
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1R 1,386,118 2,146,237 13,024,722 177,509 1,475,430 18,210,016
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 1,339,885 2,092,067 13,156,026 196,105 1,996,017 18,780,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

14 Y% - BEKRE(E)

Power
generators
and Construction
Buildings Dam  equipment Others in progress Total
BT B BERRRR Aft kRIE h
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2017 R201751 418 1,642,828 2,460,424 15,089,665 316,073 1,466,215 20,875,206
Additions hE 1,927 16,921 25,336 23,151 1,715,714 1,783,049
Disposals & (3.122) S (20,027) (3,803) (4,845) (31,797)
Transfers B3 226,831 8,723 1,465,169 10931 (1,701,654) =
L WOUFIAYE LGS R e S e,
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAESE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2017 201751718 320,113 277,663 2,800,349 147,306 - 354b431
Depreciation charge for the year FRITERR 62,233 62,168 725819 23,842 - 874,062
Disposals & - - (747) (2,306) - (3,05
L —— ROTFIANE e L
Net book value BETE
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 718 1,222,715 2,182,761 12,289,316 168,767 1,466,215 17,309,774
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A318 1,386,118 2,146,231 13,024,722 177,509 1,475,430 18,210,016
©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

14

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

176 CHINA

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

In 2018, a subsidiary of the Group dismantled part of its natural gas
power generators and equipment due to the Group’s development
arrangement. The Group reviewed the development and maintenance
plans of the subsidiary and determined some spare parts of
dismantled power generators and equipment can be retained for
further construction or reserved for usage in other projects of the
Group, which have been transferred to construction in progress based
on the net carrying amounts of RMB25,128,000. A provision was
made for the remaining properties and equipment of the dismantled
power generators and equipment. As a result, impairment losses
of RMB19,000,000 (2017: nil) on the properties and equipment
were recognised in other operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying values of approximately RMB12,048,180,000
(2017: RMB11,835,786,000) were situated on leasehold land in the PRC
leased from a subsidiary of a Shareholder which held the rights on the
leasehold land under long-term leases. The remaining period of the
Group’s rights on the leasehold land as at 31 December 2018 was 37
years (2017: 38 years).

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with approximately RMB569,432,000 (2017:
RMB579,943,000) situated on lands for which the legal titles had
not been transferred to the Group subject to certain administrative
procedures to be completed by the relevant local government
authorities. However, the directors are of the opinion that the risks and
rewards of using these assets have been transferred to the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB1,126,227,000 (2017: RMB5,840,789,000) were
pledged as securities for certain bank and other borrowings of the
Group (note 29(a)).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into
certain sale and leaseback arrangements with certain financial
institutions which the Group sold its power generators and equipment
with net book value amounting to approximately RMB1,756,653,000
(2017: RMB1,275,269,000) to these financial institutions and
immediately leased these assets back. Management regards these
arrangements as finance leases. As a result, the assets have not been
derecognised while the proceeds received from financial institutions
have been recognised as borrowings. The period of these finance lease
additions for property, plant and equipment ranges from 5 to 8 years
(2017: 5 to 8 years), and the underlying interest rates are at respective
contract dates ranged from 3.80% t0 5.39% (2017: 4.41%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

e PR HRRME

15 FENEENRE

MEBE
FRBEE

Current asset
Non-current asset

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A318LLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
10,793 8,026
348,665 295,745

Note:

(i) Prepaid lease payments represent costs of the land use rights and
coast use rights in respect of land and coast located in the PRC where
certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are built on. As
at 31 December 2018, the remaining period of the land use rights and
coast use right ranged from 13 to 62 years (2017: 14 to 63 years).

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(i) BABEFEEAEEETHE  BE KK
HRRPE T RGRO T EREREF
FERAEZMAA - B2018F12A318 » L
EAE R REREOFSRFHR13E62F
(20174 : 14634 ) -

REME

Investment properties

16 REWME
Year ended 31 December
HE12A3MBLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
315,204 308,496

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2017: nil).

The Group’s investment properties held within a business
model objective are to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
through sale. The Group has measured the deferred tax
relating to the temporary differences of these investment
properties, if any, using the tax rates and the tax bases that
are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of these
investment properties.

MN2018%F12A31H » "EEF A%
MEEREETERBENSGHER
(20174 - &)

AEEREMEDNERARGEAZAEN
A NWEBHECRRENETHNA
MBABDEERD - AEECFESR
ZEREMEERHUEZR(ME) BN
ELRE - ERERAORERHEEZ
EREMENFEHRE T A -2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

16 REWX(E)

RAEETTBREARE A PEIE
HR(E=E)

Mainland
China Hong Kong Total
B K e BB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT ARETTT
Balance at 1 January 2017 and MR2017F1 A1 K&
31 December 2017 2017512 A31E
2 282,000 26,496 308,496
Fair value gains N ERE 1,706 708 2,414
Addition NE 4,294 - 4,294
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A318 2
iR 288,000 27,204 315,204

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2018 by an independent professionally qualified
valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that review
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to
the chief financial officer (CFQ). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the CFO, the
valuation team and valuer at least once every six months,
in line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of the
properties have been determined by Roma Appraisals
Limited.

At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analyzed at each reporting
date during the bi-annual valuation discussions between the
CFQO, and the valuation team. As part of this discussion, the
team presents a report that explains the reasons for the fair
value movements.

Fair values of properties held by the Group in Hong Kong
for investment purpose are generally derived using the
direct comparison method. This valuation method is based
on comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required
to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect
the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.

Fair values of properties held by the Group for investment
purpose in the Mainland China are generally derived
using the income capitalization method. This valuation
method is based on the capitalization of the net income
and reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate
capitalization rates, which are derived from analysis of
sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing
investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing
market rents adopted in the valuation have reference to
recent lettings, within the subject properties and other
comparable properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

16 REWE(HE)

E=EAFENEHMY K EERGE
BRK A 28 P A 33 2 5 9 65 B 01
AT o fER RO — 35 - ZE IR
2 HRBATEEDRE LB o

AEERBARBIERERENYE L
RFE-REFERLEEET - Wi
ERRBERGENDEREMTIMCIE
B 52 AL B EEITLE - AT -
ERNEFHWENFEZHEEETER - A
FAELEEABURMRAIEZEME
BMEREREBRZENEER -

AEERPBEREREERERERYE
ZRFE-RRABABRNOEFERS
B WEEDENERKAEE ZER
etz SPRAFBERERKRAEDT
RERE - MEACLL RTBBE HE
oM REEMZREBERREEZE
REMEMEH - ERETFRBHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 16 REWX(RE)
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to
Investment Valuation Unobservable fair value
properties technique inputs Rate TRBEE A iE
RENF RERE FAEEEABE 14 HATVEZBRE
Properties held in Direct comparison Unit rate HK$19,500/sq ft The higher the unit
— Hong Kong approach rate, the higher the
fair value
HEZME BEELEBE BEX 19,500/ 7T, BUEXRENTE
— B FAR BRIELE
Properties held in Income Market yield 4.25% - 5.00% The higher the yield,
— Mainland China capitalization the lower
approach the fair value
HEZME WAERE BRI GES 4.25% - 5.00% oo R B
— PEIRRE NEERRE
Monthly gross RMB91/sgm The higher
market rent to RMB213/sgm the rental value,

BAMSHEER

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
carrying values at level 3 are analysed as follows:

AR®917t,/  the higher the fair value

TRk HeEEEATEKIEL
ZAR¥213T/
FAK

AEEE = BRREEIRRNREDE
ZREBAITIT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
In Hong Kong, held on leases of REEZBARL(GOFENRT)
less than 50 years 27,204 26,496
In the PRC, held on leases of PR BRB AL (50FENR L)
over 50 years 288,000 282,000
315,204 308,496

As at 31 December 2018, the investment properties
amounting to approximately RMB315,204,000 (2017:
RMB308,496,000) were pledged as security for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (note 29(a)).

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

17 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BERHGEREE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BE HtEREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®T R AR®TR

Cost J5%:N

At 1 January 2018 M2018F1 18 1,052,346 78,439 1,130,785
Additions NE = 9,436 9,436
At 31 December 2018 72018 12A31H 1,052,346 87,875 1,140,221

Accumulated amortisation Rt MREE B
and impairment losses

At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1 A1H 28,654 46,939 75,593
Amortisation charge for the  FREE H

year S 4,854 4,854
Impairment losses for the year & RF{EEE = 1,977 1,977
At 31 December 2018 7R2018F12H31H 28,654 53,770 82,424
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H 1,023,692 34,105 1,057,797
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 818 1,052,346 73,907 1,126,253
Additions = = 4,532 4,532
At 31 December 2017 MR20179F12H31H 1,052,346 78,439 1,130,785

Accumulated amortisation — ZET#E$S MOREE R
and impairment losses

At 1 January 2017 MR2017F1 818 28,654 42,985 71,639
Amortisation charge forthe  F R H
year - 3,954 3,954
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31H 28,654 46,939 75,593
Net book value REE
At 31 December 2017 R20179F12H31H 1,023,692 31,500 1,055,192
O,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

17 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONT’D)

Note:

A segment-level summary of goodwill allocation at cost less impairment is
presented below:

17 BERAMETEE(E)

UEE

ARAMBRRESIRZEESR 2 S BHER7 10
T

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A3MHILLEFE
2018 2017
20185 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARKETFT
Natural gas power generation RARESE 521,398 521,398
Wind power generation [& 3% E 502,294 502,294
1,023,692 1,023,692

For the purposes of impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of goodwill
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management for the purposes of impairment assessment
covering a five-year period. Annual cash flows beyond the five-year period are
expected to be similar to that of the fifth year based on the then production
capacity, taking into account of the expected remaining useful lives of the
relevant underlying operating assets.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved in the preparation
of cash flow projections for the period covered by the approved budget.
Management prepared the financial budgets taking into account actual and
prior year performance and market development expectations. The revenue
growth rate in electricity output and pre-tax discount rate used for value-in-
use calculations for goodwill is from 0%-6% (2017: 0%-6%) and 11% (2017:
10%-12%) respectively. Management estimates the growth rates in electricity
sold by reference to the expected demand for electricity in the regions where
the power plants are located. Management estimates the discount rate using
pre-tax rate that reflects market assessments of the time value of money and
the specific risks relating to the CGUs. Other key assumptions applied in the
impairment assessments include the power plant utilization rate and per unit
electricity price, fuel costs (if applicable) and staff costs.

No impairment on goodwill is resulted based on the impairment assessment
performed by the management.

At 31 December 2018, if the budgeted growth rate in electricity output applied
to the discounted cash flows had been 2% lower (2017: 2% lower), with all
other variables held constant, goodwill will be impaired by approximately
RMB nil (2017: RMB27,498,000) or otherwise no additional impairment charge
will be required.

At 31 December 2018, if the pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted
cash flows had been 1% higher (2017: 1% higher), with all other variables
held constant, goodwill will be impaired by approximately RMB nil (2017:
RMB2,430,000) or otherwise no additional impairment charge will be
required.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

e B HRRME

18 REEQTzHERE

Share of net assets

DIEEEFE

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A318LLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREFIT
158,621 153,569

Movements in interests in associates during the year:

FAREZE QR MERZEIT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MALEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A1R 153,569 136,89
Share of profits FE{R & 7 16,451 12,752
Capital injection EE - 9,200
Dividend &5\ (11,399) (5,274)
At 31 December MW12H31H 158,621 153,569
Notes: BT
(i The following are the details of the associates as at 31 December 2018 (i) AT AER2018F K2017F12A31H 2Bt &
and 2017: NRIFE -
Equity interest
Place of attributable to
establishment the Group
Name of company and operation Paid up capital AEEE(E  Type of legal entity Principal activities
ARER R REE B BHRRA RAERE EEARER TEEE
Interests held indirectly:
BEEEER
Shanghai Dong Hai Wind Power Electricity PRC RMB861,000,000 13.18%  Sino-foreign equity joint  Generation and sales of
Generating Company Limited (note) venture electricity
LFERBANEEARAR (M) Ll AR¥861,000,0007C 13.18%  HORELE BEERHEEN
Dongguan China Power Xinao Heat Energy PRC RMB50,000,000 46%  Sino-foreign equity joint  Generation and sales of
Company Limited venture heat
REREHRANBERAT HE AR¥%50,000,0007 46% THEERE BRRHERN
Note: According to the articles of association of these companies, the Bt

Company has representations in the board of directors and therefore
can participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of these

companies so as to have significant influence in their activities.

CRBZERA CABMERAR > ARBRZK
FEFEHARK  EMU2HEZEARZ
B TS R AR R P@#Ex%’;@iz}é@)%ﬁ
BEATES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(if) Set out below is the aggregate financial information of the Group’s
share of the associates:

18 REE QT 2= (&)
GERRCD

() AT AR E R AR 2 R R

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B318LEE

2018 2017

20184 20175

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Profit for the year FE R 16,451 12,752

Other comprehensive income Hh 2 A = =

Total comprehensive income ZHE K ERE 16,451 12,752
(iii) Dividend income of approximately RMB11,399,000 was received from (iii) FRUWEBEANTRERANDARKE

the associates for the year (2017: RMB5, 274,000).

(iv) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in

the associates.

(v) The investment in the associates is considered immaterial individually.

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

11,399,0007T (2017 4F = AR #5,274,000

TT) e

vy, BEERAKERBERRZERIXAR

&

v REERRZEREENN S HE/STEK -

19 REELFZER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Share of net assets DREEFE 242,388 231,434
Goodwill Bk 478 478
242,866 231,912
Movements in interests in joint ventures during the year: FARGERREZESZEHNT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017

20184 20175

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

At 1 January ®1A1R 231,912 249,319
Acquisition g = 10,500
Disposal e = (15,737)
Share of profits AR5 13,862 19,946
Dividend %8 (2,908) (32,116)
At 31 December M®12A31H 242,866 231,912

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D) 19 REELFZER(E)

Notes: Bt E

(i) The following are the details of the joint ventures as at 31 December 2018 (i) AR BR2018F K2017F12A31AZE4&
and 2017: EFE

Equity interest

Place of attributable to
establishment the Group
Name of company and operation Paid up capital AEEE(E  Type of legal entity Principal activities
AFEB R REE BRRRE RAfgR EEARER TEEH
Fujian Shouning Niutoushan Hydropower PRC RMB130,000,000 52%  Sino-foreign equity Generation and sales
Company Limited (note) joint venture of electricity
RESEFRILKERBAR(MIEE) hE AR#130,000,0007 52%  WHMEELE BERHEES
Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Wind Power PRC RMB186,074,000 20%  Sino-foreign equity Generation and sales
Generation Company Limited joint venture of electricity
LRSI ERNEEERAR hE AR%186,074,0007 0% PHRELE BERHEED
Dongguan Humen Port Lifengyuan PRC RMB33,748,000 42%  Sino-foreign equity Manufacturing
Underground Pipe Gallery Company Limited joint venture of equipment
RERFBIERAHERERAT hE AR#33,748,0007C 4%  HHRERE HERR

In accordance with the relevant terms as stipulated in the Shareholders’ RIER RS 2 AB G - AEBE DS Lt

agreements, the Group has attained a joint control over the above entity. BRZAREGE - Bt - ZFEBARINALRE

Consequently, these entities are accounted for as joint ventures of the Group. BzAELE-

Note: In accordance with the articles of Fujian Shouning Niutoushan Miet - REERSEFHUKEFRAR([4E L
Hydropower Company Limited (“Niutoushan Company”), decisions RAE)ZHA - BREFEILA RN ERRIER
on Niutoushan Company’s business and investment plan, annual BitE FEMBEERE  BHORAR
financial budget plan, profit distribution and loss recovery plans LMBHEEARZATEEESFEILARSE
should be approved by more than 2/3 of the directors of Niutoushan BE=DZMEEIOE c REENFBEILE
Company. The Group holds 4 out of 8 seats in Niutoushan Company’s EEMSEFMNFTHEALE AEEREE
board of directors, the minimum proportion voting rights could not WRRR BRG] - A58 LD BB MEREE
been achieved by the Group and the relevant activities of Niutoushan HEEZMELRAZERESFENEH 2 —BR
Company require the unanimous consent of the two parties that oAl AEEBUHEREREERRR
control the board collectively. Therefore, the Group recognises this BEDE RS -

equity investment as interest in a joint venture.

(ii) Set out below is the aggregate financial information of the Group’s (ii) UWTEAREBERGEEGECEZERANIEE
share of the joint ventures: j=

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT
Profit for the year F R A 13,862 19,946
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 ER = =
Total comprehensive income 2EWEERE 13,862 19,946
(i) Dividend income of approximately RMB2,908,000 was received from ([i) FRERZEGELERSBANARE
the joint ventures for the year (2017: RMB32,116,000). 2,908,0007T (20174 + AR¥ 32,116,000
) ©
(iv)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in (ivy BEEEASERGELEREEIIARA
the joint ventures. f& o
(vy  The investments in the joint ventures are considered immaterial v) REBECEZREMERMEHRATERK -
individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20 FEMNFE - RERHMBEWRE
RECEIVABLES
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBLEEE
2018 2017
20184 201745
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFIT
Prepayments for construction of BB BMIENFIEREM
power plants and others 517,929 725,109
Value added tax receivable FEMEE R 669,740 777,813
Consideration receivable relatingto  HE&E—fAEDERIRE
disposal of a joint venture S 21,140
Deposits pledged as securities for AEMEERERER
finance leases (note) ZIE® (MisE) 97,758 137,171
Others Hfth 295,468 161,789
1,580,895 1,823,022
Less: Non-current portion (note 26) & = JEBDEAEE S (Fi5E26) (1,126,547) (891,651)
Current portion BVEREE 7 454,348 931,371
Note: As at 31 December 2018, certain long-term deposits amounting to B3k © R2018F12A318  BEFRHZRS 2 IR
approximately RMB82,758,000 (2017: RMB137,171,000) of non- HE 5 % A R # 82,758,000 7T (2017 4F :
current portion and RMB15,000,000 (2017: RMB nil) of current portion ANER#137,171,0007T) R EVHEB 5 A R
were pledged as securities for certain obligation under finance leases 15,000,0007C(2017F : ARBZTIT)BEHE
of the Group (note 29(d)). These deposits will be used to settle the final HIEAAREEE T &M E A 2 R
installment of the corresponding finance leases repayment. F29(d)) - ZEEeBRAEENEEREME
EERNRE OB -
21 INVENTORIES 21 F8

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017

2018% 2017%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Raw materials R 12,214 8,104
Spare parts and consumables THRZFER 124,924 17,414
137,138 125,518

186 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

e B HRRME

22 EWERFR

Year ended 31 December

HZE128318LLEE
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
Trade receivables for the sale EEZEWER
of electricity 1,813,835 1,192,804
Trade receivables for the sale of heat S22 FEUBERX 12,172 11,596
Trade receivables for the b7 3 BRI 2 FEUR BR X
waste-handling 76,834 62,704
Others HAh 2,982 3,854
1,905,823 1,270,958
Notes receivable (note (i)) FEUE R (MIFEG)) 67,113 51,080
1,972,936 1,322,038
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  MEHREMHITAE :
- Non-current (included in other —JERNER (FF A EAD
non-current assets) (note 26) IEmBEE) (KiE26) 321,336 156,645
- Current — BN&ER 1,651,600 1,165,393
1,972,936 1,322,038

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to
RMB1,905,823,000 and RMB1,270,958,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, accounts receivable amounting to
approximately RMB1,019,703,000 (2017: RMB692,354,000)
are pledged as securities for certain bank borrowings of the
Group (note 29(a)).

M 2018 F 12 A 31 H & 20184 1 A
1TH BEPAEHACZCEWERS R A
A R ¥ 1,905,823,000 T & A R ¥
1,270,958,0007T °

R 2018 F 12 A31H » H AR
1,019,703,000 7T (2017 F « AR ¥
692,354,000 7T ) M) FE U AR 3R B 3K R 1E
AEAEEETRITEEMNER(HZE
29(a)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONT’D)

The Group normally grants 30 to 90 days credit period to
customers from the end of the month in which the sales
are made. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as
follows:

22 BUWHR(E)

AEE-RETEPEELEREEZ
AKREFB0E90R ZEEH - BUSRH
ZERER AT

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31BLEEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETIT ARETIT
Unbilled (note (iii)) FRFE (B5EGH)) 1,375,775 706,289
1 to 3 months 12318A 479,253 491,544
4 to 6 months 42 6{E A 11,070 38,838
7 to 12 months 721218 A 11,496 7,602
Over 1 year 14 28,229 26,685
1,905,823 1,270,958

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB50,795,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Those amount have been assessed by
reference to the historical information about counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties did not have
significant default in the past.

As at 31 December 2017, 94% of the trade receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
scoring attributable under the internal credit scoring system
used by the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB73,125,000 which were past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment losses.
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EHREERDREARK5L0,795,0005T
WHRREBHE B EBKRER - %%
HIEDB2EHF BRI 2 ER
FURTE - REBFHIRBATEEKX
HER IR, o

R2017F 128318 » 94% 2 K@ HA IR
R ERKEZINAEERANRERE
B ESZTABREEEND -

MR2017F128318 @ AEBEWIERK
EHREERDREBEARKT73,1250005T
WHHRE BB a2 BWEER - A
EEWES LR EBIBTIREE -



22

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but no

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONT’D)

22

e B HRRME

FE W R R (4R

BB HME R E A EUR T BR iR

impaired:

Year ended
31 December
2017
HZE2017%
12A31B L& E
RMB’000
ARETIT
3to 6 months 3E6MEA 38,838
6to 12 months 61218 A 7,602
Over 1 year 19 A E 26,685
73,125

Notes: bz

0]

(ii)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, notes receivable represent
commercial notes and are with maturity period of 180 to 360 days.

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group
applies simplified approach to provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS
9. To measure the ECL of accounts receivable, accounts and notes
receivable have been assessed individually. The loss allowance of the
accounts receivable as at 31 December 2018 was insignificant.

(ii)

R2018FE 20179128318 » EWEEE
BEZE - WMN180E360A AE|H -

R2018F1 A1 BEABABMEMEREREQ
i REBERABCEREBVBEREE
AR E MBI EE BB RER -
B EREKERNTBHEEEE - BKER
REWEEE BBFEITIME - RN2018F12
A31A « EUERHEBRELTEX -

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

22

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(iif)

23

As at 31 December 2018, amounts represent unbilled clean energy
power price premium receivables of clean energy power plants.

The clean energy power price premium, which is a component of the
government-approved on-grid tariff for clean energy power generation,
is recognised as revenue from sales of electricity in the consolidated
income statement of the Group for its clean energy power projects.

The financial resource for the clean energy power price premium is the
national renewable energy fund that accumulated through a special
levy on the consumption of electricity. Pursuant to Caijian [2012] No.
102 Notice on the Interim Measures for Administration of Subsidy
Funds for Tariff Premium of Renewable Energy (] B4 AR EE M AN
FEVE S EREITINE) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
National Development and Reform Commission and the National
Energy Administration in March 2012, the standardized application
and approval procedures on a project by project basis for the
settlement of the tariff premium came into force since 2012, and such
applications are accepted and approved batch by batch at intervals.

Based on the above, the directors estimated that there are no
foreseeable obstacles that would lead to the application not being
approved. It is expected that the approval of the Group’s certain clean
energy power projects will be obtained after 31 December 2019 and
the corresponding premium receivables are estimated to be recovered
after twelve months from the reporting date. Therefore, the directors
consider the electricity sales contract contains a significant financing
component. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the respective
clean energy power price premium was adjusted for this financing
component based on an effective interest rate of 4.75% per annum.
The Group’s revenue was adjusted by approximately RMB31,252,000
and interest income amounting to approximately RMB6,474,000
(note 8) was recognised.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

22

i

(iii)

23

FE Uk Rk ()
(#)

M2018F 12 A31H » ZE5HBEIEEFRER
BEERNESARFESZERMMEE -

B RBEIR I N E B ARETH & 898 R BE IR
BLPEBENEKIED - DRAEEEAK
BRERBRBREREBRENEBRA -

BREREERBENOVNBERRBEBENHE
RSk BRERMAENBERABERE
RES - REN2012F3 AABERIMEEE -
BRERINEZ R G REREREE R
BEMOFE2012)F 1025 KR BARIRE
B MHEBE S ERETINA) B - 1%
BEARZ - SHEEHMNREELRER
EHRRFEBE2012FREX - MEERFD
BRI S BB T IE REL -

ER EXFrat - ERTEHT &I TE R A ER
CENZERBTESR - EHAEEET
BREEREEEE KN 2019F12A318%
EEME - At - MEZEKEEMMG
FHEARRE AER+ (@ A% eekE -
I BEERRESANBEEARMELS °
REZ2018F12A31BIEFE - HHEZE
BEEREEMM IR ERFRERLT5% X
BMEMHEL AR - AEFABRRADBA
R #31,252,0007C + WHERFSBWALHAR
#6,474,0007C (F{3E8) °

DNHEFABRBENEHEE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong & _FHIAE S

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
4,849 7,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRME

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 24 BRERBSEEYRZRHER
DEPOSITS
Year ended 31 December
HZE12H831HLEE
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBTIT
Cash at bank and in hand RITNFBERE 403,848 724,335
Time deposits with initial terms of JREBRDR=MEHZ
less than three months FEHIER - 15,050
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 403,848 739,385
Restricted deposits PR FITF R 27,872 36,318
Total A&t 431,720 775,703
Denominated in: AT S EEEHE
RMB AR 409,454 758,012
HKD ABIT 12,064 8,560
usD e 1,456 1,134
EURO BT 8,746 7,997
431,720 775,703
Notes: Mzt -

(ii)

(iii)

The following are the details of the joint ventures as at 31 December
2018 and 2017: The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated
in RMB are mainly deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion
of these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

The Group’s cash at banks are interest bearing at rate of 0.35% (2017:
0.35%) per annum.

The restricted cash deposits mainly represent deposits at banks as
securities for the natural gas purchase and carry fixed interest rate
from 1.30% to 2.25% separately (31 December 2017: from 1.30% to
2.25%) per annum. The deposits will be released upon the completion
of the transaction and expected to be settled within one year.

(i)

(iii)

AT AR2018FK2017F12A31BZAE
TEFE  AEEUARBFEZRER
ReEEEMEEBTFRPEIRART - BZ
EARBERIIRBINEAR B R BEHE
© - RS EIBUT 5 B SNE B il ER A
FOER ©

AEBEMRTRSERFFE0.35% (2017
& 0.35%)5H 8 °

ZREBETFREZEERRARKEER
ZRITER - UHRIREEFFERII0%E
2.25%(201758 128318 : 1.30%E2.25%)
TR - ZEREBRRHTKEMR - WA
iR —F AL -

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FVTOCI/AFS INVESTMENT

25 ADFEFARMEEWERE

FLEMBRERE

Unlisted equity interest investment

RE MIHEERE
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFIT
219,000 244,000

The above equity investment at FVTOCI/AFS investment
represented a 20% equity interest in Hainan Bo’ao Lecheng
Company costed at RMB255,000,000 in total. However,
under shareholders’ agreement, the Company has no right
to appoint directors in Hainan Bo’ao Lecheng Company.
The directors of the Company consider that the Group
does not have significant influence over Hainan Bo’ao
Lecheng Company and it is therefore classified as an equity
investment at FVTOCI of the Group. Management considers
the land development right to be the major asset of the
equity interest investment.

The directors of the Company have elected to designate this
investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognizing short-term fluctuations in this investment’s
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group’s strategy of holding this investment for long-term
purposes and realizing their performance potential in the
long run.

For the purposes of fair value assessment, the fair value
less costs to sell of the equity investment at FVTOCI is
determined using the market approach. Management
considers the land development right to be the major asset
of the investment and the fair value less costs to sell is
determined based on market value of the comparable
development less costs to completion. During the year,
a decrease in fair value of approximately, net of tax
RMB18,750,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income (2017: RMB8,250,000).

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved
in the valuation. Management performed valuation taking
into account of comparable development where the project
is located in assessing the achievable market value and
resettlement cost for the purpose of impairment review.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

EAFEFAREMEE RS IRER
&/ HEHERERREBESHEE
LN R 20% IR E R - BERABA
R ¥ 255,000,000 ° #A - BIEKE
Wi ARRYEZTSHEELE QD
RIEZNEF - ARREBEERE A&
EYSHEELR AR EREERNY
27 AEESBEARAEERAFER
AEMEEBSHRERE - EEER
B THABEARERECTEEE -

ARBEFCERKUBERTAKRER
EREBEAFEFARMBERER K - RE
ERFRENESRABULRENRFE
ZEBEBEITEARERAFA UL
BRERREERRIRE DR

RAGEATFEZR  2FEFAEME
AR IR E 2 2 FERE SRR
TIEMBEETE - BIEERB I
BAZKTEZEEREE  MEQFER
HERABRIBEALFAEMSEERTT
FRAZETE - RFERN + DFERD IR
TH ) AR ¥18,750,0007T (20174 = A
R#8,250,000) B A E fth 2 M W e 7R

7
e

RIGEFH RETREMME - sURE
mEms  EEBETHEREZEIRESR
PR AT LL S E - AT A A ZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 26

e B HRRME

HitFRBEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEEE
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Accounts receivable (note 22) FEWBR SR (MI5E22) 321,336 156,645
Prepayments for construction of B 122 %% B R TR RKOE
power plants 459,045 590,829
Value added tax receivable FEUIEER 480,575 45,547
Long-term deposits pledged as HIREREEN RN
securities for finance leases 82,758 137,171
Others Efh 104,169 118,104
1,447,883 1,048,296
27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BARBRGRE
(a) Share capital (a) BB
Number of
shares Share capital
BHEE &N
RMB’000
AREFIT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 1,186,633,418 1,077,101
Cancellation of the shares pursuant 1RBBEHA ;T8RN
to the Reorganisation Proposal (BF5EG))
(note (i) (1,186,633,418) (1,077,101)
Issue of new shares (note (ii)): LA TR TR D
GEDE
On incorporation P AR S B 10 -
Pursuant to the Reorganisation RIBEEHFTER
Proposal 1,186,633,408 5,746,012
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 R2017F &2018F12A31H 1,186,633,418 5,746,012
©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRME

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D) 27 BARKRMDREGE

(a) Share capital (Cont’d) (a) MRA(4E)

Notes: M EE -

(i) On 14 July 2017, pursuant to the Reorganisation Proposal, all (M) MR2017EF 78148 BEEHHE &
the 1,186,633,418 ordinary shares of China Power New Energy HEHHFEREREARE AT ([ EHFee
Development Company Limited (“CPNE”) outstanding as at 14 July VB ) R 2017F 7 B148 BB 1750
2017 were cancelled and extinguished and the issued share capital of 1,186,633, 418R L BB T RIERFE - M
CPNE was reduced accordingly. In consideration of the cancellation BB Y B RTRATERER LD - EA
and extinguishment of the 1,186,633,418 ordinary shares of CPNE 201 7E7 14BN RIERED EH AR
outstanding as at 14 July 2017, the holders of these ordinary shares 1T1ESN,186,633,418R% L@ 2 (B %
received ordinary shares of the Company issued and credited as fully EE BRI AEAERAQAGTEEITIEEA
paid, on the basis of one ordinary share of the Company for every one BRIVEBRRARZEBE  REAEREE
ordinary share of CPNE then held. BB B R EAR ] ER— R AA T
Under the Reorganisation Proposal, the share capital, share premium WIEEHEFTER  BA BEHBEELE
and the other reserves accounts were reduced by approximately HMWBEBEEAMRILDHARIE
RMB1,077,101,000, RMB195,308,000 and RMB4,473,603,000 1,077,101,000 7% + A £ ¥ 195,308,000 JT
respectively, totalling RMB5,746,012,000, representing the carrying R ABR®4473,603,000T ' &@HARK
value of CPNE shares cancelled, and at the same time the share capital 5,746,012,0007C * dBERE TP EHEE
was increased by approximately RMB5,746,012,000, representing the B ZREE - R RAEMGARKE
value of new CPCE shares issued. 5,746,012,0007C * HERBEITHEZFZ

RERFT AR D 2 B -

(i) CPCE was incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 May 2017, 10 shares (ii) hEEFRBEBRN207E588BESF B
was issued and allotted at incorporation date. During the year, AWM REMAATER - 10 HD
1,186,633,408 shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the ERTRBEE R BEBEEHAFER
Reorganisation Proposal. 1,186,633, 408K AR (A 1B 1T R A 3 -

(b) Share premium (b) MRDHE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBTT
At 1 January ®1A1R - 195,308
Cancellation of the share premium  RBBEAFTEFHTE
of CPNE pursuant to the FreelR . B0 =8
Reorganisation Proposal (FIEE27(a)(i))
(note 27(a)(i)) - (195,308)

At 31 December M12A318 = =

POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(c) Share option scheme

(i)  Share option scheme of CPCE

On 8 June 2017, CPCE adopted the pre-listing share option
scheme and the post-listing share option scheme which
became effective subsequently on 17 July 2017.

Pre-listing share option scheme

The purpose of the pre-listing share option scheme is
to enable CPCE, in connection with the Reorganisation
Proposal, to grant options to the participants in replacement
of share options granted by CPNE, thereby continuing to
provide incentives or rewards to the participants for their
contribution to CPCE and its subsidiaries (together, the “New
Group”) and/or to enable the New Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the New Group.

All CPNE’s options held by the option holders were
granted pursuant to the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2012 Share Option Scheme of CPNE. Each option granted
under the pre-listing share option scheme was granted
in consideration of an optionholder’s agreement on the
cancellation of a corresponding option granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme or the 2012 Share Option
Scheme. As such, the principal terms (including the grantee,
number of underlying shares, exercise price and expiry date)
of each such CPCE’s option are the same as those of the
corresponding CPNE’s option that has been cancelled, save
that (i) the underlying shares are CPCE’s shares and not
CPNE’s shares and (ii) the date of grant was the date of grant
of the CPCE’s options (i.e. 8 June 2017) and not the date of
grant of the corresponding CPNE’s options that has been
cancelled.

The options granted under the pre-listing share option
scheme were non-exercisable when granted and only
exercisable when the Scheme became effective on 17 July
2017. The total value of options cancelled pursuant to the
2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share Option Scheme
and granted under the pre-listing share option scheme
amounting to approximately RMB19,252,000.

27 BRARRDREE)

(c) MBERiETE

(i) HBEEBERZBERETS

M2017F6A8H « REBRERFEN L

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬂ&tﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬂ '
WREEE2017F7B17BHER -

LRI R A &
ETATERE B EES T EFBRER
REATRET2EEBREDRRFTE
R 2 BROE - It MBS B
REHDEBRERIEMB QR (FHE
[FrE@ DIERER 2 28E Kk, EH
SEEREMEERZEREARRMA
HHEEMEBEEZANER -

BRESE AME 2P EHERER
ETYRIEP BT 2 2002 F BBt
B X 2012F BT BB L - RIBE L™
AIBRETERE 2 BOBREES
BRERSE AR B EHERE2002FER
REFTEIsk 201 2 FF BB AR RERT B FT#R HH 2 4R
JERIRERE - Bt - B FEEFZR
REREIRIE Y T EGR(BIEARA - 1B
B EE « fTEEREIEE ) HE T
Z MRFEA BRI E 2 = B &R
B - WG EBERR D AR ETRZEERRMD
MmIEFEINERRH R(DE L BB AT
BB RRERER L AAB(B120174F6
A8B)M3ECFH 2 HEREIHEIRE
et BER -

RIE LT AT IR 2 BRER
KRR (760 - BARETEI7E20174
7R17 BAERIE TS A EATE - R1%2002
FREMRERT 8 R 201 26 BREEIE T
HERE EMAIBREREE RO
iR ENRBARKE19,252,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27

(c)
(i)

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

Share option scheme (Cont’d)
Share option scheme of CPCE (Cont’d)

Post-listing share option scheme

The purpose of the post-listing share option scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to the participants thereunder
for their contribution to the New Group and/or to enable the
New Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the New Group.

(i)

(i)

(iif)

The maximum number of the Shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the pre-listing share option scheme
and the share option scheme and any other share
option schemes of CPCE must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the pre-listing share option scheme and
the share option scheme and any other share option
schemes of CPCE) to be granted under the pre-listing
share option scheme and the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes of CPCE must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total numbers of
the Shares in issue on the listing date (the “General
Scheme Limit”).

Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iv) below,
CPCE may seek approval of the Shareholders of CPCE
in general meeting to refresh the General Scheme
Limit provided that the total number of the Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the pre-listing share option scheme and
the share option scheme and any other share option
schemes of CPCE under the limit as “refreshed” must
not exceed 10% of CPCE’s shares in issue as at the
date of approval of such limit and for the purpose of
calculating the limit as “refreshed”, options (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the terms of the pre-listing share
option scheme and the share option scheme and
any other share option schemes of CPCE) previously
granted under the prelisting share option scheme and
any other share option schemes of CPCE will not be
counted.

196 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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(i) HEEREERZIEREZ (E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont’d)

(i)  Share option scheme of CPCE (Cont’d)

Post-listing share option scheme (Cont’d)

(iv) Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iii)
above, CPCE may seek separate approval from
the Shareholders of CPCE in general meeting to
grant options beyond the General Scheme Limit or,
if applicable, the limit referred to in (iii) above to
participants specifically identified by CPCE before
such approval is sought.

The post-listing share option scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 8 June
2017, after which period no further options will be granted
but the provisions of this post-listing share option scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects. The
subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be such price as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of the making of the offer. The option
may be exercised by the participant who accepted the offer
of the grant of any option in accordance with the terms of
the post-listing share option scheme at any time during the
option period.

No option was granted by CPCE under post-listing share
option scheme subsequent to the reporting date.

Unless the directors of CPCE otherwise determined and
stated in the offer to a participant, there is no minimum
period for which an option granted under the pre-listing
share option scheme and the post-listing share option
scheme must be held before it can be exercised.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings.

e B HRRME

27 BRARRDREE)

(c) MBMEERTEI()

(i) FPEERERZIERETE (E)

EmiREREE B ()

(iv) FEX_EXO)BRRMAZEE £X0)
ZERT - mEFRELIRAE B
K EFRRERRRNBIRAE £
#ER P IR REREEKE B
ERRRIEEZ 2 BER L BE—
fREtE LR (HEM) #BH X
(i) At _EFR 2 BB AR

RTS8 20176 ASARMA
BEI10FRERLER - EEETGE
— R - M TR B RR R
B2 GBI E M T E MDA+ B
HRIER - A EBREZ RIEEA
AEFEMEH BB E2RNBETZ
B - RIEREIART ER - BIE
AIARIE TR BB AR AT B 2 R IE AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

Prior to the Reorganisation Proposal, CPNE operated a share
option scheme. The purpose of the Scheme was to enable
CPNE to grant options to eligible participants, thereby as
an incentive or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme included the directors,
employees, suppliers, customers and Shareholders of the
Group. In accordance with the resolution passed in the
annual general meeting held on 21 May 2012, the share
option scheme adopted on 31 October 2002 was terminated
while a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted. Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the
2012 Scheme will remain in force for ten years from date of
adoption to 21 May 2022.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme shall
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of CPNE from
time to time. The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of CPNE at any time. Any grant
or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to Shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting of CPNE. In addition, any grant of share options to
a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-executive
directors of CPNE, or to any of their associates, resulting
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding, to such person, in a
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of CPNE in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of CPNE’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, is subjected
to Shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of the offer with signed acceptance letter
comprising consideration of HK$1.00 received by CPNE. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, but no later than 10 years from the date of
the offer. The subscription price for the shares in respect of
which options are granted is determinable by the directors,
but in any case must be not lower than the highest of (i)
the closing price of CPNE’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant;
(ii) the average closing price of CPNE’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of CPNE’s shares.

All of the options were vested to the option holders on the
date of acceptance of the offer.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont’d)

From 1 January 2017 to 7 July 2017, no share options under
the Scheme was granted. As at 7 July 2017, 8,600,000 share
options were outstanding under the Scheme. On 7 July 2017,
the shareholders of CPNE approved the termination of the
Scheme. Upon termination of the Scheme, no further share
options can be granted thereunder. The outstanding share
options were transferred to the pre-listing share option
scheme.

Details of the options granted under the pre-listing share
option scheme and the post-listing share option scheme
and outstanding as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

e PR HRRME

27 BRARRDREE)

(c) HBRRESTEI(E)
B2017F1A1BZ20177878
EARBAT R D EMERE - R2017F
7R78 - RIEFTEIE8,600,00017 4 K
TTERBARAE - PEFER ZARER2017
F7A7EHERIEFTE - R IEFTE)
% TEEBELBRDBRE - MERTE
B SRS AT R o

B LAl RER 8 & £ g AR
sHEIRE B 2018 K& 2017412 A31
BREARITHEZEBREFBOT

Number of

shares subject to
the options at

31 December 2018

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price 7R2018%12H31H
REBH A TEE BRENROBE
HK$
HBIT
Directors
EF
8 June 2017 31 October 2020 7.80 800,000
20174%6H8H 20209 10A31H
8 June 2017 156 January 2023 5.14 1,200,000
201756 H8H 2023%F1H15H
Sub-total for directors 2,000,000
EEAN

Senior management and other employees
RREBABRHEMES
8 June 2017 31 October 2020 7.80 1,650,000
201756 A8H 20204 10H31H
8 June 2017 15 January 2023 5.14 3,750,000
20175 6AH8H 202341 H15H
Sub-total for senior management and

other employees 5,400,000

EREEARREGEENS oL

Total 7,400,000
Xl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRME

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D) 27 BARRDREE)
(c) Share option scheme (Cont’d) (c) BRESTEI(E)
Number of

shares subject to
the options at
31 December 2017

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price "2017%12H31H
g = B L= 1TEE BRENROEE
HK$
BT
Directors
5%
8 June 2017 31 October 2020 7.80 800,000
2017 6H8H 2020%10H31H
8 June 2017 15 January 2023 5.14 1,200,000
2017 6H8H 202341 H15H
Sub-total for directors 2,000,000
YT

Senior management and other employees

SREEABNEMER

8 June 2017 31 October 2020 7.80 2,150,000

2017%6H8H 2020€10A31H

8 June 2017 15 January 2023 5.14 4,450,000

2017%6H8H 20231168

Sub-total for senior management and other employees 6,600,000
_EBERABREMBR NG

Total 8,600,000

Bt
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(c)

Notes:

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRME

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D) 27 BRAERRGRE(E)
Share option scheme (Cont’d) (c) HEBREE(E)
BisE
No options were exercised by the senior management and other (i) HZE2018F R2017F12A31ALLFE ' &
employees during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. MERAE REMESWEITEBBRE -
The following tables disclose movements of the Company’s share (i) TREENRHZE2018F %2017F12A318
options held by the directors, senior management and other employees IEFEEE  aREEEREMESAFHAR
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017: NRBRENES -
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise 31 December Forfeited Expired 31 December
Expiry date 3R price 2017  duringtheyear  during the year 2018
HK$
020175 20185
12A31H 12A31H
fTEE 18 R AT HE FRABRY FREIH 18 RATHE
BT
Directors =
31 October 2020 2020108318 7.80 800,000 = = 800,000
15 January 2023 2023417150 5.14 1,200,000 S & 1,200,000
Sub-total for directors = 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Senior management and BRERER
other employees Hilg g
31 October 2020 2020108318 7.80 2,150,000 (500,000) - 1,650,000
15 January 2023 202318150 5.14 4,450,000 (700,000) = 3,750,000
Sub-total for senior management ~ BRAEEER
and other employees Hitlg8/0ar 6,600,000 (1,200,000) - 5,400,000
Total fehs 8,600,000 (1,200,000) - 7,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RERATE 7,400,000
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise 31 December Forfeited Expired 31 December
Expiry date 3%A price 2016  duringtheyear  during the year 2017
HK$
120165 R2017%
12A31H 12A318
TER o RATHE FREEK FREHH 8 RATHE
BT
Directors S
7 June 2017 2017466778 8.36 1,800,000 - (1,800,000) -
31 October 2020 2020108318 7.80 800,000 = & 800,000
15 January 2023 2023F 17150 5.14 1,200,000 = = 1,200,000
Sub-total for directors EEG 3,800,000 - (1,800,000) 2,000,000
Senior management and BREBER
other employees HitgS
31 October 2020 2020108318 7.80 2,750,000 (600,000) = 2,150,000
15 January 2023 202317150 5.14 4,850,000 (400,000) = 4,450,000
Sub-total for senior management  BREEER
and other employees HivEE /it 7,600,000 (1,000,000) = 6,600,000
Total @it 11,400,000 (1,000,000) (1,800,000) 8,600,000
Exercisable at theend of theyear ~ REFRAIT{E 8,600,000
®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRME

28 RESERVES 28 f#fE
AFS/FVTOCI
revaluation
reserve
(note 2.1(a))
Contribution TfiiHE/  Share-based
surplus Others  AF{EFA compensation Total other
(note (i)  (note (i) Eft2Eki reserve  Exchange  reserves  Retained
ON:L] B HEGEE O RGEM  resenve  HftfE  earnings Total
(WaEG)  (WEG)  (W&E2.1() fE  ENRE & REEA Eh
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETH
At January 2018 201881718 4,682,700 (4,640,494) (8,250) 19,252 (126,839) (73.631) 2,782,047 2,708,416
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - - 185,323 185,323
Other comprehensive income/(expense): 2R/ (F%) :
Exchange differences arising TERNEBMEES
on translation of foreign operations EizE S - - - 2,649 2,649 - 2,649
ffects of Share options BiREz2 S S S (1,676) = (1,676) 1676 =
Fairvalue loss on equity investmentat  ATEFAZH2EMES
FVTOC, net of tax RiEREZ A VERR
il - - (18750 - - (18750) - (18750)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  FR2E(F%)/ WELE
forthe year = = (18,750) (1,676) 2,649 (17,17) 186,999 169,222
Dividend paid EfiRE e S e - - - (140816)  (140616)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%128318 4,682,700 (4,640,494) (27,000) 17,576 (124,190) (91,408)  2,828430 2,737,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

28 RESERVES (CONT’D)

28 fHE(E)

Contribution AFS  Share-based
surplus Others  revaluation compensation Total other
(note (i) (note (i) reserve reserve  Exchange  reserves  Retained
AR Rt THEE  RAEM  resene  HttBE  earnings Total
(W) (W) EfARES B EXRE & REEH @it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMB000O ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREBTR ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1818 5,022,672 (166,891) - 22597 (126,566) 4751812 2178616 6,930,428
Profit for the year Mg = = - - - - 0702 401,702
Other comprehensive expense: Af2ERR
Exchange differences arising TERNERMELH
ontranslation of forsign operations EiER - - - - (273) (273) - (273)
Fair valus loss on AFS investment, ROERECATE
net of tax BR - BHE - - (80 - - B0) - (850
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  £M2E(FR)/ kLR
for the year - - (8,250) - (273) (8,523) 401,702 393,179
Share options forfeited after theendof ~ WRBHRED Rz BRE
the vesting period - - - (3,345) - (3,345) 3,345 -
Dividend paid EfiRE (141,588) S = - - (141589) - (141588)
Cancellation of CPNE shares pursuantto B EAH R
the Reorganisation Proposal HEMERRD
(note 27 (a)(i) (GEAE0) - (4,473,603) = = - (4,473,609) - (4,473,603)
Transfer (note (i) &2 (W) (198,384) - - - = (198,384) 198,384 =
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 4,682,700 (4,640,494) (8,250) 19,252 (126,839) (73,631) 2,782,047 2,708,416
Notes: B E
(i) On 28 May 2074, a special resolution was passed at the annual general (i) R2014F5A288 RRAFAG LBA

(i)

(i)

meeting to approve the cancellation of the share premium account
of the Company and the transfer of the amount to the contribution
surplus account of the Company.

Others mainly represent the difference between the value of new
CPCE shares issued and the carrying value of CPNE shares cancelled
after the Reorganization Proposal. It also consists of other reserve
of approximately RMB166, 891,000, capital redemption reserve of
approximately RMB3, 121,000 and statutory reserves of approximately
RMB446, 000.

The transfer from contribution surplus reserve to retained earnings
represents dividend to the Company amounting to approximately
RMB198, 384,000 declared by CPNE, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company on 27 December 2017.

(ii)

(iii)

—IERRIRE R - AR A A RR AR
BER  TEBEZESHEEARTANFEARR

HthEBHEEMAHFREDETHREFT R
RHR G 2 BEREFHEPEHERRN
BRAEZHENZERE HIREMREEOAR
#166,891,0007T « AERFHEHARK
3,121,0007C A E R HEH AR K 446,0007T
MR ©

ERARBFHBEEEREENELARTR

BWBRRPEFERN2017F12A27H
MARBEIRMEEARK198,384,0007T °

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29 SHBITREMEE

Bank and other borrowings are analyzed as follows:

RITREMEESTWT

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLEEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Long-term borrowings REEE
Long-term bank borrowings, BEEARARITEE
secured (note (a)) (BizE(a)) 2,729,893 2,674,306
Long-term bank borrowings, EEARBRITEE
unsecured (note (b)) (KtE(b)) 7,147,972 7,141,865
Long-term other borrowings, B RIEMEE
unsecured (note (c)) (B &E(e) 1,059,999 1,404,160
Obligation under finance lease BhEHEFE
(note (d)) (B zE(d)) 1,069,631 1,170,657
R 12,007,495 12,390,988
Less: Current portion of long-term w REMBEE ZBVEREL 5
borrowings
— secured bank borrowings — BERRRITEE (286,848) (282,941)
— unsecured bank borrowings — EEIRRITEE (528,422) (1,155,755)
— unsecured other borrowings — EEREMEE (460,000) (1,330,160)
— obligation under finance lease — REHEEARE (204,855) (258,275)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (1,480,125) (3,027,131)
Non-current portion of long-term REBEE 2 JERVERER
B 10,527,370 9,363,857
Short-term borrowings RHEE
Short-term bank borrowings, EEREERITER
unsecured 1,226,480 489,939
Short-term other borrowings, EEAREHEMER
unsecured (note (c)) (FF3E(e)) 540,002 -
P - S LR
Total borrowings {EEHREE 13,773,977 12,880,927
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

The Group’s non-current borrowings are repayable as
follows:

e PR HRRME

29 MTREMEEER)

REEZIFANHEE AR T O HMEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31AILEE
2018 2017
20184 201745
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTFT
Within one year —FR 1,480,125 3,027,131
In the second year F_F 1,964,490 1,097,883
In the third to fifth year E-EERF 5,452,819 3,796,964
After the fifth year hFE 3,110,061 4,469,010
12,007,495 12,390,988

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings are mainly denominated in RMB,
totalling of approximately RMB13,076,999,000 (2017:
RMB12,856,662,000). The carrying amounts of the Group’s
bank borrowings are denominated in EURO, totalling of
approximately RMB14,704,000 (2017: RMB18,905,000).
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in HK$, totalling of approximately
RMB682,274,000 (2017: RMB5,360,000).

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying
amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The
fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate of 4.61 % (2017: 4.48%) and are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

AEBRITREMEEZEREAEBEE
ZEUARBHE 6 0ARE
13,076,999,000 7T (2017 F : AR
12,856,662,0007T) ° A& B AR T AT
BERRITEEZRAESTHNAARKE
14,704,000 7T ( 2017 5 : 18,905,000
TC) o ANEENUB T EMRITEREZ
REEAFTHNA/ARYE682,274,0007T
(20174 : AR¥5,360,0007T) °

BREFRZESTTEKX - AL BVEAE
BENAFERERMERS - 2FED
LAEEFIEAL.61% (20174  4.48% )B4
RESRERTESH  BERAFEE
MEE —BRA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

29 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 29 SHBITREMEE(E)

The fair values of long-term bank borrowings at floating FERARITEEZATEEAAKREEAE

interest rates approximate their carrying amounts. HBE -

The effective interest rates of the Group’s HK$-denominated REBUABTRE LA RBARIT
and EURO-denominated long-term bank borrowings are BEZEBRFNEDRR0.74% (2017
0.74% per annum (2017: 0.74% per annum) and 4.66% per F o FREK0.74%) K4.66% (20174 «
annum (2017: 4.66%) respectively. The effective interest FHNEL66%) o REBIUARBIEZ
rates of the Group’s RMB-denominated bank and other RITREMBEE 2 ERMERDT -

borrowings are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBILLEE

2018 2017

20184 20175

% %

Long-term bank borrowings RERITEE 4.89% 4.73%

Long-term other borrowings REHAMEE 3.87% 2.89%

Short-term bank borrowings EERITEE 4.43% 4.23%

Obligation under finance lease B E AR 4.54% 4.42%
Notes: B 7E

(@)  Secured long-term bank borrowings are secured by: (a) BEARBBITEENUTIIIEREAER

- all investment properties of the Group with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB315,204,000 (2017: RMB308,496,000);

= certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB1,126,227,000 (2017:
RMB5,840,789,000);

- accounts receivable with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB1,019,703,000 (2017: RMB692,354,000); and

- corporate guarantee given by a Shareholder.
(b) Unsecured long-term bank borrowings amounting to approximately (b)

RMB1,045,713,000 (2017: RMB1,218,000,000) are guaranteed by a
Shareholder.

206 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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REBEEELNAR315,204,000
L(20174F « AR¥308,496,0007T)
ZHTEIREYE

ANE B EEEBEHNARE

1,126,227,0007L (2017 F : AR

5,840,789,0007T) 2 & TH% - B&E
Bt

B M 4 A R ¥ 1,019,703,000

TZEBER(2017F : AR

692,354,0007T) : &

—HBRREHRZ REER o

IR R HRITEEHARY,045,713,000
JL(20174 + AER¥1,218,000,0007T) J3 M
—RRERREIER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(c)

The balance represents entrusted loans amounted to approximately
RMB1,600,001,000 (2017: RMB1,344,160,000) from subsidiaries of
a Shareholder and nil (2017: RMB60,000,000) from a joint venture,
the effective interest rate is 4.01% (2017: 2.89%) per annum. The
repayment terms of these borrowings are analysed as follows:

e B HRRME

29 RITRHAAMEE )
FiHsE « (40

(c) ZEHRIERE—ERENHNBARINETLE
AR ®1,600,001,0007T (20174 = A
R ¥1,344,160,0007T) KRB —HE&E D
¥NEXERARBETT(2017F : AR
60,000,0007T) * BEERFFIZER4.01%(2017
F:289%) - ZFEEZERBOWWT ¢

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
Within one year —&FR 1,000,002 1,330,160
Between one and two years —EMF 85,799 =
Between two and five years MERF 470,200 30,000
Over five years AFE 44,000 44,000
1,600,001 1,404,160

As at 31 December 2018, the cost and accumulated depreciation
of property, plant and equipment held by the Group under finance
lease amounted to approximately RMB2,164,906,000 (2017:
RMB1,692,773,000) and RMB408,253,000 (2017: RMB417,504,000)
respectively (note 14(v)). The obligation under finance lease is secured
by deposits with carrying amount of approximately RMB97,758,000
(2017: RMB137,171,000) (note 20). Included in the balance was an
obligation under finance lease from a subsidiary of a Shareholder
amounted to approximately RMB170,000,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB180,000,000).

The rights to the leased assets are reverted to the lessor in the event of
default of the lease liabilities by the Group.

(d)  M2018F12A310 ' AEERBRE/MEMA
ERENOVE BERIEBEONKEARZR
ATITE DR A AR 2,164,906,000 7T
(2017 %F : AR %1,692,773,000 L) &
A R #408,253,0007C (2017 F : AR
417,504,000z ) (FIFE14(v)) © BbE T & &
EUABREELSARKI7,758,0005t (2017
F: AR®137,171,0007T) 2 B2 & 1EBIK
W(PEE20) - R BIER 20184 12A31H
RE—ERENHBARNRERE&E
# AR ¥170,000,0007C (20174 : AR
180,000,0007T) °

WAKEHRAERE BEEEZENE
ERTHEA -

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

29 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 29 SHBITREMEE(E)

Notes: (Cont’d) B3 - (48)

(d) (Cont’d) @ (&

FEERE T ERE 2 B

The Group’s obligation under finance lease is repayable as follows: BRI -

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20185 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Gross finance lease liabilities REREAERTE
- minimum lease payments —RERNEEHA
Not later than one year TER—F 281,144 266,018
Later than one year and no later than five years —FEUEETERAE 788,937 835,045
Later than five years A& 119,748 222,316
1,189,829 1,323,379
Future finance charges on finance leases BERE 2 RKE = H (120,198) (152,722)
Present value of finance lease liabilities REREERE 1,069,631 1,170,657
The present value of finance lease liabilitiesis  BVEHEABRENT ¢
as follows:
Not later than one year TER—F 204,855 258,275
Later than one year and no later than five years —FLREBTERAF 756,014 731,832
Later than five years A& 108,762 180,550
1,069,631 1,170,657
30 CORPORATE BOND 30 HEEH
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
RMB denominated corporate bond A RBEFHEMDEGES
- unsecured — AR 799,630 799,363
As at 31 December 2018, the balance represents R2018F 128318 » &8 AR20174F

RMB800,000,000 green corporate bond issued on 22 May
2017, as approved by National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors on 23 November 2016, due
in May 2020. The bond is unsecured, carries a fixed coupon 2020F5 A E|ER - ZEH BEEE - &
rate of 5.50% per annum, with the interest being payable EEBREFEMES50%  WEASFIHNF
annually. B o

5 A22H7% 77 AR #800,000,0007T 2
SEMERES  R2016511 A230 %
2HEMMEHREREERSIE B

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the corporate R2018F12A318 » t¥EHFLFEE
bond amounted to approximately RMB813,102,000 (2017: £ 5 ANRE813,102,0007T(20174F = A
RMB826,317,000). The effective interest rate of above [R#826,317,0007T) © &£ & RBEITHA
corporate bond is 5.54% (2017: 5.54%) per annum after Me2E  FPCEEFNBERFHX

considering the effect of issue costs. 55.54% (20174 : 5.54%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 31 EEBBEEE &fF

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BEAEARBHITENIRERBEER
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HEANBEAGBRELMEHRER
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes BHEEEE  EEMEEENB &R
relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts, BEEEE UTHRELHEHERIEERE
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the E - WRERE I BIRARPZEY] -
consolidated statement of financial position:

Year ended 31 December

BZE1283181LEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE 29,730 27,180
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAE (59,619) (75,286)
Net deferred tax liabilities EIEF TR (& R (29,889) (48,106)

The net movements in the net deferred tax liabilities are as FRERIEBEFBFEHOT ¢
follows:

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFIT AREFIT

At 1 January ®W1A1H (48,106) (87,731)

Credited to the consolidated statement R4RE 2 EW KT A

of comprehensive income 6,250 2,750
Credited to the consolidated income  R&Ea s &R A (ML)

statement (note 9) 11,967 36,875

At 31 December ®12A831H (29,889) (48,1006)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

31 EZEREEE AFE)
EERAEERABERFAZEPAE
st R AR RDAE R 2 H &R - 8
FInT

Deferred tax assets: BEERIEEE
Tax losses
and fair value
adjustment on
equity
investment
Depreciation  FIBEER
allowances REREZ Total
wERE LATEHAR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 7R2018F1A1H 16,710 10,470 27,180
Credited to the consolidated  R&GAEERFIRTA
statement of comprehensive
income = 6,250 6,250
Charged to the consolidated ~ R4R& MR MBE
income statement (647) (3,053) (3,700)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H 16,063 13,667 29,730
At 1 January 2017 RB2017F181H 17,357 7,229 24,586
Credited to the consolidated WA EZEREERTA
statement of comprehensive
income = 2,750 2,750
(Charged)/credited to the PERA R (0BR) A
consolidated income
Statement (647) 491 (156)
At 31 December 2017 H2017F12A31H 16,710 10,470 27,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

31 EEBEEE BEE)

Deferred tax liabilities: EERIARE
Withholding Fair value
taxfor  adjustment  Depreciation
unremitted  on business allowances
earnings  combination and others
RE BRI E o8 TERER Total
BB AFEAR Hitr @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H (15,108) (41,417) (18,766) (75,286)
Credited to the consolidated income R WEREA
statement 14,009 1,205 453 15,667
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12H31H (1,094) (40,212) (18,313) (59,619)
At 1 January 2017 ®2017%1 818 (49,716) (42,622) (19,979) (112,317)
Credited to the consolidated income K&tz A
statement 34,613 1,205 1,213 37,031
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 (15,103) (41,417) (18,766) (75,286)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of
approximately RMB530,471,000 (2017: RMB443,071,000)
for Hong Kong profits tax purposes with no expiry date and
unrecognised tax losses of approximately RMB403,662,000
(2017: RMB401,719,000) for the PRC corporate income tax
that will expire within five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB231,444,000 (31 December
2017: RMB151,958,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities to the extent of approximately
RMB154,817,000 (2017: RMB91,149,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries because the directors consider that the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Unremitted
earnings totalled approximately RMB1,613,168,000 (2017:
RMB1,210,686,000) as at 31 December 2018.

FEEFRBEENEBRIEREEAE A6
BB ARIERTE T S IR A E G
B8 F LARERR - 20185128318 -
AEGB G EE R E R 2 BEFESHESE
AERHIBEBH ARKS530,471,000
7t (2017 F + A R ® 443,071,000
) UBMBERAEFEANERZPED
X¥MBHSESABEIATEBBROAR
¥ 403,662,000 L (2017 F : AR ¥
401,719,0007T) °

RBEER  AEBEATNRERERE
ANER 231,444,000 (2017412 A 31
B : AR%151,958,0007T) » HRT KA
ApeEER AR TR ERE Y
JERTAER  BMAEBWERZEZ AT
BERNEERRELEHELE -

AEBW RIS THER R 2 KEH G
R FE A 2 RN B I HL b B T8 FE v IR I FX
HEBEHARE154,817,0007T (2017
&£ ARU91,149,0007T) © WL ERA
EERAAEE N ITHIREEE 2 E#D
BFPR - AR Eign] EE AN A 78
RgRER o KREHRFRK2018F12A4
3MNMBEZMREA A AKRY1,613,168,000
7T(20174 + AR¥1,210,686,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRME

32 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 32 IR

The carrying amounts of accounts payable approximate their HREMNBRERRNEEARE - WEKRE
fair values due to their short maturities. All these payables BEEANFERE - TAZSEMERY
are denominated in RMB. IAREGHE ©

The normal credit period for accounts payable generally ERNER EEEEH-—MRR60E180
ranges from 60 to 180 days, aging analysis of accounts H o ERERZERRITAT :
payable is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12H31BLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Current to 6 months BNEA = 61E A 107,472 45,970
7 to 12 months 7212{@AH 4,011 -
Over 1 year 1A E 562 669
112,045 46,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

33 CONSTRUCTION COSTS PAYABLE, OTHER 33 BENEERKN - HESFER

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES Est&RA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILLEE
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBTIT
Construction costs payable FETEREERK AR 1,372,566 1,760,870
Salaries and staff welfare payable  [EfI#H4 &8 TRHMFIE 11,730 13,942
Value added tax payable FERHGETRE 68,943 31,489
Repairs and maintenance expenses  JEfTAE(E R R X
payable 5,403 6,322
Considerations payable for WM B ARz EARE
acquisitions of subsidiaries 89,442 89,442
Other payables and accrued H AR TR R ERH SR
operating expenses 35,157 34,945
Interest payable FERTFLE 43,285 74,846
Government grants B @< 138,286 131,173
Amounts due to a Shareholder and  FEf—ZMRE K
its subsidiaries (note (i) EOF 8 & A A (B EEG)) 115,228 14,001
Amount due to a joint venture EN—EAaENEE
(note (i) (M3EG)) 8,600 31,207
Amounts due to non-controlling FEST IR M 25 FIE
interests (note (i) (BF3EG)) 543 543
1,889,183 2,188,780
Less: Non-current portions R FERNERER
Construction costs payable FERT R EER AR
(note (ii)) (B EE(i) (352,447) (947,656)
Government grants BT e (138,286) (131,173)
Current portion BUEAER 5 1,398,450 1,109,951
Denominated in: FHEE® -
RMB AR 1,820,861 2,130,007
HKD BT 62,462 53,207
EURO BT 5,860 5,566
1,889,183 2,188,780
Notes: BiaE -
(i) These balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (i) ZEREERR RS RBIRENREE -
demand.
(i) Non-current portion of construction costs payable will not be payable (i) FETEEEA AN IERD HAEP 5 AR 15 5 52 1R ok 1R 3K
within one year from the end of each reporting period in accordance BARSMEMRET —FART -

with the terms of the construction agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34

CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from (a)

operations

FEREREBRMEE

BREAGRFNEKEZTHMEREZ

¥R

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLEEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before tax B 15 A A 238,612 560,706
Adjustments for: FHEE
Finance costs BiEE M 621,865 526,522
Finance income BB A (14,297) (11,367)
Depreciation and amortisation e R i 943,872 884,502
Gains on disposals of property, plant ~ HEWE  BE &R
and equipment Wz - (207)
Impairment losses BIEEE 40,892 =
Amortisation of government grants BB & 55 (794) (794)
Share of profits of associates FE(EEEE R alm A (16,451) (12,7562)
Share of profits of joint ventures EIEEE BT (18,862) (19,946)
Gain on disposal on interest in HEREBERE e
a joint venture — (10,683)
Fair value losses on financial assets AV {EFFABZHESREE
at FVTPL ZNHEER 2,291 78
Fair value gains on investment BEWE 2 AT ERE
properties (2,414) -
Operating profit before working LBESEFBA L E R
capital changes 1,799,714 1,916,059
Increase in inventories FE#M (16,121) (20,353)
Increase in accounts receivable JE W BR R N (644,424) (382,326)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, JEfNZKIE - k4 R EMEIK
deposits and other receivables IR (350) 38,008 (78,146)
Increase in accounts payable JE A~ BR SR8 N 65,406 11,886
Increase in other payables and Bt e FRIE [ FEET B R N
accrued charges 20,498 135,881
Cash generated from operations KEESFScRE 1,263,081 1,583,001

TRENERERERER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34
CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

REREREBRME ()

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEITBELENEEZHIER
activities
Amounts
Non-current Current duetoa
portion of portion of Shareholder
longterm  Corporate  longterm ~ Shortterm  Dividend Interest andits
borrowings bond  borrowings  borrowings payable payable subsidiaries Total
Efi-%
REES RERE RRREKE
JENERS  LEER  NERS  BMEE EMRE EARE ARGE it
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMBO000  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBO000  RMB00O
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 31 December 2016 R2016E128318 (9748,816)  (799,343)  (1,856,483)  (715,586) S (112,514) (11,638)  (13,244,382)
Addition of borrowings EiEE (2,798,663) = - (20,000 = = - (2818669)
Addition of corporate bond EneEEs - (799,200 - - - - - (799,200
Repayment of borrowings EEEE 1,724,751 S 291,902 245,649 S S - 1,262,302
Repayment of corporatebond ~ ER(L ¥R - 800,000 - - - - - 800,000
Payment of dividends EfRE e - - - 141588 - - 141588
Payment of interest SULES - = - - - 57903 50634 629,670
Dividend recognised as distribution BRAME %2 - - - - (141,589) - - (1458
Reclassification of currentand ~ EFARETZ MR
non-current portion of loan FEHS 1,462,550 - (1,462,550) - - - - -
Interest expenses flgkx (3,679) (820) - - - [(B41368)  (43328)  (589,195)
At 31 December 2017 R017E128318 (9.363857) (799,363  (3,027,131)  (489,939) S (74,846) (4,332)  (13,759,468)
Addition of borrowings EIEE (2,898,627) S - (1.839,182) S S - (4737,80)
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 267,612 - 303 562,639 - - - 3847,382
Payment of dividends HRE - - - - 140616 - - 140616
Payment of interest S S - - - - 664384 3181 695,565
Dividend recognised as distribution EBAEZRE = = = - (140,616) - - (140616)
Reclassification of currentand ~ EFABERDER
non-current portion of loan FHESH 1,480,125 - (1480129) - - - - -
Interest expenses flgkx (2629) (267) S = - (632823) (54695 (690.406)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A318 (10527,370) (799,630  (1,480,126)  (1,766,482) - (43,285) (27,848) (14,644,738
O,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

35 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

35 RiE
(a) BAREIE

Contracted but not provided for EEEEER
in respect of — property, —ME - BEREE
plant and equipment

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBFIT
2,480,358 2,463,578

(b) Commitments under operating leases
Future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(b) REBLOT ZEE
RIB T AT E AL

B HAEIT -

C RREFERE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLEE

2018 2017
2018% 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Land and buildings THIREF

Not later than one year TIRR—F 7,570 4,448

Later than one year and —FUBRETENRRTF
not later than five years 18,265 =
25,835 4,448

The Group’s operating leases are for terms of 1 to 4 years
(2017: 1 year).

(c) Future operating lease agreements
Future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AREBZEEHOR/I 245 (2017

F 1) o

() AREREEEOMR

RBTAIBEHESEREO - REKERUK

HERBEENT ¢

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLFEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Land and buildings THIREF

Not later than one year TEBRR—F 8,336 10,394

Later than one year and not later —FLEBETERASE
than five years 6,762 14,526
Later than five years hF& = 6
15,098 24,926

The Group’s operating leases are for terms of 1 to 5 years
(2017: 1 to 6 years).

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

e B HRRME

36 HBERER

Categories of financial instruments SEi T B¥ER|
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31AILEE
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFIT
Financial assets TREE
- Equity investment at FVTOCI —AFEFAHMEE
Wt BB & 219,000 -
- AFS investment —A i ERE = 244,000
- Financial assets at amortised cost —IZ#HEKAFTEN S RIEE 2,579,878 =
- Loans and receivables (including ~ —EBREEWFIBE(BHE
cash and cash equivalents) ReERFSEEW) = 2,350,431
- Financial assets at FVTPL —RAFEFABZNEREE 4,849 7,140
2,803,727 2,601,571
Financial liabilities CA =N
- Amortised cost —HE SR 16,355,876 15,739,105

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risks (including: foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk
exposures is governed by the Group’s policies approved by
the Board of Directors. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(@) MBEBREZR
AEEEB L REZEVBRR : mHE
2 (BEMNERR  BeRERLQFERN
ERBRIARERRR) - EERRKR
ExRk  AKEEBERREE S
HEAER ZERTE - AEHAEE
MBRRZBETHNEERERK -

REHHETRBR 2MBITETARE
FeREZAEBBEMBRE - ~&H
TEERITASR T AEREES -

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with transactions
mainly settled in RMB, United States dollar (“US$"),
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) and Euros (“EURQ”). Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
The Group’s assets and liabilities, including cash and
cash equivalents, borrowings and other payables, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily do not
expose to material foreign exchange risk.

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional
currency. It mainly includes managing the exposures arise
from sales and purchases made by the relevant group
companies in currencies other than their own functional
currencies. The Group also manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures. The Group has not used any forward
foreign exchange contracts or currency borrowings to hedge
its exposure as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB30,609,000 (2017: RMB2,110,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
HK$-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2018, if US$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB59,000 (2017: RMB48,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
HK$-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

218 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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36 HEREREE(E)

(a) MBEEBEEZEE)

(i) SMEREEE
AEEEREIBURTEAERSEEIN
AR® - Ex([ZEx]) BxAT))
EBIT(TRITDEE - MABEHERS
UEHREENBBENEEEIEEH
ZEELE ANERREEES - &
SENEERAB(RERENREEE
Y BEEREMEMTUE)AREXGE
ERRZGERTH RERIMERR

EREIAEBREREBARERED
BEEE ZIMNERR - ZBRETEBREE
BEREBRRARINERGIEEE R AN
CEBHTEEELE AR - NEBET
i 8 TF HREE A% AN F R R b B 1R E A
ERRR - 72018128318 » AEH
AR EREREIMNES R EBEE
R ERR ©

MN2018%E12A31H  HETH AR
BB,/ FHES% + MATA LS EEHR
B BFE BRI R G, 8 A4
AFR#30,609,0007C (20174 « AR¥E
2,110,00070) + T EABBRE OB TR
BEZRERREEBYVAEENELE
B UREFTER °

R2018F 128318 @ HETAARE
BefE FHES%  MATEEME S
& BAFRNBRBERF GRS,
M AREES9,000T(20176F « ARES
48,0007T) + TEREABBRE LB ITETE
ZHeRACEBMAEANELE
B URESFTER °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018, if EURO had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB498,000 (2017:RMB694,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of HK$-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

The following table details the Group’s major exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the yearend date.

e B HRRME

36 HEEREE(E)

(a) HH¥EBREZEGE)

(i) SMERE(E)
R2018F12A31H » WEITTH AR
RE/FEYS  MATEEMESHT
& BIFERBREREEF SN, R
AR 498,0007T (20174 « AR
694,0007T) + FEZHA AR E LUB LA
BEZREAREEEVHEENERLS
B/ WREFTER °

TRFAATIBAEERN & EHRE AR
MERNDEEEMIINERAEZE
BEERABEMEENTIEEERR -
L2 E - FEkR R A F R BIHIE
FHEDBAREIR -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A3MALEE
2018 2017
20185 20175
HK$ UsD EURO HK$ UsD EURO
BT e BT BT = Bt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTR ARETT ARETR
Cashand cashequivalents B2 RELEEY 12,064 1,456 8,746 8,560 1,134 7,997
Short term borrowings REEE (677,246) = - - - -
Long term borrowings REEE
(including current portion)  (BIEEIEHS) (5,028) - (14,704) (5,360) - (18,905)
Other payables A ENTIA (62,462) - (5,860) (53,207) - (5,566)
Net exposure [ 558 (732,672) 1,456 (11,818) (50,007) 1,134 (16,474)
©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest-bearing assets mainly include
cash at banks and restricted deposits, details of which have
been disclosed in note 24. The Group’s exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in note 30. Borrowings
carried at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk whereas borrowings carried at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk, details of
which have been disclosed in note 29. The Group has not
used any specific interest rate swap contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of People’s Bank of China
interest rate arising from the Group’s RMB denominated
floating rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, if the interest rates on bank and
other borrowings had been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis
points) higher/lower than the prevailing interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
(net of interest capitalized) would have been approximately
RMB2,040,000 lower/higher (2017: RMB2,432,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense
on floating rate bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, if the interest rates on cash at
banks and restricted deposits had been 50 basis points
(2017: 50 basis points) higher/lower than the prevailing
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year (net of interest capitalized) would
have been approximately RMB293,000 higher/lower (2017:
RMB426,000 higher/lower) mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest income on floating rate cash at banks and restricted
deposits.
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36 HEREREE(E)

(a) MHEBREZEGER)

(ii)  FIEmEp
AEBMZRARBEREREEA LR
XMBHNEREHTE - AEEMNFTEE
EFEVRBTRERZREEFX - A
A IEEME24KE - ARETERE
EEMXNEXEHTE - FHFHEER
A30WE o FEEBERAKERRER
ENXEREE MEBBEEAEE
ERFENERREE  GEFBEEN
AE20WFE o AN E N A AR E R
KSR LM KRR o

AEENRERENREARERZETR
AEBEUAREFTENZIERITERE
R B ARRITHEKE -

R2018F 128318 © WiR1T R EME
BE2ARESRMERBITH RS0EES
(20174 : SOMBES) - M FTA Hith &
EHETE  IERBRBEEENGNR
BREFE) B SR MO ARE
2,040,0007C (20174 : Fd  EMAR
#52,432,00070) + EETIRBITREAM
BEZFEF SR MWD o

M2018F 128318 © WiR1TRE AT
BREITERZFESR,MERIRITH ES0
EE2E(20174F  GOEEDE) » MABE
B TE - BIFABRTEEF (3
BREARNEFB) LM RO HOARE
293,0007t(20174F : #in,/SHd AR
426,00070) * EEHRERRITEESRZR
FITFRZFENF BURAIG AN, SR BTEL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

e PR HRRME

36 HEEREE(E)

(a) HIISEBEZE(E)

(i)  FIEEEE(E)
REBHEKAENSREENT B WA
BRI -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Interest income FEWA
Restricted deposits PR 175K 505 532
Cash and Cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 7,318 10,835
Discounting effect on clean energy  JEUWEZEERKIMEE
power price premium receivable (M¥zE220Gi) ) HyBL IR o &
(note 22(iii)) 6,474 -
Total interest income M EY A LB EE 14,297 11,367

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at
FVTPL:

Y IERFEFABDAENERAE
ZH B

Financial liabilities at amortised cost RS AEZ SR EE

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
621,865 526,522

(iii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk mainly in
relation to the natural gas and coal price for its generation of
electricity. The Group has not used any forward contracts to
hedge its exposure.

During the year, the Group’s fuel costs amounted
to approximately RMB2,193,456,000 (2017:
RMB2,215,299,000). If the fuel costs had increased/
decreased by 5% (2017: 5%), with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB82,255,000 (2017: RMB83,074,000)
lower/higher.

Given the insignificant portfolio of listed equity securities
held by the Group, price risk with respect to investments in
equity securities listed in Hong Kong held by the Group which
are classified as financial assets at FVTPL is minimal.

(iii) 1B
REBEABHEESERAEURARAER
HERET ZHAMERKER - NEE Y&
FAE RGO R ERERE

FR - REBMBREKAD B ARE
2,193,456,000 7t ( 2017 F : AR
2,215,299,000 7 ) ° i #R £} B < 1%
m,wWA5% (20174 5% ) - i EH M
FTEREHETE  BIFERKRBERHN
R IE M A R#82 2550007
(20174 : AR¥83,074,0007T) °

ENAEERE . LRBRAESHEE R
BAK - BRAKEIHES L WA
EFRE(DB/AFEFAREHNEZE
BE)NERRRBEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment test

The Group’s credit risk primarily arises from accounts
receivable (note 22), deposits and other receivables (note
20), restricted deposits (note 24) and cash and cash
equivalents (note 24). The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

Accounts receivable arising from contracts with customers

The Group is exposed to significant concentration of credit
risk in terms of electricity sales as a majority of the Group’s
sales of electricity were made to regional and provincial
power grid companies. The Group normally grants credit
terms ranged from 30 to 60 days to these power grid
companies except for clean energy power price premium.
The collection of such clean energy power price premium is
subject to the allocation of funds by relevant government
authorities to local grid companies, which therefore takes a
relatively long time for settlement. The Group normally does
not require collaterals from trade debtors. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on
trade balances individually. Ageing analysis of the Group’s
accounts receivable is disclosed in note 22 and monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced and do not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Deposits and other receivables

The counterparties of the group's deposits and other
receivables are mainly large state-owned enterprises with
good credit and government agencies. Under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model),
management makes periodic collective assessment as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of all loans
and receivables, based on historical payment records,
the length of the overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the
relevant debtors. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the credit risk on other receivables are of low
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company have performed impairment assessment for
deposits and other receivable and concluded that the credit
losses of the other receivable as at 31 December 2018 was
insignificant and therefore no allowance is provided.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

36 HEEREE(E)

(a) HBEMBEZEE)

(iv) EEmEPEERBER
AEBENEERRETERE BN
(PH3E22) ~ ® M H b U RIA (B 5E
20) ~ ZRBIFR(MHTE24) ARBRE R
ReLEY(MHE24) - AEBYRFA
EAEARIEMEEEETR - AR
MEESHEERBNEERR -

EPARELEMEBUIRR

HRAEBALLENETEERE R
BERDNR BAEEEGEEEZE
AEFEERR - AEE—RETZE
BERNFI0REORZZEH - B
BEREEME RN - BREEBREREE
HEAFHEERA#ER T BH LA
BB E LB A ATIE - E L& ERFRER
R -AEE—RTEREZFEL ARG
WIRG o Wi AEBMREATEV S
S FIRBIRIFTEREEEHEER
(2017F : EEEBEER)ENEE S
ERETTRIER N - NEB 2 EIIRR
BREDITRMIFE 22 MAEEEE
MEERERF - UHEEDRIURETEK
EUARAER - Mt E - ARFEER
AAEENEERRARRL - WTEH
BrEeHRZEHF I TBYMEED
R &8 -

e K H A FEUGRIR

AEBZSREMERRENOYFHE
DEEERIFMATES KRBT
- RERE B REERFEIREBIR
BREBHEEEEBEX(2017F : EEAL
EEER)  BEEEREBEESABENR
FOE% - WERRSR  BIECE QR EAERE
BAREHREEMNFZ  THHMETK
B Fr A B R B R IE 1 TR B (A R 5T
e RARIESERA  HMEKFIER
EERBREE RMEHKR AQAE
EO TS REMERFBETRERT
& WRAENR2018F12831BHE A
JEWBEREEFRBITEKX Bt E
FHERRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(iv) Credit risk and impairment test (Cont’d)
Restricted deposits and cash and cash equivalents

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and deposits are
held in major financial institutions, which management
believes are of high credit quality. Therefore, the Group
performs impairment assessment under 12m ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on restricted deposits and cash and cash equivalents on
collective basis. Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, including accounts receivable,
notes receivable, deposits and other receivables, long-term
deposits pledged as securities for finance leases, restricted
deposits and cash and cash equivalents, which are subject
to ECL assessment:

e PR HRRME

36 HEEREE(E)

(a) BiIBEBREZRE)
(iv) 1=SEmEPERK BER (&)
XREIFREBEE MIESEEY

AEBEBABOREREFARIEFERE
BEEREAASEEERMNARL S BE
BBt AEBRNEREAVBERS
EREORRRIF12EA BB EEER
B (20175 : CELABBERN)BRY
ZREFRRRE KRS FEYETR
ErffE - BEERASE TS HRZEY
FHTBRAMEENEMER -

TRAIAEESBEE (B ERKE
2 R - R B i R -
AR AT SN EEER - SRHE
KRB RESSEY) DA
@g%%@ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ
i -

Gross
External Internal 12-month carrying
2018 Notes credit rating credit rating or lifetime ECL amount
12{8 § L& (A1
20184 Wi SHBEETIR AREETIR BREEER BEREE
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at REBHEEATE
amortised cost NeEmEE
Restricted deposits RRHFR 2% M N/A 12mECL 27,872
NER 12{AAEEBEEER
Cashand cashequivalents ~ BE&KEEEEY 2% A N/A 12m ECL ‘ 403,848
NER 12 AEHEEEE
Deposits and re REMERGRIE 20 N/A Low risk 12m ECL ‘ 92,464
other Receivables A Rk 12MEARHEEERE
Accounts receivable FEUERR 22 A1 N/A Lifetime ECL (not 1,905,823
A credit impaired)
2 EFESEY
ERER
(YHEERE)
Notes receivable e ES 2 M N/A 12mECL 67,113
NER 12{A AEEEEER
Long-term deposits pledged  HRERERENRE 26 N/A Low risk 12m ECL ‘ 82,758
as securities for TR T Rk 128 ATRAEEERE

finance leases

Note: foraccounts receivable, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL individually.

Bt ¢ oA B AT ¢ A B D B 4
B BOR M ML E - LAR (A BT
B ER T R AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(v) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for
construction of power plants, additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on related debts
and payment for purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of internal resources, short-term and long-
term bank and other borrowings and corporate bond.

As at 31 December 2018, the net current liabilities
of the Group amounted to RMB2,090,775,000 (2017:
RMB1,703,375,000). Management monitors regularly the
Group’s current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount of facilities
to meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had available registered and unutilised
corporate bond quotas of approximately RMB2,500,000,000
and will refinance and/or restructure certain short-term
loans into long-term loans or consider alternative sources of
financing, where applicable.

224 CHINAPOWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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36 HEREREE(E)

(a) BIEEBEZE)

(v) HEBELEE
AEEFETEEZRBECRERER -
BAEEBBACEAZZTHAEERE -
REHEFAEHBES LB SEEYRAISHA
B o

AEBTEREBRREHERZER -
ME  BEMRBRELAR  EBER
BEBARINRBEREERS - A%
BRSARNGER EHERIRITR
HiEEREEERMEEEEEHR -

R2018F12A31H - AEENAHE
BEFEE A ARM2 090,775,0007T(2017
£ AR¥1,703,375,0007T) ° & IE
ETHRERASEBERMRERRDES
BRUBRERSEAESRRASEE
Y ARBAMEESEHESIUER
EBEBESHENR - R2018F128318 -
AEBEATHAEAMEARBDADE
BEAFEEH AR 2500,000,0007T °
THREZBERTERER HEER
THRBHEFRARBEN  EEH M
BRIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(v) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

rates at the end of each reporting period).

e B HRRME

36 HEEREE(E)

(a) MBEEBEZEE)
v) REBETEEE)
TERUAKREZERABRBERDIH
ARRERRSAHEANIMAZF
HREEETON - RARBEZFIARA
HARMR 2R ERE (BIEAR N R
B(HWEFBHE - AIASREHRDF
KHE) RIS

Weighted
average Between Between
interest rate Within 1and2 2and5 Over Carrying
% 1year years years 5years Total amount
il
FRE%  —FUT -Z-FRm —EEFR BFUL Ehy REE
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBI00O
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2018 120185
128318
Bank and other borrowings  $H{TRAMEE 461% 3,836,286 2471165  6,295427 3,639,606 16,242,484 13,773,977
Corporate bond TEES 5.56% 44,000 844,000 - - 888,000 799,630
Accounts payable JE BRAE - 111,483 562 - - 112,045 112,045
Construction costs payable JEfTRSER A - 1,020,119 352447 - - 1,372,566 1,372,566
Other payables and accrued EftERFIER
charges B ER - 297,658 - - - 297,658 297,658
Total Fh) 5,300,546 3,668,174 6,295,427 3,639,606 18,912,753 16,355,876
At 31 December 2017 20175
12318
Bank and other borrowings  $F{TREMES L48% 4029127 1537394 4221882 5165234 14,953,637 12,880,927
Corporate bond PEES 5.54% 44,000 44000 844,000 - 932,000 799,363
Accounts payable FER RS - 45,970 669 - - 46,639 46,639
Construction costs payable EfTZEmRA - 813214 947,656 - - 1,760,870 1,760,870
Other payables and accrued E it 5B &
charges EtER - 251,306 - - e 5(R3068 51306
Total Bt 5183617 2529719 5065882 5165234 17944452 15,739,105

©

ANNUAL REPORT 2018%/

F35 2018



226

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for Shareholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
condition. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to
Shareholders, return capital to Shareholders, issue new
shares, sell assets to reduce debt, obtain bank borrowings or
issue corporate bonds.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total bank and other borrowings
(including short-term and long-term borrowings and
corporate bonds as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from last year, was to maintain gearing ratio at a stable level.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

36 HEEREE(E)

(b)) EREBERE

AEBECEEBEEEREREE
ZIFELEEN  BRERHERTR -
R EC EREBIAREE S UK -

AEBEREARER  THERBKEMNR
ZEBELRE REFNABRELE
B AEEHAEREINTRREZK
8 MERREER  BHITHK - HE
BENBKER  BEURTEERET
BEES -

AEENBERAABLREREER -
S RIZRAEFRRABERE
EL@ﬁr%%zE”fﬁﬁ&ﬂ@fﬁgﬁ@gﬁ(’F]%
RAEMBHARRAINNEHEEMES
&m%ﬁ%)ﬁiﬁi&ﬁ%ifﬁ%&}mﬁﬂ
2% i@éleihzﬁ”ﬁié\ J(ﬁﬂéﬁé\ﬁﬁ
f“ﬂkﬂi‘%ﬁfrﬂ)ﬂﬂﬁ%@

FR - ARBEZREEEFHER - K
BERBBERERERTEKRF

TRAOMAEBER2018F K 20175F12
HA3THREBE RS -

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMBE RS
(notes 29 and 30) (Ff5E29%30) 14,573,607 13,680,290
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY
(note 24) (FF5E24) (403,848) (739,385)
Net debt BEFHE 14,169,759 12,940,905
Total equity AR 8,631,739 8,553,696
Total capital BER 22,801,498 21,494,601
Gearing ratio BEXRBREE 62% 60%

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Fairvalue estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (Level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2018 and 2017. See note 16 for disclosures of the
investment properties that are measured at fair value.

e B HRRME

36 HEEREE(E)

(c) 2 FEME
TRABEZEDWTIERAFEIRZ &/
TH -BEMZEHRMT :

- HABEESRBRERXREEMSLZ
WECRERHE)(F—E) -

- BESAEZHABERLIESERN
F—EBRNZHRE - R EEM (R
flIanErs) s (BUR B E1%)
wER(E_E) -

- BESAEEZHABRYIFKER
BERz2mBEE(ATITEREA
2B (F=E) -

TREVNAEBN2018F K 2017F12
A3MBEAFEFECEHEERE
& BT 16BBAATEAFEZRE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—B EE £=E @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H
Assets BE
Equity investment at FYTOCI AVEG AR EER
RS & - - 219,000 219,000
Financial assets at FVTPL NEERFABREN
THEE 4,849 - - 4,849
4,849 - 219,000 223,849
At 31 December 2017 ®2017§12A31H
Assets EE
AFS investment AEEERE = = 244,000 244,000
Financial assets at FVTPL N SIERPNEal:
SRMEE 7,140 = = 7,140
7,140 = 244,000 251,140

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

BE2018F12ANBALFE F— B
B B 2 P AR B S 88 A Sk BR i 2R
=E(2017% : &) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Fairvalue estimation (Cont’d)

(i)  Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included in
Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

(ii)  Financial instruments in Level 3
The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy during the year are as follows:

36 HEEREE(E)

() AFEMF(E)

(i) F—EBZLt@IA

EERTSTPRINEMITANDTFE
TIREREBHARMETE - HRE
AEXRSF - KA - 818 TES
B TERGKEERBTS KT HE
B BEZEREDNAFTERIHIER
KEELEZER  AlgmsRAeE RN
5 AEEMBAESRMEEFANTS
HREDRITEAE ZBEIEBNE—
B -F—EBRE2IATEEENES
ANTEFABENSREE 2 RIBRE -

(i) E=Ezz@TA
FRATEERY E=BABREDENR
T

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
2018% 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFTT
At 1 January ®1A1R 244,000 255,000
Fair value change NEEES) (25,000) (11,000)
At 31 December ®12A318 219,000 244,000
Changes in unrealised fair value FFAFREMEEKR
change for the year included in FARERAFEEE
other comprehensive income HE)
at the end of the year 25,000 11,000

The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value
measurements within Level 3 is as follows:

FZERFEAEMAZAERN LR
ABEMT

Financial Valuation Unobservable
instrument technique inputs
SEMIA BRI TABRHARE
Financial assets at Market Unit rate
fair value through approach BREE
other comprehensive mEAR
income
AVE AR 2 EYER

The valuation is performed and reported twice each year, in
line with the Group’s reporting dates, to Group management.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
TRENERERERER AT

Value of Relationship of

unobservable unobservable

inputs inputs to fair value

FUBERGARE TIBRRRARE

ZfhE HAFEZBR
RMB1,427/sqmto  The higher the unit rate,
RMB1,440/sgm  the higher the fair value

ARV 42T/ FRRE BUEXHE
ARE 44070/ FH* BIATEES

HESFETRR  BAKERERH
—E - YRAKEEEERS o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Fairvalue estimation (Cont’d)

(iii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors

consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

e PR HRRME

36 MHEMRER(E)

(c) AFEME ()

(iii) WFHREEMEEL L FETER
THEERETHMEMESAFE

BRTIERMALEI  EERB/NEAE

BREEINEREERSRARLE

E{ERE N TEBEE

2018
2018%
Carrying
amount Fair value
REE AYE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR
Financial liabilities SREE
Long term borrowings REMEE
- fixed rate —EE 1,529,629 1,549,563

Year ended 31 December

HENANALEE
2017
20175
Fair value Fair value
hierarchy Carrying hierarchy
Level amount Fair value Level
AYFEER REE AYE  ATEER
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETRH
2 1,321,540 1,321,728 2

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2018, State Power Investment
Corporation Limited and China Three Gorges Corporation
Limited held 28.07% (2017: 28.07%) and 27.10% (2017:
27.10%) equity interests in the Company respectively. The
remaining shares are widely held.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

The Group is a state-owned enterprise. In accordance
with the revised HKAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”,
government related enterprises, other than entities under
the Group, which the PRC government has control, joint
control or significant influence over are also considered as
related parties of the Company and its subsidiaries (“other
government-related enterprises”).

The majority of the business activities of the Group are
conducted with other government-related enterprises. For
the purpose of the related party balances and transactions
disclosure, the Group has established procedures to
determine, to the extent possible, the identification of the
ownership structure of its customers and suppliers as to
whether they are government-related enterprises. However,
many government-related enterprises have a multilayered
corporate structure and the ownership structures change
over time as a result of transfers and privatization programs.
Nevertheless, management believes that all material related
party balances and transactions have been adequately
disclosed.

37 BEALXRS

MN2018F12831H  BREHIKEE
BERARMFRRIZIKEBREGRA
BlD R A AR R E]28.07% (2017 £F -
28.07% )} 27.10%(20174F : 27.10%)
ZRHE - RN BB SRR EE -

WE—AE J‘JEBJZF'%‘*? Hlm—77
ZHZ—TIEEARES H'J%Ejz

W B RS - erJx/\HT (i

75 IR B R B

AEEREERY - REGLETEER

ARG [REN L RE) - BA

EETBEE N - ZREBHES

[R5 o B A B BT A8 B 42 2 7
: R R E A A RS A+

[ &) £ 27 505 By B S 4t BR AT AR
: c MEEALTHEBRE R H W
%EET%EEQIEF%M%%

%Eﬁlﬁ*ﬁ?@m% %ﬁﬁ
{EyE&W$EE§ﬁ¥T?ﬁﬁ;JE/£A B
W HEMAGEA %EEEM%?&%DMETK?
BmpEERERE - HEEEEHRE B
ANBBEMAEAMEALTEHRERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D) 37 BEATRZ(E)

The following is a summary of significant related party AR A BT IRAR N E M35 PR R 8
transactions which, in the opinion of the directors, are AEZEBBIN  UMTREEFEALR
entered into in the ordinary course of the Group’s business in SIHME  BEERAEZERSNEARE
addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in HEEBBEPEINL

these consolidated financial statements.

(@) Transactions with related parties (a) EEBEALRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AREFIT AREFTT
Revenue from heat supply to ) — B & R B AR UL A
an associate (i) 21,019 15,668
Revenue from composite support m— B ERAHE AR
service to subsidiaries of REERE TRRBHUKA
a Shareholder (ii) 23,028 13,592
Revenue from provision of ) —FE B & A AR HLERP
ERP system to an associate REHWA (iii) - 357
Interest income from subsidiaries & — &R RHME L A
of a Shareholder FEWA 133 -
Operating lease rental income RE—FHEE AR EE
from an associate “ES WA (iv) 32 -
Repair and maintenance and power A — & IRE B D BT
generation expenses to HIEREEREEFRX
subsidiaries of a Shareholder (V) - 1,058
Operating lease rental expenses m—EEEREIAN
to a joint venture EREANEERS (vi) 352 469
Other operating expenses on m—ZREAHB QA
provision of ERP system to RUEERPRATH E A
a subsidiary of a Shareholder Y (vii) 3,750 4,055
Interest expenses on loans to M—ZREAHB AR
subsidiaries of a Shareholder IR ERFEFHZ (viii) 54,695 35,966
Interest expenses on loans to m—EEERELNN
a joint venture ERFERAX (viii) 857 2,251
Interest expenses on finance m—ZREAHB QA
leases to a subsidiary of TAHNBEREN SR
a Shareholder (ix) 8,125 8,596
Other operating expenses on mM—R2RENMB AT
technical supervision and services BT ESE R AR 7% 69 B4 48
to a subsidiary of a Shareholder EHRX (x) 9,257 -
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(a)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

The Group has entered into agreements for revenue from heat supply
to an associate, the terms of which were mutually agreed between the
parties.

The Group has entered into a composite support services agreement
with subsidiaries of a Shareholder, the terms of which were mutually
agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for providing enterprise
resource planning system (“ERP”) to an associate, the terms of which
were mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for revenue from operating
lease to an associate, the terms of which were mutually agreed
between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the provision of repair and
maintenance and power generation services from subsidiaries of a
Shareholder, the terms of which were mutually agreed between the
parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the operating lease rental
from a joint venture, the terms of which were mutually agreed between
the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the provision of ERP system
from a subsidiary of a Shareholder, the terms of which were mutually
agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into entrusted loan agreements with
subsidiaries of a Shareholder and a joint venture (note 29(c)), the terms
of which were mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into a finance lease agreement with a
subsidiary of a Shareholder (note 29(d)), the terms of which were
mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the technical supervision
and services from a subsidiary of a Shareholder, the terms of which
were mutually agreed between the parties.

(a)

f i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

e B HRRME

BEALRS (&)

BEEEALTRS (&)

REED phA — KB & AR EANKAZTZ
%% - ARGRAFTOZHIRERE

FEBRE-ERRNMBRARTLEAX
ERBHE  BREGRATOETEER
o

AEEDRA—HELARREEEERS
BIRM(TERP RT3 - BRAIRRBETH
BITHAEWHE

REBD K — M E QR ML EEHK
AT BRGRBFTOEIHER

.
T °

AEEERE —BRERAKBRRRERE
N e N B ERISAT L e+ B R IGR AT
HETHREWRE °

AEECHA e EERHELEHEOA
B BRGERATNEDEER

E o

REBC LA — B BRRNME A BRHEERP
RBRIM W% - ARIERBAT ORI HEER

-
T °

REBE-ZERNFBRRL-—HAEDR
AU EREER B (H5E2900) - ARGK
HETHE T HEWE °

FEBER-ERROMBATTLAER
Bt (MFE29(d) - BRAKKBEITNEIMA
E3E -

REED s — B RRAOME R BIRERIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRME

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D) 37 BEAXXRZ(E)
(b) Period-end balances with related parties (b) PBEEALTHIRESER

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLEEE
2018 2017
20184 201745
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBFIT ARETIT
Included in: FTA
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEeEEYD
Cash and cash equivalents from 2 EH— &R HE QT
a subsidiary of a Shareholder ZHRE MRS EEY (i) 258,438 244,460
Accounts receivable FEMER K
Accounts receivable from FEU — KB AR 2 BR 3K
an associate (ii) 2,366 1,096
Accounts receivable from JEW —ZIRHAHE A A
subsidiaries of a Shareholder RN 1,709 -
Other receivables HAth e IR
Amount due from a Shareholder U — 22 B R 718 (ii) 87,313 24,064
Amount due from a joint venture JEW—fA& &M ¥ERIE (ii) = 31,207
Dividend receivable from Bl —REELERE
a joint venture (ii) 11,736 22,136
Other payables H b TR
Amounts due to a Shareholder — EN—RBREREET
and certain of its subsidiaries Bt S A RIZKIE (ii) 115,228 14,001
Amounts due to a joint venture BN —MA B BERE (ii) 8,600 31,207
Amounts due to non-controlling < FE5 AR 25 7B
interests (ih) 543 543
Notes: P EE -
(i) The balances with related party are unsecured, interest-bearing and (0 HEBEATHENEHRAERR ST KAE
repayable on demand. RERFFER -
(i) The balances with these related parties are unsecured, interest-free (i) HZZHEATEENESAEER 28
and repayable on demand. RBRENREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) Period-end balances with related parties (Cont’d)
Transactions with government-related enterprises

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Company and its domestic subsidiaries sold substantially
all their products to local government-related power grid
companies. Please refer to note 4 for details of sales
information to major power grid companies. The Company
and its domestic subsidiaries maintained most of its bank
deposits in government-related financial institutions
while lenders of most of the Company and its subsidiaries’
loans are also government-related financial institutions,
associated with the respective interest income or interest
expense incurred.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, other
collectively-significant transactions with government-
related enterprises also included a large portion of fuel
purchases, property, plant and equipment construction and
related labor employed.

(c) Keymanagement compensation

e B HRRME

37 BEAXXRZ(E)

(b) PBIEALTHIRAER(E)
BRI TR S
HE2018F & 2017F12 831 HIEF
E ARl RERANBARBEER
HoERE T A BRNEBEEMAG -
EHERAETZEPLAHEENERFES
RHIsEs o KRR REBEAME R B I
HREDIRITHERTRBTIERES B
B MARRREMBARIKIEDER
BREATRBNEECRERE  ME
FEEEEFBWASLF SRS

HE2018F K2017%F12 A31 8 I-4F
E - BB HABCEETHERE
ARGNMBRERBORENEE - 9
¥ WMEERSBNESREESHESLT
MiEA -

(c) XEEEEM=

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A3MALLEE

2018 2017

20184 2017%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T
Basic salary, housing allowance, EX%e - FEMAL -
other allowances and HAth A R B &=

benefits in kind 2,646 3,079
Employer’s contributions to BEEHRIKSFT SR

pension scheme 14 14

2,660 3,093
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company
As at 31 December 2018

38 ARTMBRRERRFE

KA TR R
72018%12H31H

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
ASSETS &E
Non-current asset FEMBNVEE
_Interestsinasubsidiary  RHWEARzEm Sl TR N
Current assets mEBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TBRRIA - e REME
other receivables WsE 400 353
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U B A R R IE 778,908 198,384
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 9,088 -
25 /88,396 198,737
Total assets BEBE 6,553,660 5,964,001
EQUITY &

Share capital B AR 5,746,012 5,746,012
Reserves (note) EAECIED) 117,704 211,986
Totalequity Wwme® ©863,716 _ 5957,998

LIABILITIES a8
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries BB A RIFUA S 6,003
Other payables and accrued charges H b R IE R IERTE A 12,698 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE 677,246 =
Totalliabilites ~~~~~~~~ Afes® 689,944 . 6,003
Total equity and liabilities =Rk aEeE 6,553,660 5,964,001

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorized for issue by the Board on 27 March
2019 and is signed on its behalf by:

KRB AR ARR2019F3 27 HE
SR EREETE WA TIES
REZRE -

He Lianhui Sun Guigen
IgE HRER
Director Director
EFE =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONT’D)

Note: Movement in the Company’s reserves

38 ZARATRMBIRRRRFHE(E)

e ARBREED

Share-based

Share compensation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
RE  ROBMRE REBH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 8 May 2017 (date of R2017%5H8 A
incorporation) (A B )
Issue of shares BIRD 5,746,012 - - 5,746,012
Issue of share option BT RE - 19,252 S 19,252
Total comprehensive income  FR2EK AR
for the year - - 192,734 192,734
At 31 December 2017 R2017612A318 5,746,012 19,252 192,734 5,957,998
Total comprehensive income  FRZEWNZHEE
for the year = = 46,334 46,334
Effects of share options By - (1,676) 1,676 -
Dividend paid ERRE = = (140,616) (140,616)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512H318 5,746,012 17,576 100,128 5,863,716

39 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 27 March 2019.

39 HEMBEHRR

KRB ERMERER2019F3H27HE

Exgdtf-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRE

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31

40

(i)

TEMBRARZFE

AT AR 2018F 2017412 A31

December 2018 and 2017: HZEZEMBARRE :
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M2A31A
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital AEEER Type of legal entity Principal activities
AL RUREEnE BHR/ERIRA Rk LS TERE
2018 2017
W8F  2017E
Interests held directly:
ERERER:
China Power New Energy Bermuda/Hong Kong HK$1,186,633,418  100%  100%  Limited iability company Investment holdings
Development Company Limited
REE N RERARLA ARE/BR 11866304185 100%  100% ARAE RERR
Interests held indirectly:
32t o8
Lucky Talent Limited British Virgin Islands/ Tshareof US§T  100%  100%  Limited liability company  Securities trading
Hong Kong
Lucky Talent Limited ABRREE/AE WIETZRG  100%  100%  ERAF A5EE
Start Bright International Limited British Virgin Islands/ Tshareof US§T  100%  100%  Limitedliability company  Investment holdings
Hong Kong
HEERARAR): ABRANR/ R WiETZBAE  100%  100%  ARAE RERK
Deluxe Vantage Limited British Virgin Islands/ Tshareof US§T  100%  100%  Limited iability company  Property holdings
Hong Kong
Deluxe Vantage Limited ABRREE/AE WETZBRR  100%  100%  ARAT E
L e RERERARDA PRC RMB60.000000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned foreign Property holdings
enterprise
LR B RERERERAT i AREE0000000T  100%  100% SNEEERE S
China Power (New Energy) Holdings Limited  Hong Kong Ishareof HKST  100%  100%  Limited liability company  Investment holdings
PEE GeR) ERER A Y0 RIETZRE  100%  100%  BRAF REAK
Green Health Development Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Tshareof HKST  100%  100%  Limited liabilitycompany  Investment holdings
RERFERARLA (3 ATz 100%  100%  ARAA RERR
AR RARARLR PRC RMB162210000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned foreign ~ Generation and sales
enterprise of electricity
EERIRER AR i ARE16221000070  100%  100% SMEBARE FEREEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEMEBARZFHFEE)
(CONT’D)
(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 ()  LATAR2018F &2017F 12831
December 2018 and 2017: (Cont’d) BzTEMBEARISRE (&)
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M2A31A
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital AEEER Type of legal entity Principal activities
G2 RIREEHY BHR/CRARE B ERATER IEER
08 007
018 W17
hERRARERARAT PRC US$355,000000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned foreign Ivestment holdings
enterprise
HEEE R ERERLT il 350000005 100%  100% OEEALE REAK
hE(HR)AEERLT PRO RVB60,000,000  60%  60%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Generation and sales
venture of electricity
hE(HE)AEERAT i AEBO0000000T  60%  60% RAAELE FERHEEN
HE(LE) ENEHEARAR PRC RVB26,000,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
HE(LE) ENEHERRAR i AREB000000  100%  100% OEEAGE FERHEEN
HE(RR)ENREARART PRC RVB632750,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
HE(RR)ENRERRART i AREB6TE0000  100%  100%  AEEAME FERHEEN
HEPERRENEERRLT PRC RMB154450000  100%  100%  Wholly-omned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
HERSERENEEARAT i ARB1544500007  100%  100%  AEEAGE FERHEE
HEPERRE_ENEEERLE PRC RMB147160000  100%  100%  Wholly-omned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
HEREERECRNRERRAT i AREAUTI00000  100%  100%  AEEAME LERHEEN
HEPERREZENEEERLE PRC RMB1629232455  100%  100%  Wholly-onned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
HEPERREZENEEERLE i AER1620232455L  100%  100%  SEEELE HERHEED
SRR NEERRAT PRC RMB391970000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
SRR NEERRLA i ARES10700007  100%  100%  AEBAME ® LERHEEN

ANNUAL REPORT 2018{

F£35 2018

/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEMBARZFIEE)
(CONT’D)

() The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i)  ATAR2018F &2017F12H31
December 2018 and 2017: (Cont’d) BzEEBHBAREZE (&)

Equity interest

attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M2A31A
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital AEEER Type of legal entity Principal activities
G2 RUREEHE BfR/CRRE Ags ERATER EE 4
2018 2017

W018F 0175

HRPERAEREEARDA PRC RMBI58,320000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and salss
foreign enterprise of electricity
EELEREY O EL N fE ARE1583200007C  100%  100% SMEBALE YERBERS
HRPEAREREEARDA PRC RMBI75,320000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and salss
foreign enterprise of electricity
HETERRERETARAT fE ARE17532000000  100%  100% SMEBALE YERBERS
REAENERARERDA PRC US$43435965  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
FEEMMRAEARLT fE 34BI5ET 100%  100%  SEBALE YERBERS
FENEE-REERAA PRC RMB350000,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
FEEE_HRARLT e AREIB00000007C  100%  100% SMEBALE ERBEE
HEAERNREERLT PRC RMBL28618.000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
PEAEENEERRAT e ARGBHIB000T  100%  100% IEBALE ERBEE
EEPERRENERDA PRC RMB116,800000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
RPPERRENERAT e ARE16800000  100%  100% IEBALE ERBEE
BIMENKEERAT PRC RMB122,190.000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BYmEOKERRAR e ARE122,1900000  100%  100%  OEBALE ERBEE
HENFEENSEERLT PRC RMB143 821600 100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
PERFEENSERRAT H ARBU4381 000 100%  100% SEEELE ERBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEMEBARZFHFEE)
(CONT'D)
(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 ()  LATAR2018F &2017F 12831
December 2018 and 2017: (Cont’d) AZEZEWNBEAREE : (B)
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M28318
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital REEER Type of legal entity Principal activities
G RIREEHE BAR/BEARA hags EEAREH IBER
2018 2017
W18 2017
EFREAT A EREARLA PRC RMB520,000000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BRETRKERERRAT i ARE50000000  100%  100% OEBALE AERHETS
B ERRENEERRLA PRC US21,180000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BHNEERENEERRAT ol 21180000%T  100%  100% OEBELE LEREERS
B SR NEERRLA PRC US$21600,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BHREIER NS EARAT I M600000%TT  100%  100% OEEALE HERHEE)
BESREITERARDA PRC RMB25,000000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Energy-related project
foreign enterprise management
BERRERITERARLT e AREB000000  100%  100%  OEEALE WREEARER
BISREERERAT PRC RMB3s. 78676 100%  100%  holly-omned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BTRREXARAT G ARE3BO8676T  100%  100% HNEEELE EREERS
BIZERKERERRAA PRC RMBOO.711324  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BIGERKEREARAT il ARBQISMT  100%  100% OEEALE YERHEE)
TIAERRERARDA PRC RMB71400000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
TIPERREEARAT il ARETIL0000  100%  100% SNEEALE LEREEES
BOPERRERLA PRC RMB126,000000  100%  100%  Wholly-omned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BARERRERAT G ARE16000000  100%  100% SiEEELE LEREERS
A EERIRERRD PRC RMBI24500000  100%  100%  Wholly-omned (®) Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
AR IREARAT PE ARE124500000  100%  100% OEBALE AERHBERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRE

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40
(CONT'D)

TEMBARzFREE)

AT AR 2018F 2017412 A31
BZEEMBRFRE : (B)

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i)
December 2018 and 2017: (Cont’d)

Equity interest

attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M2A31A
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital AEEER Type of legal entity Principal activities
RAEH RUREEnE BAR/BEAREK RARE LS TEER
018 2017
0188 2017%
ERIAERRERERDA PRC RMB106,340000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and salss
foreign enterprise of electricity
IR ERREEARAT fE ARE106340000  100%  100% SiEEECE YEREERS
ERRERRIEARAA PRC RMB164,000,000  89.67%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
BANERREEERLA E ARE1640000007  8967%  100% SEEELE YEREERS
CRRERREEERAR PRC RMB133.330,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Development of
foreign enterprise power plant
[ERERREEARAA fE ARE133330000  100%  100% SiEEELE BRUEH
ERPERRIEARAA PRC RMB130,000,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and
foreign enterprise sales of electricity
ERRERREEARLA E ARE130000000  100%  100% SiEEECE YEREERS
R REEEREA LR PRC RMB60.000000  70%  8643%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Development of
venture power plant
B RESEREAAA e ARB60000000 0%  8643%  MAMAELE LRYER
ERTELREEARDA PRC RMB220,000000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and
foreign enterprise sales of electricity
ERREEREEARAT H ARE20000000  100%  100% SEEELE ERBEE
AR RREERARDA PRC RMBYT000,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
B RRESERRAT H ARE910000007  100%  100% EBELE ERBEE
EERENERRREEARDA PRC RMBIZ900000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Development of
foreign enterprise power plant
ERDEHMREREEARAT H ARE12900000  100%  100% EBELE LRYER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEMEBARZFHFEE)
(CONT'D)
(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 ()  LATAR2018F &2017F 12831
December 2018 and 2017: (Cont’d) AZEZEWNBEAREE : (B)
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M28318
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital REEER Type of legal entity Principal activities
G RIREEHE BAR/BEARA hags EEAREH IBER
2018 2017
W18 2017
IEPEGEABARRRRDA PRC RMB24000000  70%  70%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Generation and sales
venture of electricity
RN R ATRRARAT i ARB00000 0% 0% RMAELE AERHETS
TRUAERRERERR AL PRC RMB34300000  70%  70%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Development of
venture power plant
YRS RREEARAMAT ol AREBLI00000T 0% 0% RiAELE LRAER
RERENENERIEERAT PRC RMBY0000000  95.82%  9552%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Development of
venture power plant
REPENENERAERRLT I ARE00000007T  9552% 9552%  mAMAELE YREER
REAEGARRERDA PRC RMB20,000,000  70%  70%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
FERERAMRERAT il ARE00000000 0% 0% HEBELE LEREEES
HEEMEREZERLT PRC RMBI8000000  60%  60%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Generation and sales
venture of electricity
hEEMERIERRAT ol AREI8000000T  60%  60% CRMAERE LEREERS
BarEtnEEEARAA PRC RMBA5000000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Development of
foreign enterprise power plant
BRRELNELEARAT il ARBL000000T  100%  100%  OEEALE BERE]
BEPERRERARDA PRO RVBS8000,000  51%  51%  Sino-foreignequityjoint  Development of
venture power plant
HENERRAZARLT il ARES8000000T  51%  51%  mpAELE RAER
EIERRESERLT PRC RMBY1G70000  100%  100%  Wholly-omned Development of
foreign enterprise power plant
BIMERREZARLT G AREQ1670000  100%  100% HNEEELE BRUEH
FRPERREEERDA PRC RMBGO.S00000  100%  100%  Wholly-omned (®) Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
AERERREEARAA e AREOO500000  100%  100% HEBELE AERHBERD
ANNUALREPORTZOW{/
F37 2018



242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40

TEMBARzFREE)

(CONT’D)
() The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i)  ATAR2018F &2017F12H31
December 2018 and 2017: (Cont’d) AzEEMBRAIRE - (B)
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group as at
Place of 31 December
establishment M2A31A
Name of company and operation Paid up/issued capital AEBER Type of legal entity Principal activities
RAEH RIREEHE BAR/BEAREK fags TR E 4
018 2017
0188 017
P SERRREEARDA PRC RMB5,000,000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Development of
foreign enterprise power plant
B ERERREERRAT il ARE5000000  100%  100% SEEELE LRYER
AN ERREEARLT PRC RMB15,000000  100% — Wholly-owned Development of
foreign enterprise power plant
RERERREEARLA wE ARE150000007T  100% - EEER% LRYEH
Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co.KG~ Germany EUR03000  100%  100%  Wholly-owned Generation and sales
foreign enterprise of electricity
Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co.KG B JO00BL  100%  100%  SMEEELE ERHEE

(i) As at 31 December 2018 and for the year ended (ii)
31 December 2018, there were no significant non-
controlling interests of the subsidiaries in the Group

M2018F12A31H RE E 20184
12A31HIEFE AEENBER
A B E R IEIE R RS (20174 -

(2017: nil). ) o
(i)  None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities (i) BEMBRARNERE BITEME
at the end of year. BFEH o
41 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 41 BT
During the current year, the Group modified the presentation REFE - REBEHFREV BRI EF
of prepaid lease payments, accounts receivable, cash and HBENHEERIA - YRR - Ra kB
cash equivalents and restricted deposits in the consolidated CEBMRIBREGFEHOINRETTE

statement of financial position and the comparative figures
have been changed to conform the presentation in the
current year. These changes in presentation have no impact
on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2018 and accordingly the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2018 is not presented.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M=

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31December 31December 31December 31December 31December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HBZ2018F  HZE2017F  HZE2016F  HZE2015F  HZE2014F
12A31H 128310 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HEE EEE LEE LEE HEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 4,808,703 4,820,975 4,726,592 2,404,602 2,344,381
Operating profit eyl 815,867 1,043,163 1,128,199 647,180 745,641
Profit before tax BREL AL A 238,612 560,706 665,154 210,943 376,910
Income tax expense FERAX (52,511) (156,860) (264,504) (108,480 (97,279)
Profit for the year EREF 186,101 403,846 400,650 107,463 279,631
Attributable to: RE:
Owners of the Company ~ RAFH#EA A 185,323 401,702 404,536 108,228 274,791
Non-controlling R ER
interests 778 2,144 (3,886) (765) 4,840
Earnings per share for ~ BHEALAFEEA
profit attributable to FE(E R F
ownersofthe Company 2 MM
(RMB) (AR¥) 0.1562 0.3385 0.3409 0.0913 0.2363
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31December 31December 31December 31December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HZ2018F  HZE2017F  #HZ20165  HZ2015F  HZE2014F
128310 128318 128318 128318 12A31H
HEE EEE EEE tEE tFE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTT ARETTT AREFTL
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,599,866 21,574,406 19,924,235 18,572,913 16,313,260
Current assets MEEE 2,690,448 3,013,151 3,935,123 2,793,677 2,482,573
Total assets BERE 25,290,314 24,587,557 23,859,358 21,366,590 18,795,833
Current liabilities MEAE (4,781,223)  (4,716,526) (4,694,526) (2,632,038) (2,900,565)
Non-current liabilities ~ 3EREIEE (11,877,352)  (11,317,335)  (10,891,430)  (10,863,932) (8,068,213)
Net assets BEFE 8,631,739 8,553,696 8,273,402 7,870,620 7,827,055
Non-controlling IR iER
interests 148,705 99,268 70,565 36,554 24,373
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GLOSSARY
AR

13th Five-Year Plan
=5

2018 AGM
2018 FE MR FFRE

2019 AGM
2019F R RAF RS

Articles
Zi24EA)

biomass

£E

Board
BT

CG Code
EERSTA

Company or CPCE
RARKAEFZREER

CNOOC
BT A m

CPNE
BHEEIR

Eliminating excess capacity,
inventory depletion,
deleveraging, reducing costs
and shoring up weakness

—E5—RB—H

*  for identification purpose only

E a5

the Outline of the 13th Five-Year Plan for the National Economic and
Social Development of the PRC for the period between 2016 and
2020
FREBREEMCEERET—FERAFTHRIME « LR : 20165F
220204

the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2018

RATN2018F6 A28HRIT v REFFEAE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30 May
2019
RREER2019F5 A0 RITZBRRAFAE

the articles of association of the Company

AR ERAR

plant material, vegetation or agricultural waste that is used as a
fuel or energy source

FRERREL SBER B REL - RSB ERER

the board of directors

Exg

Corporate Governance Code, contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules
EEEETA - R LRI+

China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
TEENBREREREGRAF  RBEETMALHERARF] - HiX
B R PTEIR £

China National Offshore Qil Corporation
hEEF A HEEARAA

China Power New Energy Development Company Limited, a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

FEENHERERARAR  REFREETMRLNER AT

eliminating excess capacity, inventory depletion, deleveraging,
reducing costs and shoring up weakness

LERE - EERF - B2 - B - fER

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Group the Company and its subsidiaries

EHE KRB REMEAR]

HKEX Stock Code on the Stock Exchange

7B R AR 5% 78 3 PR RR 19 5%

kW kilowatt, a unit of energy

TE BEREAL - TR

kWh a unit of energy. One kilowatt-hour (kWh) is equivalent to one

F R kilowatt of power that would be produced by a power generator in
one hour

BURELL - 1 TERESNESHRE IV NEALEEITRANEE

Listing Rules Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
FRA B2 PE S E AR Al
Member/Shareholder a person (including but not limited to natural person) who hold the
s shares

REROALT(BEETERREAAN)
Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
AT A Issuers, contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ETBETAEFETESFIZNITETA > HRNEWRAMET

MW megawatt, a unit of energy. 1 MW = 1,000 kW

KR BEIREAL - KR - 1KE = 1,000F R

MWh a unit of energy. One megawatt-hour (MWh) is equivalent to one
JK EL megawatt of energy that would be produced by a power generator

for one hour of time
RERENL - 1K AENEEREVNEANEEIKENES

NEEQ Stock Code on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
=R A 5% 2B/ EE RS DR

Post-Listing Share Option Scheme the share option scheme of CPCE adopted on 8 June 2017 and
AR & passed by an ordinary resolution in the general meeting of CPNE
held on 7 July 2017
R2017F6 ABRRMZP BB RRBREE - A N2017F7H7
B2 EFERRRAG AL RREBER

Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme  the pre-listing share option scheme of CPCE adopted on 8 June
ET AT R AR 8 2017
20174F6 A8 B HRMH  EIFRBLIR - Al B AEET 2
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PRC
T

Possible Transaction
AIRER 5

Reorganisation Proposal
EZEDES

SFO
78 7 M BB R

SNPTC
BRZE

SPIC
BREX

SSEC
ERETRAD AR

Stock Exchange or HKEX
B X FT kB A

SZSE
AR PR HO5R

FEENEREREREGRAT

the People’s Republic of China, which for purpose of this annual
report excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

g \RAFIE - RAFRNE - FREES ORPIRAE

the Possible Transaction contemplated under the memorandum
of understanding entered into between CPNE and SPIC as referred
to in the announcements of CPNE dated 30 December 2015 and 8
January 2016, the announcement of the Company dated 31 July
2017 and subsequent monthly update announcements
REFAERA B A20156F12A308 %2016F 1 A8AMAE « AR A
HHIR2017F7A3MANLERAGNAESRHERRE - ABRM
AP ENREBRERATZNREEHTERIE TRUETTH IR S

the proposal of change of the holding company of the Group from
CPNE to CPCE, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, by way of the Scheme which became effective on 17 July
2017, and CPCE has replaced CPNE as the listing vehicle since 18
July 2017
BREEAEENERAGHTEFEREER/PEFTRER(NE
BEMKZZBRARMITR - 5HEIEN2017F7 178 LR - MF
BIEZ8RN2017F7 18I EMNER - R EmEeE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BREPIEST1EE R R RE D

State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation
BRIz BRI A A

State Power Investment Corporation Limited
HRENREEEBR QA

Stock Code on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
FBESFZZ AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBERHHERAT

Stock Code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
Y8 53X 5 P IR 5%
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